Personality-Driven AI Leadership: The Catalyst for AI

Transformation



By

Sana Nazir 00000364450

A thesis submitted to the National University of Sciences and Technology,

Islamabad, in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of

Master of Science in

Human Resource Management

Supervisor: Assoc. Prof. Dr. Mumtaz Ali Memon

School of NUST Business School

National University of Sciences & Technology (NUST)

Islamabad, Pakistan

Personality-Driven AI Leadership: The Catalyst for AI

Transformation



By

Sana Nazir 00000364450

A thesis submitted to the National University of Sciences and Technology,

Islamabad, in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of

Master of Science in

Human Resource Management

Supervisor: Assoc. Prof. Dr. Mumtaz Ali Memon

School of NUST Business School

National University of Sciences & Technology (NUST)

Islamabad, Pakistan

THESIS ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE

Certified Ms. Sana Nazir that final by copy Thesis written of MS. (Registration No.00000364450), of 2021 (NUST Business School) has been vetted by undersigned, found complete in all respects as per NUST Statutes/ Regulations/ Masters Policy, is free of plagiarism, errors, and mistakes and is accepted as partial fulfillment for award of Masters degree. It is further certified that necessary amendments as point out by GEC members and foreign/ local evaluators of the scholar have also been incorporated in the said thesis.

Signature:

Name of Supervisor Dr. Mumtaz Ali Memon

Date: Signature (HOD): 24 2 Date: Signature (Dean Principal) Date:

CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL

This is to certify that the research work presented in this thesis, titled <u>Personality-Driven AI Leadership: The</u> <u>Catalyst for AI Transformation</u> was conducted by Ms. Sana Nazir under the supervision of Dr. Mumtaz Ali Memon. No part of this thesis has been submitted anywhere else for any other degree. This thesis is submitted to the Department of Management & HR, NUST Business School, National University of Sciences & Technology, Islamabad, Pakistan in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of Master of Human Resources & Management, Department of Management & HR, NUST Business School, National University of Sciences & Technology, Islamabad, Pakistan.

Student Name: Sana Nazir

Examination Committee:

- a. Internal Examiner 1: Dr.M.Zeeshan Mirza Associate Professor (NBS)
- b. Internal Examiner 1: Dr. Asad Amjad Assistant Professor (NBS)

Supervisor Name: Assoc. Prof. Dr Mumtaz Ali Memon

Signature

Signature Signature

Signature

Signature

Name of Dean/HoD: Dr. Naukhez Sarwar

FORM TH-4 (MUST BE TYPE WRITTEN)

National University of Sciences & Technology

MASTER THESIS WORK

We hereby recommend that the dissertation prepared under our supervision by: (Student Name & Regn No.) <u>Sana Nazir (00000364450)</u> Titled: <u>Personality-</u> <u>Driven Al Leadership: The Catalyst for Al Transformation be</u> accepted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the award of <u>MS HRM degree</u> and awarded grade \underline{A} . <u>MM</u>(Initial).

Examination Committee Members

- 1. Name: Dr. Muhammad Zeeshan Mirza
- 2. Name: Dr. Asad Amjad

Signature: Signature

Supervisor's name: Dr. Mumtaz Ali Memon Signature:

Date:

Head of Depart

21/7/24 Date

COUNTERSINGED

Date:

Dean/Principal

Author's Declaration

I certify that this research work titled "**Personality-Driven AI Leadership: The Catalyst for AI Transformation**" is my own work. The work has not been presented elsewhere for assessment. The material that has been used from other sources has been properly acknowledged/referred.

Signature of Student

Sana Nazir

2024-NUST-MS-HRM00000364450

PLAGIARISM UNDERTAKING

I solemnly declare that the research work presented in the thesis "**Personality-Driven AI Leadership: The Catalyst for AI Transformation**" is solely my research work with no significant contribution from any other person. Small contributions/ help wherever taken has been duly acknowledged and that complete thesis has been written by me.

I understand the zero-tolerance policy of the HEC and the National University of Sciences and Technology (NUST), Islamabad towards plagiarism. Therefore, I as an author of the above titled thesis declare that no portion of my thesis has been plagiarized and any material used as reference is properly referred/cited.

I undertake that if I am found guilty of any formal plagiarism in the above-titled thesis even after the award of the MS degree, the University reserves the right to withdraw/revoke my MS degree and that HEC and NUST, Islamabad have the right to publish my name on the HEC/University website on which names of students are placed who submitted plagiarized thesis.

Name: Sana Nazir	Student	Signature:	5	qua	
	Name:	Sana Na	azir	C	

Acknowledgment

This dissertation would not have been possible without the guidance and help of several individuals who in one way or another contributed and extended their valuable assistance in the preparation and completion of this study. First and foremost, I would thank the **ALMIGHTY ALLAH** for not only allowing me to broaden my horizons but for also His divine love and protection during this learning period and my entire life. I would like to express my sincere gratitude to my supervisor **Dr. Mumtaz Ali Memon** for the continuous support, patience, motivation, and immense knowledge. I would also like to thank my seniors and batch mates for being supportive and assisting in my research work, without them this project would not have ended so smoothly.

I am correspondingly gratified to "**Personality-Driven AI Leadership: The Catalyst for AI Transformation**" at the NUST Business School, National University of Sciences and Technology welcoming me as a research student and providing the facilities to accomplish my research. I also want to thank my **Parents, Siblings, and Friends** for their continuous support and love. Their unceasing prayers have enabled me to reach the current position in my life. A special thanks to the research respondents without their contribution my research would have not been possible. Lastly, I would like to express my gratitude to the HR panel including **Dr. Asfia Obaid, Dr. Muhammad Zeeshan Mirza and Dr. Asad Amjad** for providing me with constructive feedback.

Abstract

This study aims to examine the impact of Big Five personality traits (openness, conscientiousness, agreeableness, extraversion, and neuroticism) on AI leadership capability and subsequently AI transformation. The mediating role of AI leadership capability between personality traits and AI transformation was also examined. For which, data was collected from 184 managers working in the IT sector of Pakistan. Partial least square structural equation modeling (PLS-SEM) facilitated in performing of statistical techniques to test the hypothesized relationship. The study highlights the significant association of agreeableness and conscientiousness with AI leadership capability. The research further reports a significant negative association of extraversion and openness with AI leadership capability. Conforming to expectations, AI leadership capability mediates the relationship of personality traits (extraversion, neuroticism, and conscientiousness) with AI transformation. In contrast, findings report insignificant mediation analysis between personality traits (extraversion and openness) and AI transformation. In addition, the study highlights the significant positive association of AI leadership capability with AI transformation. Pakistani IT companies should invest in training workshops to enhance these traits and equip leaders with the skills to manage AI transformation. Additionally, managerial employees should develop AIfocused strategies considering psychological traits to facilitate this transformation. To date, no research has been conducted concerning the relationship between personality traits, AI leadership capability, and AI transformation. Additionally, this study is novel introducing two constructs, AI leadership capability, and AI transformation. Thus, the present study increases our understanding of the role personality traits play in developing AI leadership that will foster AI transformation.

Keywords Personality traits, AI leadership capability, AI transformation, IT sector

Table of Contents

TITLE	II
THESIS ACCEPTANCE CERTIFICATE	III
CERTIFICATE OF APPROVAL	IV
FORM TH-4	V
AUTHOR'S DECLARATION	VI
PLAGIARISM UNDERTAKING	VII
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT	VIII
ABSTRACT	IX
CHAPTER 1	1
INTRODUCTION	1
1.1 Research Background	1
1.2 Timeliness of Investigation	
1.3 Contextual Analysis	5
1.3.1 AI in Pakistan	5
1.3.2 AI in the IT Industry	6
1.3.3 AI and Managers	6
1.4 Research Gaps	7
1.4.1 Big Five Model and AI Literature	7
1.4.2 AI Leadership Capability and AI Transformation	
1.4.3 Personality Traits and AI Transformation	9
1.5 Problem Statement	
1.6 Research Objectives	11
1.7 Research Questions	
1.8 Significance of Study	
1.8.1 Theoretical Significance	
1.8.2 Practical Significance	14
1.9 Research Scope	
1.10 Operationalization of Variables	
1.10.1 Openness	

1.10.2 Agreeableness	
1.10.3 Conscientiousness	
1.10.4 Extraversion	
1.10.5 Neuroticism	
1.10.6 AI Leadership Capability	
1.10.7 AI Transformation	
1.11 Organization of Thesis	
CHAPTER 2	
LITERATURE REVIEW	
2.1 Introduction	
2.2 Research Conceptualization	
2.2.1 Personality Traits	
2.2.1.1 Openness	
2.2.1.2 Extraversion	
2.2.1.3 Neuroticism	
2.2.1.4 Agreeableness	
2.2.1.5 Conscientiousness	
2.2.1.6 AI Leadership Capability	
2.2.1.7 AI Transformation	
2.3 Underpinning Theory	
2.3.1 Big Five Model	
2.3.2 Self-Determination Theory - SDT	
2.4 Hypotheses Development	
2.4.1 Openness and AI Leadership Capability	
2.4.2 Neuroticism and AI Leadership Capability	
2.4.3 Extraversion and AI Leadership Capability	
2.4.4 Agreeableness and AI Leadership Capability	
2.4.5 Conscientiousness and AI Leadership Capability	
2.4.6 AI Leadership Capability and AI Transformation	
2.4.7 AI Leadership as a Mediator	
2.5 Research Framework	

2.6 Chapter Summary	
CHAPTER 3	
METHODOLOGY	
3.1 Introduction	
3.2 Research Design	
3.2.1 Research Philosophy and Approach	
3.2.2 Research Strategy	
3.3 Research Participants and Procedures	
3.3.1 Sampling Technique	
3.3.2 Sample Size	
3.3.3 Unit of Analysis	
3.3.4 Data Collection Procedures	
3.3.4.1 Research Instrument	
3.3.4.2 Identification of Target Companies	
3.3.4.3 Pretesting	
3.3.4.4 Online Data Collection	
3.3.4.5 Physical Data Collection	
3.3.4.6 Engagement with Personal Contacts	
3.3.4.7 Utilization of LinkedIn Connection	
3.3.4.8 Data Analysis	
3.4 Measures	
3.4.1 Personality Traits	
3.4.1.1 Openness	
3.4.1.2 Agreeableness	
3.4.1.3 Conscientiousness	
3.4.1.4 Extraversion	
3.4.1.5 Neuroticism	
3.4.2 AI Leadership Capability	
3.4.3 AI Transformation	
3.5 Ethical Consideration	
3.5.1 Voluntary Participation	

3.5.2 Participant Withdrawal	
3.5.3 Informed Consent	
3.5.4 Confidentiality and Anonymity	
3.5.5 Appropriate Questionnaire Language	
3.5.6 Research Integrity	
3.5.7 Recognition of Contributors	
3.6 Chapter Summary	
CHAPTER 4	49
RESULTS	49
4.1 Introduction	
4.2 Demographic Analysis	
4.3 Data Analysis	
4.3.1 Measurement Model	50
4.3.1.1 Internal Consistency Reliability	50
4.3.1.2 Convergent Validity	
4.3.1.3 Discriminant Validity	
4.3.1.4 Multicollinearity	52
4.4 Structural Model	53
4.5 Chapter Summary	55
CHAPTER 5	
5.1 DISCUSSION	
5.1 Introduction	57
5.2 Discussion	
5.2.1 Openness and AI Leadership Capability	
5.2.2 Neuroticism & AI Leadership Capability	59
5.2.3 Extraversion and AI Leadership Capability	60
5.2.4 Agreeableness and AI Leadership Capability	
5.2.5 Conscientiousness and AI Leadership Capability	
5.2.6 AI Leadership Capability and AI Transformation	
5.2.7 AI Leadership Capability Mediator: Openness and AI Transformation	
5.2.8 AI Leadership Capability Mediator: Neuroticism and AI Transformation	67

5.2.9 AI Leadership Capability Mediator: Extraversion and AI Transformation	68
5.2.10 AI Leadership Capability Mediator: Agreeableness and AI Transformation	69
5.2.11 AI Leadership Capability Mediator: Conscientiousness and AI Transformation	70
5.3 Theoretical Implications	70
5.3.1 Operationalization of Constructs	71
5.3.2 AI Leadership Capability as Mediator	71
5.3.3 Personality Traits and AI Leadership Capability	72
5.3.3.1 Agreeableness, Conscientiousness and Neuroticism	72
5.3.3.2 Openness and Extraversion	73
5.3.4 AI Leadership Capability and AI Transformation	73
5.3.5 Methodological Advantage	74
5.4 Managerial Implications	74
5.4.1 Personality Traits and AI Leadership Capability	74
5.4.1.1 Agreeableness and AI Leadership Capability	75
5.4.1.2 Conscientiousness and AI Leadership Capability	75
5.4.1.3 Neuroticism and AI Leadership Capability	76
5.4.1.4 Openness and AI Leadership Capability	77
5.4.1.5 Extraversion and AI Leadership Capability	78
5.4.2 AI Leadership Capability and AI Transformation	78
5.4.3 AI Leadership Capability as Mediator	78
5.5 Limitations and Future Recommendations	80
5.6 Conclusion	81
REFERENCES	83
APPENDIX	.112
Research Instrument	.112

List of Tables

Table 3.1 Research Items	46
Table 4.1 Demographic Information	50
Table 4.2 Assessment of Internal Consistency Reliability and Convergent Validity	52
Table 4.3 Assessment of Discriminant Validity	52
Table 4.4 Assessment of Higher Order Construct	53
Table 4.5 R ² of Endogenous Constructs	54
Table 4.6 f^2 Values of the Path Model	54
Table 4.7 Results of Hypotheses Testing (Direct Effect)	55
Table 4.8 Mediating Effect Analysis	55

List of Figures

Figure 2.1 Research Conceptual Framework	35
Figure 3.1 The Research Onion	37
Figure 4.1 Structural Model	56

List of Abbreviations

%	:	Percentage
\$:	Dollar
=	:	Equal
AI	:	Artificial Intelligence
AVE	:	Average Variance Extracted
BFM	:	Big Five Model
BDA	:	Big Data Analytics
CEO	:	Chief Executive Officer
CFO	:	Chief Finance Officer
CI	:	Confidence Interval
COVID-19	:	Coronavirus Disease of 2019
CR	:	Composite Reliabilities
CV	:	Convergent Validity
DA	:	Data Analytics
DV	:	Discriminant Validity
e.g	:	Example
Etc	:	Et cetera
f^2	:	Effect Size
HR	:	Human Resource
HRM	:	Human Resource Management
H1-H12	:	Hypothesis 1 - Hypothesis 12
HTMT	:	Heterotrait-Monotrait Ratio
IT	:	Information Technology
LL	:	Lower Level
MS	:	Microsoft
NCAI	:	National Centre of Artificial Intelligence
NUST	:	National University of Sciences and Technology
NLP	:	National Language Processing
PLS-SEM	:	Partial Least Squares Structural Equation Modeling

RO	:	Research Objectives
RQ	:	Research Questions
\mathbb{R}^2	:	Coefficient of Determination
SDT	:	Self-discrimination Theory
SPSS	:	Statistical Package for the Social Sciences
STDEV	:	Standard Deviation
UL	:	Upper Level
VIF	:	Variance Inflation Factor

CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Research Background

In an era dominated by meteoric technological progressions, the emerging domain of artificial intelligence (AI) (Pradana & Mayasari, 2023) has significantly contributed to the paradigm shift in taking on the fourth industrial revolution (Schiuma et al., 2022). AI is cited as "machines performing cognitive functions usually associated with human minds, such as learning, interacting, and problem-solving" (Raisch & Krakowski, 2021, p. 192). To combat the dynamic nature of the work environment, AI footprint is crucial in providing strategic direction to organizations, irrespective of sectors and industries (Andrzejak, 2023). Such as, AI holds the power to optimize the business value chain by navigating the business processes, data valuation, decision-making, and actions which will assist organizations in achieving optimal efficiency (Gruetzemacher & Whittlestone, 2022). To explain further, AI transformation is the pivotal force in business model innovation (Newman et al., 2022), procedure transformation, and attaining a competitive edge in organizations that are aiming to become data-oriented and digitally culture-driven (Mugge et al., 2020). Concerning the prior literature, it has been reported that in the last five years, AI adoption surged by 70% (Ughulu, 2022). According to International Data Corporation's forecast, the global AI expenditure market is expected to expand from \$85.3 billion in 2021 to over \$204 billion in 2025, with a compound annual growth rate of 24.5% between 2021 and 2025 (Chowdhury et al., 2023). Also, the World Economic Forum projects, 97 million AI-related employment in 2025 as the integration of people, machines, and algorithms increases (Khan, 2023).

Consequently, the impact of AI transformation within an organizational setting will drastically transform the customer experience, employer-employee relationships, work nature, workforce demographics, the interaction between people and technology, and their competitive advantage within the evolving marketplace (Solanki et al., 2022). While the benefits of integrating AI transformation to revolutionize industries and societies are being explored, examined, and implemented, it is evident to acknowledge that this transition is prone to the dynamic interplay of a complex tapestry of transformational challenges (Benitez et al., 2022). As a primary point, organizations lack the expertise, and awareness to handle AI transformation (Holmstrom, 2022). AI requires a systematic approach, just like any other transitional change within an organizational

setting (Haleem et al., 2022). AI transformation is more about the individuals than the AI technology itself as AI transformation necessitates organizational changes supported by leadership and propelled by dramatic challenges to organizational culture.

The leadership paradigm appears to evolve with the introduction of new technologies and skills as leaders are required to become more agile, adaptable, and responsive to the evolving work requirements (Zarifis & Efthymiou, 2022). Existing research indeed raises the awareness of human judgment and oversight critical to strategic decision-making in a data-driven culture (Fullan et al., 2023). Similar to how digital transformation requires digital leadership to formulate, execute, and control digital transformation strategy while exploring the tools, methods, and processes to drive transformation (Lagemann, 2022), AI transformation also requires AI leadership. In context to this, such leadership is critical to the level of understanding and awareness employees require in creating an AI-focused culture that will facilitate the AI transformation. We have entered the leadership realm where leaders and AI co-exist to lead employees, envision robust strategic modifications, and translate changes through sound communicative mediums (Kim & Cruz, 2022). In a sense, leaders significantly influence how well teams function, task orientation, and change initiatives while remaining informed of the opportunities surrounding AI transformation (Ammer et al., 2023). In other words, AI leaders are critical to the decision-making and execution of AI initiatives.

Accordingly, to facilitate effective and efficient AI transformation, existing literature suggests that organizations need to invest in developing leadership capabilities, as such leaders are change agents and possess both transformative vision and futuristic perspective (Nuaimi et al., 2022), critical to AI transformation. Leadership influenced by differences in personalities, experiences, and thought processes will be significant in cultivating positive culture and innovative behaviors via the successful AI transformation within the organizational setting (Guzmán et al., 2020). Considering the AI transformation of the workplace is a novel phenomenon (Murugesan et al., 2023), leaders must be able to make proper assessments even when faced with ambiguous data (Vrontis et al., 2022). Here, the psychological makeup of employees is a vital component in developing such capabilities to facilitate transformation and successfully achieve work-related outcomes (Fan et al., 2023).

Building upon the literature on employees' mindset or personality makeup, personality traits consistently shape a wide range of intra- and inter-employee processes, attitudes, and behaviors concerning their engagement in different domains (Schepman & Rodway, 2023). The Big Five Model (BFM), is one of the renowned frameworks for mapping personality traits in developing leadership capability that will contribute to achieving change initiatives within the organization (Hong et al., 2023). This model includes five personality dimensions: extraversion, neuroticism, agreeableness, conscientiousness, and openness (Park & Woo, 2022). Extraversion refers to an individual's extroverted and social personality. Its characteristics include friendliness, assertiveness, and strong enthusiasm. It is considered a critical indication of social conduct and has been shown to improve decision-making spontaneity (Dan et al., 2021). Similarly, this trait has a favorable influence on technology that encourages social engagement (Maran et al., 2022). Agreeableness encompasses traits such as tact, friendliness, warmth, compassion, respect, and trustworthiness. Individuals with this trait tend to develop stronger social ties with organizational bodies while also positively impacting intuitive and reliant decision-making styles (Othman et al., 2020).

Conscientiousness refers to self-discipline and includes attributes such as organization, productivity, and accountability. Individuals with higher levels of this personality trait are most likely to engage in positive coping actions such as problem-focused planning and action (Kumari et al., 2022). Neuroticism refers to a person's ability to maintain stability and equilibrium and is connected with anxiety, sadness, and emotional volatility. It is observed that highly neurotic individuals are more inclined to withdraw and restrict their behavior in reaction to stimuli, making them less receptive to and willing to accept new ideas (Diller et al., 2020). They are believed to have low self-esteem and higher anxiety and should avoid leadership positions since they are unlikely to have optimistic future visions and may be too apprehensive to carry out transformational change initiatives (Schiuma et al., 2022).

Finally, open-mindedness reflects a person's willingness to consider different perspectives. Its characteristics include intellectual stimulation, aesthetic sensitivity, and imaginative ability. Individuals with a high level of openness are keener to explore new ideas and undertakings, making them more likely to embrace and use technology improvements (Zhang et al., 2019). Similarly, the openness trait plays an important role in growing leadership competence because leaders must

creatively face the state of the art and revamp models that foster technological experiences and transformation inside the organizational setting (Ayub et al., 2019). Accordingly, the importance of developing leadership capabilities is parallel to technological advancements to achieve business success while considering the role of personality traits in fostering supportive behavior toward change initiatives (Pradana & Mayasari, 2023). In essence, analyzing personality traits contributes to identifying a range of behaviors rather than a single outcome (Baruth & Cohen, 2023). Also, it plays a significant role in developing management capabilities (Lacam & Salvetat, 2023) to facilitate the changing environment (Erhan et al., 2022) such as AI transformation.

1.2 Timeliness of Investigation

AI, which is critical to the digital shift, is set for rapid global adoption, with an anticipated yearly increase of 52% by 2025, boosting company expansion (Baloch, 2023). To remain competitive, Pakistan must promote general knowledge and awareness about AI technology, while also supporting its development and implementation in critical areas to improve efficiency and cut costs organically (Tribune, 2022). Pakistan is facing challenges in transferring public and private institutions to digital interventions, including AI, with poor overall acceptance despite early measures taken in important departments (Imran & Haider, 2023). Moreover, Pakistan's 92nd rating in the Government AI Readiness Index also indicates a discrepancy between goals and accomplishments, highlighting the country's particular AI-focused challenges (Satti, 2024). It is observed that the transformational challenges include organizational adoption issues, management capability, acceptability challenges, and resistance by the bureaucratic structures, and lack of awareness and individual perception of technology (Nazir, 2023).

Pakistan needs to raise awareness and knowledge of AI technologies and their benefits and equip the workforce with the essential skills, capabilities, and expertise to engage in the AI ecosystem (Amin, 2023). Before landing on developing research labs, centers of excellence, or integrating AI technologies directly into business processes, cultivating a mindset shift in developing favorable attraction toward AI and disruptive technology (Alam, 2023). Therefore, examining the role of personality traits in developing leadership capabilities in the AI context might enrich knowledge about society's reaction to this technological intervention which will provide a broader perspective and deeper understanding of its successful execution. Our aim in the current research was to examine the impact of selected personal factors, in part to examine the interface between personality-driven AI leadership and AI transformation.

1.3 Contextual Analysis

1.3.1 AI in Pakistan

Like all the other passengers on this challenging journey towards the AI revolution, Pakistan aims to be at the forefront of the tech ecosystem. In terms of global AI readiness, Pakistan has an index score of 34.03 and ranks 117th out of 172 countries, according to Pakistan's AI policy (Amin, 2023). In context to the historical perspective, the following studies are conducted to investigate the AI phenomena across various sectors: The leading center for AI innovation, research, and training in Pakistan is NCAI (National Centre of Artificial Intelligence), which has its headquarters at the NUST (Umer et al., 2023). Because it promotes cooperation between academic institutions, businesses, and healthcare organizations, NCAI is essential to the integration of AI solutions in healthcare (Umer et al., 2023). Another study was conducted to investigate the application of AI on the performance of supply chains within the manufacturing sector (Nwagwu et al., 2023). Similarly, one school of thought acknowledges the impact of AI on the relationship between innovative financial processes and market share within the banking industry (Rabbani et al., 2023). Another aimed to understand the impact of AI on associating variables such as decision-making, laziness, and privacy concerns within the educational sector (Ahmad et al., 2023).

Correspondingly, one research aimed to explore the factors that might impact the acceptance of AI within the hospitality sector of Pakistan (Rasheed et al., 2023). Also, AI was explored to foster a circular economy transition to achieve sustainability within the agriculture sector (Ali et al., 2023). Other studies mainly focused on the use of cognitive technologies and machine learning concerning areas such as groundwater arsenic prediction (Iftikhar et al., 2020), optimizing school monitoring (Qureshi et al., 2019), mapping debris flow susceptibility (Qing et al., 2020), porosity estimation (Yasin et al., 2021), drought forecasting (Khan et al., 2020), stream-flow prediction (Tayyab et al., 2018), disease, and pest detection in rice crops (Burhan et al., 2020), crop disease diagnosis (Toseef & Khan, 2018), combating energy theft (Saeed et al., 2019), runoff prediction (Sibtain et al., 2020), and fake news classification (Kareem & Awan, 2019) are among the topics covered. These articles show the various applications of AI learning in Pakistan for enhancing decision-making, resource management, risk assessment, and detection procedures.

1.3.2 AI in the IT Industry

The introduction of a global digital landscape and its consistent evolution is driving the IT industry to stay on par with the exponential growth in technological innovation (Vijayakumar, 2023). Concerning the prior literature, the IT sector has acknowledged the transformational needs of clients in seeking AI-based solutions for their business optimization (Taherdoost, 2022). In the context of Pakistan's IT industry, approximately 600,000 individuals with functional expertise in AI-driven technologies are employed (Baloch, 2023). Annually, 25000 students who have received training in AI and related technologies also graduate with IT-based degrees (Sarkar, 2023). The information technology sector is the fastest growing in Pakistan and is leading the global AI revolution (Farooq et al., 2022). This industry involves re-engineering processes and systems to streamline business operations, help leverage new profit and market growth, and make use of AI technologies like machine learning and deep learning (Nazir & Gul, 2019).

AI transformation can facilitate the IT industry by developing new or upgrading its systems to achieve greater efficiency (Hassan et al., 2022). Statistics show that 48% of businesses employ AI techniques such as machine learning and data analytics (Baloch, 2023). Moreover, Pakistan is seeing a remarkable expansion in its exports of information technology (Qadir, 2019). Thus, local IT businesses can take advantage of new and varied prospects in the international market by incorporating AI transformation and developing qualified human capital (Schneider et al., 2023). The IT sector can benefit from AI transformation by creating new systems or improving existing ones to operate more effectively (Anagnostou et al., 2022). Furthermore, Pakistan's information technology exports are growing at an impressive rate (Mustafa & Hussain, 2023). Thus, by embracing AI transformation and cultivating skilled human capital, local IT enterprises can benefit from fresh and varied opportunities in the global market.

1.3.3 AI and Managers

Managers are at the vanguard of AI transformation within firms, carrying significant responsibility for negotiating its complexity (Fleming, 2020). As technology breakthroughs continue to transform sectors, managers' roles grow alongside them, needing a thorough awareness of AI's subtleties and ramifications (Baumann & Wu, 2023). At the very core of this change, there is the need for managers to develop a diverse skill set matched to the challenges presented by AI-driven ecosystems (Li, 2020). They have to not only understand the complexities of AI technology but also have the foresight to use them across many business areas strategically (McKendrick, 2019). This requires expertly coordinating the development, launch, and optimization of AI systems to align them with company goals and stakeholder requirements (Burkhardt et al., 2019). In the era of AI, proactive participation in decision-making procedures is necessary for strong management (He et al., 2023). Managers must use data-driven insights to spur innovation and improve operational effectiveness (Chaudhry & Chaudhry, 2023).

In addition, they have to cultivate an environment that values ongoing learning and adjustment, enabling groups to welcome new developments in AI and investigate novel opportunities for expansion and edge over competitors (Rožman et al., 2023). Moreover, managers are responsible for managing organizational resources and are crucial in directing expenditures toward AI projects that produce tangible advantages and promote long-term, sustainable growth (Vial et al., 2022). This calls for a thorough comprehension of risk management concepts and a readiness to negotiate the inherent risks in the application of AI. To ensure that AI technologies are used responsibly and following societal norms, managers play a key role in promoting openness and ethical stewardship in the adoption process (Madan & Ashok, 2023). By encouraging transparent communication and teamwork, they may reduce possible hazards and build confidence across stakeholders (Peifer et al., 2022), thereby laying the groundwork for morally good AI-driven changes. Fundamentally, the way management positions have changed in the AI era emphasizes how important it is to be flexible, always acquire knowledge, and lead with integrity. Managers can drive their businesses toward a future characterized by creativity, resilience, and sustainable growth by adopting these principles, which will help them traverse the challenges of AI transformation (Blundo et al., 2021).

1.4 Research Gaps

The present study endeavors to bridge gaps within the AI literature while seeking to open a venue for future research in creating the importance of personality-driven leadership capabilities to foster AI transformation.

1.4.1 Big Five Model and AI Literature

This study employed a widely acknowledged personality model, the Big Five Model (openness, conscientiousness, agreeableness, neuroticism, and extraversion), commonly used in mapping the personality traits of individuals across leadership effectiveness (Lee, 2022). Against the existing literature backdrop, it can be observed that this model has been studied to understand the

relationship of these personality traits with career thoughts (Coleman et al., 2023), burnout, turnover, performance and absenteeism (Angelini, 2023), guestroom technologies (Demirciftci et al., 2023), attitude towards digital work and work-life balance (Duan & Deng, 2023), open government data usage and acceptance (Schepman & Rodway, 2023), student satisfaction and online learning activities (Baruth & Cohen, 2023), entrepreneurial intention and information technology ventures (Elnadi & Gheith, 2023), emotional stability and mental health (Chen, 2023), work engagement and well-being (Chatterjee et al., 2023), internet addiction and social media addiction (Varchetta et al., 2023), information and technology usage (Bawack et al., 2021), big data orchestration (Lacam & Salvetat, 2023), technology adoption and innovativeness (Park & Woo, 2022), digital skills (Abbu et al., 2022), acceptance attitude towards AI, corporate distrust and general trust (Schepman & Rodway, 2023), internet self-efficacy, academic self-efficacy and practical performance anxiety (Hong et al., 2023), AI Chabot (Limna, 2022), ChatGPT (King, 2023), digital transformation and employee performance (Sagbas & Erdogan, 2022).

Following the thorough exploration and examination of these studies, the present research is poised to bridge the gap between personality traits and AI literature. According to one stream of literature, it is important to identify other characteristics including demographics, and personality features critical to leadership while digging deeper into the specificities of AI (Almeida et al., 2022). Similarly, another study acknowledged the possibility of using the Big Five model in identifying the relationship between traits, capabilities, perceptions, and technological transformation (Zhao et al., 2023). Thus, the current research gaps revolve around the impact of personality traits on AI leadership capability and AI transformation.

1.4.2 AI Leadership Capability and AI Transformation

Further delving into the integration of personality traits and AI literature, the research gap examines the impact of AI leadership capability on AI transformation. The lack of prior research on this idea in academic studies is notable, indicating a clear gap in the corpus of literature. One stream of literature investigates the impact of digital leadership on transformative initiatives within the construction industry (Zulu & Khosrowshahi, 2021). Similarly, another research highlights the implications, challenges, and opportunities of leadership in the AI realm (Fullan et al., 2023) while another study increases the importance of leaders in the digital era to invest in both hard and soft skills (Zhang & Chen, 2023). Other studies focused on the impact of leadership on ethical

ChatGPT (Crawford et al., 2023), green talent management (Asim et al., 2023), and innovative work behavior in AI-driven culture (Rožman et al., 2023), turnover and psychological safety (Kim & Cruz, 2022), employee attitude towards AI (Basu et al., 2023), sustainable performance and AI-focused culture (Munir et al., 2023).

In light of this, the prior study encourages the role of middle and top management capabilities in supporting a smooth transition concerning AI adoption within the business models and also developing effective internal mechanisms that will assist the AI implementation (Yu et al., 2023). Generally speaking, academics have linked obstacles like inadequate top-level management actions—where management's engagement, support, and leadership capability continue to be the most important success factors—to the difficult nature of adopting complex systems (Asim et al., 2023). Building upon the existing studies, another gap this study aims to address is the impact of AI leadership capability on the AI transformation within an organization.

1.4.3 Personality Traits and AI Transformation

By investigating the impact of individual personality traits on AI transformation within organizational contexts, this study aims to close a critical research gap and advance our understanding of the personality aspects impacting the phenomena of AI. Based on one study, it is critical to delve further into the characteristics of emerging technologies and find elements that will aid in the development of a framework that successfully explains the acceptance of novel technologies (Ahn & Chen, 2022). Regarding the previous research, there is a lot of scientific discourse about digital transformation, but not many of the studies were limited to AI transformation (Ali et al., 2023). Of the 52 papers that Andersson and Torkar (2022) found, 23% address the digital transformation of AI technologies, including AI, Big Data Analytics (BDA), and Data Analytics (DA), as well as other ideas like different smart industries (e.g Industry 4.0, smart manufacturing, and agriculture).

This leads to the premise that rather than focusing solely on the effects of AI tools or organizational outcomes, more research needs to be done on the elements or precursors that can promote AI transformation across organizations (Yu et al., 2023). Furthermore, it is uncertain how firms might use individuals to maximize the benefits of digital transformation and how individuals' personality traits and features can be compatible with the digital transformation ideology (Chatterjee et al., 2022). This will result in an increased understanding of leadership capabilities that will foster

transformation initiatives successfully (Taherizadeh & Beaudry, 2023). Therefore, the present study aims to bridge the gap by examining the impact of personality traits on AI transformation.

1.5 Problem Statement

AI has the potential to completely change the world and is strategically essential for businesses to stay competitive (Prather et al., 2023). Organizations must improve their ability to use AI technologies if they are to take advantage of the opportunities it presents. Regretfully, a lot of businesses still find it difficult to successfully adapt and use smart technologies (Simoes et al., 2022). Implementing AI might be challenging due to its technical aspects and expertise needs. Substantial obstacles still exist because, just 8% of businesses successfully integrate AI into their primary business processes, and the majority of companies only implement AI on a single pilot basis (Ammer et al., 2023). The main obstacle to AI transformation is a lack of professional knowledge and expertise in the field (Rozman et al., 2023). Since AI systems do not yet possess the fundamental qualities of the human intellect, AI algorithms will not generate definitive answers but rather provisional ones (such as probability-based prediction), which call for human justification, illustration, and intervention to yield precise and worthwhile outcomes (Lu et al., 2022).

Having said that, AI transformation success hinges on human aspects, including experts, employees, leader capabilities within the firm, and so forth (Venumuddala & Kamath, 2023). The resolution of management issues, such as the restructuring of organizational capacities, human resources, and business processes, depends more on the successful AI transformation (Bharadiya & Bharadiya, 2023). This requires the support of upper management (Nuaimi et al., 2022). However, the majority of leaders are either unprepared for AI technology or lack the requisite skills, expertise, or awareness of AI transformation, which leaves them with an inadequate grasp of the potential benefits of AI transformation (Kollmann et al., 2023). It fails to endorse the AI transformation because the organization's aspirations of AI are higher than its capacity, or because closing the gap between present and necessary AI capabilities is challenging (Lu et al., 2022).

In the context of the IT sector, the ethical implications of AI technology are one of the main concerns (Varsha, 2023). This includes worries about data security and privacy, prejudice and fairness in AI systems (Gupta & Jain, 2023), and the possible effects of AI on employment and jobs (Stahl, 2021). The explication and openness of AI systems provide additional difficulties, and

policy and regulatory issues must be taken into account to guarantee the responsible development and application of AI (Robinson, 2020). Additionally, the sector is facing a skills shortage and intense competition for the best talent due to the increased need for qualified workers with expertise in AI and machine learning (Santana & Fernandez, 2023). All of these problems provide formidable obstacles for businesses trying to use AI while managing moral, legal, and personnelrelated difficulties (Aguinis et al., 2024).

The IT sector could face serious repercussions if it does not adopt AI transformation. If AI's ability to solve prevalent challenges isn't made more widely known, business society might lose out on prospects for long-term development (Ajami & Karimi, 2023). Effective adoption of AI lack technology may be hampered by a lack of trained human resources and data availability for AI training (Neumann et al., 2022). This could lead to a lack of readiness for the disruption that AI would bring to conventional work practices, which could result in job losses and unstable socioeconomic conditions (Budhwar et al., 2022). If these issues are not resolved quickly, the IT sector may find it more difficult to compete globally and survive in the increasingly digitally altered environment.

Subsequently, understanding the influence of AI on business expansion as well as innovation requires research into the IT industry (Lee et al., 2023). The sector's rapid growth, particularly in nations such as Pakistan, highlights the importance of understanding how AI is employed (Nazir, 2023). Insights gained from such studies can help organizations and policymakers make strategic decisions that boost competitiveness. Furthermore, researching AI in the IT sector provides significant insights into developing trends and technologies around the globe (Hamza, 2021). Research findings may shape policy decisions, fostering an atmosphere conducive to AI implementation and innovation (Amin, 2023). Local IT enterprises must be equipped with AI technology and qualified staff to compete globally, rendering research in this field critical to generating growth and innovation (Aleezay, 2023).

1.6 Research Objectives

RO1. To examine the impact of personality trait openness on AI leadership capability in the IT industry.

RO2. To examine the impact of personality trait agreeableness on AI leadership capability in the IT industry.

RO3. To examine the impact of personality trait conscientiousness on AI leadership capability in the IT industry.

RO4. To examine the impact of personality trait extraversion on AI leadership capability in the IT industry.

RO5. To examine the impact of personality trait neuroticism on AI leadership capability in the IT industry.

RO6. To examine AI leadership capability impact on the AI transformation in the IT industry.

RO7. To examine the mediating effect of AI leadership capability on the relationship between openness and AI transformation in the IT industry.

RO8. To examine the mediating effect of AI leadership capability on the relationship between agreeableness and AI transformation in the IT industry.

RO9. To examine the mediating effect of AI leadership capability on the relationship between conscientiousness and AI transformation in the IT industry.

RO10. To examine the mediating effect of AI leadership capability on the relationship between extraversion and AI transformation in the IT industry.

RO11. To examine the mediating effect of AI leadership capability on the relationship between neuroticism and AI transformation in the IT industry.

1.7 Research Questions

RQ1. Does personality trait openness have an impact on AI leadership capability in the IT industry?

RQ2. Does personality trait agreeableness have an impact on AI leadership capability in the IT industry?

RQ3. Does personality trait conscientiousness have an impact on AI leadership capability in the IT industry?

RQ4. Does personality trait extraversion have an impact on AI leadership capability in the IT industry?

RQ5. Does personality trait neuroticism have an impact on AI leadership capability in the IT industry?

RQ6. Does AI leadership capability impact the AI transformation in the IT industry?

RQ7. Does AI leadership capability mediate the relationship between openness and AI transformation in the IT industry?

RQ8. Does AI leadership capability mediate the relationship between agreeableness and AI transformation in the IT industry?

RQ9. Does AI leadership capability mediate the relationship between conscientiousness and AI transformation in the IT industry?

RQ10. Does AI leadership capability mediate the relationship between extraversion and AI transformation in the IT industry?

RQ11. Does AI leadership capability mediate the relationship between neuroticism and AI transformation in the IT industry?

1.8 Significance of Study

The primary goal of this research was to investigate the causal relationships between personality traits (openness, agreeableness, conscientiousness, extraversion, and neuroticism), AI leadership capability and AI transformation. By doing this, the current study closes gaps in the literature on AI because, as of yet, no study has been conducted on all of the linkages mentioned in the research framework.

1.8.1 Theoretical Significance

This study introduces the operationalization of two new constructs: AI leadership capability and AI transformation. To define these constructs, the existing operationalization of digital leadership and digital transformation was considered. Ultimately, this study will make meaningful contributions to the domain of AI by opening avenues toward the integration of leadership studies with machine learning. Notably, this study examined the positive association between the two constructs, indicating the importance of AI leadership in driving successful AI transformation within organizational settings. Also, it introduces AI leadership capability as a potential mediator when studying the concept of AI through the lens of psychological studies. The present study also

highlighted that agreeableness and conscientiousness personality traits play a significant role in the development of AI leadership capability. This fusion of personality traits with AI will allow researchers, scholars, and theorists to delve deeper to understand this connection as combining technical expertise with abilities tailored through these traits will guide AI transformation to success while observing the ethical and societal implications.

1.8.2 Practical Significance

The study provides practical implications for IT companies and the government of Pakistan. Findings suggested that Pakistani IT-based companies should consider personality-driven AI leadership important if they anticipate effectively proceeding with AI initiatives. It is suggested that organizations should invest in designing leadership development programs or training workshops to enhance personality traits and equip leaders with abilities to manage AI transformation. These programs will contribute to helping managerial employees develop abilities while considering these traits to effectively navigate the dynamic nature of AI technology. Similarly, government should sponsor and fund leadership development programs to help managers develop AI leadership capabilities crucial to AI transformation. They should also invest in the R&D institutions to empower future researchers in studying psychological studies to build AI-focused cultures within the organization.

1.9 Research Scope

The research undertaken in this thesis embarks on an extensive and detailed examination of the profound impact of integrating personality-driven AI leadership on the AI transformation, with a particular emphasis on its application within the IT industry. Andersson and Torkar (2022) notes that AI is a nascent field of interdisciplinary research with vast and versatile characteristics. The primary objective of this study is to meticulously examine the impact of each trait in the development of AI leadership capability of the leaders who will be the AI advocates or change agents in promising successful AI transformation within the organizations. According to an empirical study, those with managerial or leadership positions—such as CEOs—may be more likely to have personality traits that support the AI transformation of companies (Zhu & Zhang, 2022).

The study will further delve into analyzing the existing literature to develop an understanding of the proposed relationships in the research framework. Moreover, it aims to broaden the AI literature by raising awareness regarding the importance of examining the antecedents of AI transformation. By bridging the gap between personality-driven leadership capability and AI transformation, this study aims to offer practical and theoretical insights for leaders in navigating the evolving technological landscape of Pakistan's IT industry.

For the execution of the current study, managers were approached as they have total involvement in the company's transformational activities, and the fact that they are in a decision-making position, therefore being responsible for the strategies that the organization sets (Sow & Aborbie, 2018). In short, managers will act as AI champions or AI advocates for the successful integration of AI transformation within the IT industry.

1.10 Operationalization of Variables

1.10.1 Openness

Openness was characterized by the Big-Five Personality theory's founders as a trait involving intellectual curiosity, valuing innovation, and flexibility (Costa & McCrae, 1992). In this research, this variable was operationalized as AI leaders encapsulating a receptive attitude, a passion for innovation, and a desire for intellectual exploration, leading to AI transformation.

1.10.2 Agreeableness

Agreeableness was characterized by the Big-Five Personality theory's founders as a trait indicating individuals 'level of cooperation, affection, and civility (Costa & McCrae, 1992). In this research, this variable was operationalized as AI leaders encouraging collaborative efforts and harmonious connections crucial for furthering AI transformation.

1.10.3 Conscientiousness

Conscientiousness was characterized by the Big-Five Personality theory's founders as a trait comprising attention to detail, self-inspection, and effective organization (Costa & McCrae, 1992). In this research, this variable was operationalized as AI leaders driving AI transformation by meticulous attention to detail, continuous self-inspection and efficient administration.

1.10.4 Extraversion

Extraversion was characterized by the Big-Five Personality theory's founders as individuals encompassing outgoing and gregarious personality, the ability to hold conversations naturally, and unparalleled sensitivity to positive emotions (Costa & McCrae, 1992). In this research, this

variable was operationalized as AI leaders bringing high energy and excelling in dynamic social settings, fostering collaboration and innovation crucial for AI transformation.

1.10.5 Neuroticism

Neuroticism was characterized by the Big-Five Personality theory's founders as negative emotions including anxiety, insecurity, and dismay as well as emotional instability (Costa & McCrae, 1992). In this research, this variable was operationalized as AI leaders experiencing anxiety, insecurity, and depression, impacting their psychological stability and decision-making critical to AI transformation.

1.10.6 AI Leadership Capability

The current research defines this construct by adapting to the operationalization of digital leadership, "Digital leadership has been defined as individuals who add value to the organizations by combining the abilities of the leaders with digital technologies" (Erhan et al., 2022, p. 1527). In this study, we operationalize this construct as individuals who add value to organizations by combining the abilities of leaders with AI technologies.

1.10.7 AI Transformation

Digital transformation is defined as, "The use of digital technologies to create new or modify existing business models and processes or to support the transformation of organizational structures, resources, or relationships with internal and external actors" (Zomer et al., 2020, p. 1098). Consequently, this study defines AI transformation in light of digital transformation as the application of AI technologies to develop new and modify existing business models and processes, structures, or relationships with internal and external agents to achieve work-related outcomes.

1.11 Organization of Thesis

This thesis comprises a total of five chapters dedicated to examining the causal relationships proposed in the research framework. To begin with, *Chapter 1* served as an introduction to the thesis by covering the research background, contextual analysis, research gaps, problem statement, significance of the study, research scope, research objectives, research questions, and operationalization of the variables.

Next, *Chapter 2* covered a comprehensive analysis of existing literature by comprehensively discussing the operationalization of each variable, underpinning theory, developing eleven

hypotheses, and illustrating the conceptual framework. This chapter significantly contributed to comprehensively understanding the research variables and the causal relationships between them.

In *Chapter 3*, the focus shifts to the methodology section of the thesis. This chapter starts with the illustration of the research onion that highlights the method, strategy, horizon, philosophy, and approach used for the execution of this study. It further discusses the ideology behind employing these elements. Later in the chapter, sample size, target, data collection procedures, measures, and ethical considerations are comprehensively discussed.

Chapter 4 presents the research results by covering the demographic analysis and data analysis conducted through partial least squares structural equation modeling (PLS-SEM). The first stage entailed testing the measurement model that included internal consistency reliability, convergent validity (CV), and discriminant validity (DV), while the second stage encompassed the assessment of the structural model (hypotheses testing).

Lastly, *Chapter 5* served as the final chapter of this thesis encompassing valuable and comprehensive findings of the research while also highlighting the theoretical and managerial implications of the study. The chapter concludes by highlighting the limitations, future recommendations, and conclusion of the study.

Chapter 2

LITERATURE REVIEW

2.1 Introduction

This section serves as a guide for understanding the intricate interplay of personality traits with the developing field of AI. The research structure, as shown in Figure 2.1, exposes the variables critical to the investigation of this study. Using the well-known Big Five Model as a guide, my work seeks to elucidate the deep impact of these traits in fostering leadership capabilities required for leading AI development across organizational landscapes. This chapter demonstrates the dedication by methodically formulating research hypotheses based on a synthesis of existing literature and empirical studies. This part methodically carves a road from genesis to definition, revealing the subtle relationships between various pieces. It delves into the conceptualization of variables and anchors them inside their underlying theories. This convergence of study conceptualization and personality exploration emerges as a nexus within the ever-evolving integration of AI, putting a light on the core elements of AI leadership capabilities and their transformational potential. Through this, we hope to learn how the different attributes of openness, neuroticism, extraversion, agreeableness, and conscientiousness impact and potentially determine the trajectory of AI transformation, with AI leadership poised as a mediator within this dynamic ecosystem.

2.2 Research Conceptualization

2.2.1 Personality Traits

Personality trait is referred to as the propensity for people to act consistently in different contexts (Harirchian et al., 2022). Although there are many personality traits that are instigated with respect to organizational effectiveness and efficiency, the five traits that are predominantly discussed in the context include: extraversion, agreeableness, conscientiousness, neuroticism, and openness (Ayub et al., 2019).

2.2.1.1 Openness

One of the fundamental characteristics of openness in personality psychology is an individual's inclination to welcome change and to venture outside their comfort zones to experience a wide range of ideas, feelings, and experiences (McCrae & Costa, 1983). Openness has been extensively researched and linked to several positive outcomes, such as increased creativity, curiosity,
adaptability, mental flexibility, and acceptance of others (Jirjahn & Ottenbacher, 2023). People with high openness tend to think creatively and are open to receiving unusual ideas, which encourages creativity and problem-solving skills (Li et al., 2014). Additionally, their mental dexterity makes it possible for them to navigate difficult and unpredictable situations with skill, which supports effective leadership characterized by openness to criticism, wise judgment, and sympathetic response to others (Knaps, 2015). One aspect of this quality is openness to experience, which shows how open a person is to change, intellectual challenge, and cultural discovery (Schwaba et al., 2018).

Moreover, individuals with high openness scores tend to be more imaginative, artistic, and creative thinkers, which promotes both personal development and career success (Nieß & Zacher, 2015). In multicultural environments, their capacity to reconcile divergent cultural beliefs and adjust to novel circumstances is especially advantageous, augmenting organizational efficiency and fostering intercultural proficiency (Chiaburu et al., 2011). For this research, Costa and McCrae's (1992) definition of openness trait was adopted who defined this trait as entailing intellectual curiosity, valuing innovation, and flexibility. Consequently, we operationalized this variable as AI leaders encapsulating a receptive attitude, a passion for innovation, and a desire for intellectual exploration, leading to AI transformation.

2.2.1.2 Extraversion

An individual's propensity for good emotional experiences and social connection is embodied in extraversion, a fundamental trait of personality (McCrae & John, 1992). Individuals with strong extraversion typically display traits like friendliness, confidence, and eagerness to interact with others (McCrae & Costa, 1987). They flourish in social environments, frequently having more expansive social networks and interacting with others with enthusiasm and optimism (McCrae & Costa, 1985). Their inclination toward friendliness and assertiveness not only determines their external appearance but also how they plan events and handle social settings with assurance and comfort (Angelini, 2023).

Additionally, research indicates that extraverted people typically feel less stressed during difficult or stressful situations, possibly because they have wider social circles and a more optimistic view on life (Leger et al., 2016; Strickhouser et al., 2017). Warmth, gregariousness, assertiveness, activity, excitement-seeking, and pleasant emotions are some of the traits that make up

extraversion, which is an externally expressive and gregarious personality type (John & Srivastava, 1999). Extraverts differ from introverts, who may have a preference for seclusion, seriousness, and task-oriented behavior, in that extroverts are more at ease in social situations and have a greater desire for stimulation and fun (Pervin et al., 2005). To put it simply, extraversion is a range of characteristics that include social interaction as well as an individual's general outlook on life, which is marked by zeal, optimism, and a preference for human connection. For this research, Costa and McCrae's (1992) definition of extraversion trait was adopted who defined this trait as individuals encompassing outgoing and gregarious personality, the ability to hold conversations naturally, and unparalleled sensitivity to positive emotions. Consequently, we operationalized this variable as AI leaders bringing high energy and excelling in dynamic social settings, fostering collaboration and innovation crucial for AI transformation.

2.2.1.3 Neuroticism

Neuroticism, often synonymous with emotional instability, has a big impact on how people react to stressors, and this is especially true when faced with obstacles and unknowns (Widiger & Oltmanns, 2017). High neuroticism makes a person more susceptible to threat cues, which makes them more likely to worry excessively and dwell on past events (Regzedmaa et al., 2024). Lack of control over one's psychological condition is how this trait shows up, which leads to emotional instability and unhealthy coping techniques (Pervin et al., 2005). These people struggle to successfully control their negative emotions and exhibit elevated levels of anxiety, anger, despair, and self-pity (Zaki et al., 2024). An individual's susceptibility to stress disorders and emotional reactivity is influenced by a variety of traits that make up neuroticism, including anxiety, anger, despair, self-consciousness, impulsiveness, and vulnerability (Jirjahn & Ottenbacher, 2023).

Conversely, individuals with lower levels of neuroticism exhibit greater emotional resilience and adaptability to stressors (Pervin et al., 2005). They tend to maintain a calmer demeanor, experience less emotional volatility, and demonstrate a greater sense of self-assurance and contentment (Pervin et al., 2005). This contrast in neuroticism levels underscores differing responses to perceived threats, with individuals scoring lower on this trait typically exhibiting a more relaxed and stable emotional disposition (Zaki et al., 2024). Understanding the role of neuroticism in shaping individuals' anxiety responses provides insights into tailoring interventions and support systems to mitigate the adverse effects of stressors, particularly during challenging times

(Regzedmaa et al., 2024). For this research, Costa and McCrae's (1992) definition of neuroticism trait was adopted who defined this trait as negative emotions including anxiety, insecurity, and dismay as well as emotional instability. Consequently, we operationalized this variable as AI leaders experiencing anxiety, insecurity, and depression, impacting their psychological stability and decision-making critical to AI transformation.

2.2.1.4 Agreeableness

Within the framework of the Big Five paradigm, agreeableness is a key personality trait that includes a variety of aspects, including warmth, friendliness, altruism, trust, and goodness (McCrae & John, 1992). It distinguishes between people's pro-social inclinations, collaboration, empathy, and desire for interpersonal harmony (Costa & McCrae, 1992; Goldberg, 1990). Individuals that score high in agreeableness tend to be warm, gregarious, trustworthy, and cooperative, and tend toward acceptance, generosity, and politeness (Costa et al., 1995). This characteristic shows a desire to fit in with others, placing a high value on preserving harmonious relationships and restraining aggressive actions (Butrus & Witenberg, 2013). Additionally, these individuals demonstrate better perspective-taking skills, which allow them to view situations from the viewpoints of others (Chopik et al., 2017), and they are more likely to show emotions that are directed toward other people and pay attention to others with empathy (Graziano et al., 2007).

Moreover, agreeableness has been linked to advantages for mental and physical health, promoting positive interpersonal interactions and increased flexibility (Zhao et al. 2022). Its focus on prosocial conduct and interpersonal harmony points to its significance in fostering favorable social relationships and reducing conflict, both of which improve general well-being (Butrus & Witenberg, 2013). This trait emphasizes how important it is to promote cooperative and sympathetic attitudes in social situations, as these attitudes eventually shape people's social behaviors and interpersonal dynamics (Feng et al., 2024). For this research, Costa and McCrae's (1992) definition of agreeableness trait was adopted who defined this trait as indicating individuals 'level of cooperation, affection, and civility. Consequently, this variable was operationalized as AI leaders encouraging collaborative efforts and harmonious connections crucial for furthering AI transformation.

2.2.1.5 Conscientiousness

Conscientiousness, a key element of the Big Five personality paradigm, refers to traits like diligence, self-control, and dependability that foster greater efficacy and productivity at work (Costa et al., 1991). It also includes a person's organizational strategy, resiliency, and drive for success (Barrick et al., 2002; Roberts et al., 2005). Achievement orientation, which stresses personal advancement and career aspirations (Chae et al., 2019), and duty orientation, which places a focus on social responsibility and accountability to others, are two ways in which this trait is expressed (Becker, 1998).

Highly conscientious people prefer to obey rules and regulations and pay great attention to detail (Barrick and Mount, 1991). Along with demonstrating self-control, self-motivation, and efficient resource allocation to achieve preset goals (Ocampo et al., 2020), these people also frequently show higher goal commitment (Barrick et al., 1993). They are compelled to adapt to organizational changes, such as the introduction of new technology, by their intrinsic need for self-control and perfection (Mateo et al., 2024). On the other hand, individuals who possess high levels of conscientiousness contribute to the achievement of organizational goals by maintaining emotional stability, enhancing productivity, and fostering a sense of commitment and purpose (Costa et al., 1991).

Conscious people are great assets in the workplace because they are driven to continuously improve their knowledge and abilities (Li et al., 2024). Nevertheless, recent studies have highlighted potential drawbacks of high conscientiousness, such as increased stress from negative feedback and worsened mental health, suggesting a deeper comprehension of its effects on individual experiences and outcomes (LePine et al., 2000; Li et al., 2024). For this research, Costa and McCrae's (1992) definition of conscientiousness trait was adopted who defined this trait as comprising attention to detail, self-inspection, and effective organization (Costa & McCrae, 1992). Consequently, this variable was operationalized as AI leaders driving AI transformation by meticulous attention to detail, continuous self-inspection and efficient administration.

2.2.1.6 AI Leadership Capability

Taherizadeh and Beaudry (2023), define leadership capability in the context of AI-driven digital processes as the ability to explicitly engage and coordinate with employees to execute transformational initiatives, as well as visionary guidance and commitment to

foster a learning culture including eagerness to learn, change management, collaboration, and consistent growth. Similarly, Svetlana et al. (2022) study suggests that the integration of AI and humans will contribute to greater results as the task nature might require creativity and interpersonal and intuitive capabilities of leadership. Furthermore, the integration of AI and leader capability is characterized to foster organizational growth, and competitiveness, while providing the capacity to achieve business optimization and effectively mitigating the risks of the AI ecosystem (Allioui & Mourdi, 2023).

In any case, such AI-focused leadership capabilities play a pivotal role in bringing about the transformation because they are the change agents with a transformative vision (Ellström et al., 2022) and a proactive perspective which is essential for driving change in volatile circumstances (Konopik et al., 2022). While researchers primarily agree on the relevance of AI capabilities, the present literature does not provide a comprehensive understanding of what they include (Sjödin et al., 2021). The current research defines this construct by adapting to the operationalization of digital leadership, "Digital leadership has been defined as individuals who add value to the organizations by combining the abilities of the leaders with digital technologies" (Erhan et al., 2022, p. 1527). The current study operationalizes this construct as individuals' ability to strategically combine AI tools with their leadership capabilities to add value to their organization.

2.2.1.7 AI Transformation

With the emergence of innovative digital technologies (e.g., AI and big data analytics), organizational change has regained traction under the umbrella of digital transformation (Cegarra et al., 2020). Digital transformation is defined as, "The use of digital technologies to create new or modify existing business models and processes or to support the transformation of organizational structures, resources, or relationships with internal and external actors" (Zomer et al., 2020, p. 1098). AI transformation is considered the fundamental constituent of digital transformation (Okunlaya et al., 2022; Saurabh et al., 2022), so this study defines AI transformation as the application of AI technologies to transform existing business models and processes, structures, or relationships with internal agents to achieve work-related outcomes. AI technologies are broadly categorized as machine learning, computer vision, natural language processing (NLP), deep learning, and context-sensitive processing, which can be integrated to create answers for a variety of business concerns (Mannuru et al., 2023). AI technologies are characterized to help

organizations become more efficient, productive, and cost-effective while also improving the quality of their goods and services (Choung et al., 2022). With the evolution of processing speed and communication bandwidth increase, hardware and storage costs have decreased; AI Transformation has become vital for companies to adapt to the new domain to remain competitive and effectively manage the associated risks (Vijayakumar, 2023). Consequently, AI technology focuses primarily on two areas: company operation refinement through progressive optimization and the use of AI transformation to revolutionize business models, produce innovative organizational strategies and cultures, build business partnerships, and so on (Lu et al., 2022).

2.3 Underpinning Theory

2.3.1 Big Five Model

The Big Five model, which comprises five dimensions—extroversion, agreeableness, openness, conscientiousness, and neuroticism—was first proposed by McCrae and Costa (1987) and is the most popular and well-validated taxonomy of personality traits (Lee, 2022). This model is considered one of the universally accepted models to study and assess an individual's distinct personality (Diller et al., 2020). Based on their distinctive actions, ideas, and feelings, individuals can be categorized along a continuum represented by each trait (Becker et al., 2023). Social psychology research has shown that personality traits can impact an individual's feelings, ideas, and behaviors as well as shape their beliefs and conduct in a variety of contexts, including sociocultural, familial, social, and geographical aspects of life (Gokoglan & Bekar, 2021).

In our study, this model was incorporated to investigate the role of these five universally accepted traits in the development of AI leadership capabilities that facilitate AI transformation within the organization. An individual entailing the personality trait of openness indicates frequent engagement in and seeking novel experiences and information (Park & Woo, 2022). Thus, employees high in this personality trait will develop capabilities to embrace technological innovation (Abbate et al., 2022). In contrast, people high in neuroticism appear to be stressed when exposed to new experiences (Park & Woo, 2022), thus inhibiting the capability of leadership to execute successful AI transformation. However, employees who appear to be extroverts place greater value on interpersonal relationships, which are considered rewarding and associated with positive emotions (Harirchian et al., 2022). It can be deduced that this personality trait will result

in the development of capabilities that associate positive emotional reactions with AI transformation (Jarrahi et al., 2022).

Similarly, individuals high in agreeableness will feel more motivated to not only maintain positive relations with others but also respond proactively to conflicted situations (Park & Woo, 2022). Although conflicting arguments have been proposed concerning the role of this trait in developing leadership capability, we propose it positively contributes to the development of AI leadership capability when technology is perceived as useful or as a way to achieve behaviours that are crucial for sustainability and profitability. Lastly, individuals high in conscientiousness have a greater need for achievement (Krzeminska & Rzeznik, 2021). This will contribute towards greater AI-focused capabilities that contribute to AI transformation within the organization.

2.3.2 Self-Determination Theory - SDT

To explain the current research framework, this study employed a supporting theory that is widely used in management and organizational studies. Self-determination theory (SDT) is defined as a characteristic of human behavior that includes a sense of choice (Deci & Ryan, 1985). The theory assumes that individuals are naturally curious, seek coherence, and enjoy productivity (Vreede et al., 2021). According to Deci and Ryan (1985), all individuals regardless of cultural or contextual influences appear to possess three core and universally recognized psychological needs: autonomy, competence, and relatedness. Autonomy is defined as an individual's capability to regulate their behaviors and actions (Deci et al., 1989). Similarly, competency is defined as an individual's belief in their capabilities to thrive when engaged in tasks within their expertise (Deci & Ryan, 1985). Moreover, relatedness is defined as an individual's sense of identity and connection to others who share similar principles (Deci et al., 1991). Although these psychological needs are interconnected and complimentary, they can also exist separately and impact individuals differently (Vreede et al., 2021).

SDT is commonly employed in human-computer interaction studies to enhance user interactions with technology (Bingley et al., 2023). In context to the current research framework, the relationship between the five personality traits, AI leadership capability, and AI transformation is examined through the lens of SDT. While openness may largely encourage curiosity and exploration (Raya et al., 2023), which might coincide with a desire for autonomy, it also promotes competence by pushing people to learn new things and skills, developing a sense of mastery (Ryan

& Ryan, 2019). In context to this, managers with a high level of openness are more likely to be intrinsically motivated (Tan et al., 2016) by the possibility of engaging with emerging AI technologies and approaches, considering their passion for new ideas and readiness to experiment with novel techniques. Similarly, leaders with a high level of openness can use these characteristics to drive AI transformation by supporting experimentation with novel solutions (Tzouganatou, 2021), boosting innovation, and pushing all stakeholders to try unconventional methods for resolving issues (Cui et al., 2022). Ultimately, they promote autonomy by allowing team members to investigate AI technologies and solutions that correspond with their expertise and capabilities.

Conscientious individuals, who are known for their thoroughness, organization, and attention to detail, foster a sense of competence (Fan et al., 2023), as well as competence within SDT by striving to reach high standards and achieve their goals (Moore et al., 2020). So conscientious managers will play an important role in AI transformation by making sure that endeavors are meticulously planned, effectively implemented, and follow ethical guidelines. By offering organized direction and resources (Mateo et al., 2024), they will enable team members to excel at AI-related jobs while also supporting autonomy by defining clear expectations, and allowing employees to take responsibility for their participation in AI initiatives.

Similarly, extraversion, defined as friendliness, determination, and enthusiasm (Rodrigues et al., 2024), is correlated with meeting the desire for relatedness according to SDT. Extraverted managers will use these traits to effectively communicate the vision and advantages of AI transformation to all the stakeholders including employees. They increase relatedness and teamwork by creating an empowering and inclusive workplace, hence increasing motivation (Xia et al., 2022) and involvement in AI activities. They also provide possibilities for social engagement and collaborative problem-solving, which promotes team members' autonomy and competency (Bergdahl et al., 2023).

Agreeableness, which is defined by attributes including cooperation, empathy, and compassion (Zaki et al., 2024), meets the demand for relatedness in the context of SDT. Agreeable managers use this quality to foster the collaborative and supportive atmosphere (Pisanu et al., 2024) required for effective AI transformation. They encourage teamwork, respect differing perspectives, and develop a feeling of belonging, all of which promote affiliation among team members (Feng et al.,

2024). Thus, they will encourage and promote stakeholders who will lend their unique abilities and insights to AI initiatives, promoting autonomy and competence.

Lastly, neuroticism, defined by emotional instability and a proclivity to experience negative emotions such as anxiety and tension, can impede the fulfillment of psychological requirements (Regzedmaa et al., 2024). So managers with low neuroticism show endurance and emotional stability, which are essential for managing the complex tapestry of AI transformation. They reduce stress and anxiety by creating an encouraging and supportive work atmosphere (Caci et al., 2020), while also increasing autonomy, competence, and relatedness among employees.

2.4 Hypotheses Development

2.4.1 Openness and AI Leadership Capability

Empirical study suggests that individuals who tend to display a high level of openness are more eager to explore new ideas and endeavors, making them more susceptible to embracing and utilizing technological advancements (Zhang et al., 2019). Additionally, they enjoy speculating and solving challenging and unusual situations and tend to collect, analyze, and apply information that differs from their preconceived notions (Robinson, 2020). In essence, individuals with this personality trait are more capable of recognizing and accepting these emerging phenomena or developments as valuable (Maran et al., 2022). Similarly, the existing literature also acknowledges the role of openness in developing leadership capability as leaders are required to creatively confront the state of the art and revamp models that will promote technological experiences and transformation within the organizational setting (Ayub et al., 2019). Previous studies suggest that leaders with unique traits, mindsets, and competence are required to facilitate the application of new processes and methods to initiate sustainable changes and build relationships to foresee key shifts in technological evolution (Sun & Shang 2019). Put simply, openness is crucial for adapting to changing technological landscapes by seeking unconventional solutions, fostering collaboration, and driving innovation.

From the Big Five model perspective, it can be inferred that openness, defined by curiosity and adaptability, plays a significant role in the development of AI leadership capability. This trait may stimulate the development of AI leadership by instilling a desire to seek new ideas, embrace change, and learn different perspectives. Ultimately, in the AI realm, leaders with this personality trait are more likely to encourage innovative problem-solving, successfully adapt AI-focused

strategies, and steer the entire organization to achieve successful AI outcomes. Therefore, we anticipate that this personality trait will favorably contribute to the development of AI leadership capabilities since those with high openness are encouraged to explore novel pursuits and demonstrate greater trust in unfamiliar agents. Similarly, the openness trait appears to address all of the outlined psychological needs in SDT, as managers high in openness trait will establish environments in which all stakeholders are empowered and can participate in AI initiatives independently, continually enhance their capabilities, and collaborate effectively, resulting in successful AI transformation.

H1. Managers with higher levels of openness trait will demonstrate greater AI leadership capabilities.

2.4.2 Neuroticism and AI Leadership Capability

Empirical evidence suggests that negative emotions are usually attributed to neuroticism, and those who exhibit this personality trait are more vulnerable to danger and punishment than others (Bandera & Passerini, 2020). Subsequently, highly neurotic individuals are more likely to retreat and restrict their behavior in response to stimuli, making them less open to and less willing to accept new ideas (Diller et al., 2020). Simply put, they are seen through the world's pessimistic lens and seem to be opting to operate in environments that foster detrimental consequences (Diller et al., 2020). In line with this, highly neurotic individuals, known to have low self-esteem and higher anxiety, should avoid leadership roles, as they are unlikely to hold optimistic future perspectives and might be too anxious to execute transformational change initiatives (Schiuma et al., 2022). In contrast, low neurotic leaders are less prone to anxiety about upholding safety as they they view novel initiatives more favorably and experience less stress when confronting challenging settings (Diller et al., 2020). Building on this premise, it can be assumed that this personality trait can inhibit the development of leadership capability by applying more stress, impetuous decisionmaking, and failure to control emotions. Subsequently, low-neurotic leaders can effectively handle pressure and take calculated risks, both of which are crucial for effective leadership administration.

According to the Big Five personality traits model, the neuroticism personality trait, defined as emotional instability, appears to adversely impact AI leadership by exposing AI leaders to stress and inconsistencies. It can be assumed that AI leaders high in neuroticism result in greater stress levels and inhibit decision-making in the volatile AI ecosystem. Conversely, it can be assumed that AI leaders with low neuroticism can exhibit resilient behaviors to change initiatives and, despite facing setbacks, show commitment to organizational goals. Similarly, low levels of neurotic traits promote AI leadership capabilities by supporting autonomy, competence, and relatedness, as described by SDT. Managers with low neurotic traits are proficient in overcoming problems, maintaining confidence and resilience, and developing healthy relationships among employees, resulting in successful AI adoption. Therefore, we anticipate that low-neurotic leaders will be more favorable for the development of AI leadership capabilities.

H2. Managers with lower levels of neurotic traits will demonstrate greater AI leadership capabilities.

2.4.3 Extraversion and AI Leadership Capability

According to earlier studies, extroverted people are substantially more likely to be persuaded by favorable information than by unfavorable information and are eager to take the lead (Simic et al., 2022). High extroverts are better equipped to weigh the benefits and drawbacks of a particular situation (Othman et al., 2020). Simply put, extraversion is the key indicator of social behavior and has a positive effect on the spontaneity of decision-making. (Tao et al., 2020). About leadership studies, the extraversion trait appears to be frequently studied across numerous leadership criteria, as the ideal leadership profile includes an open and relationship-oriented leader, who is extraverted, has proficiency in social skills, is change-oriented, and has minimal traces of anxiety (Dan et al., 2021). Existing literature acknowledges the association of this trait with positive emotions and also informs about extraverts taking on more leadership roles while feeling more secure in social settings (Aydogmus et al., 2018). Researchers in the field of AI development assume that high extroverts often place significant value on interpersonal connections since they consider themselves to be valuable and are inclined to feel positive emotions (Krzeminska & Rzeznik, 2021). Similarly, this trait has a favorable influence on technology that encourages social engagement (Maran et al., 2022). In other words, the extraversion trait fosters leadership development by prioritizing collaboration, networking, navigating social factors, and motivating and engaging stakeholders in organizational transformational initiatives.

In context to the Big Five model, the extraversion trait will contribute to the development of AI leadership capability as extraverted AI leaders are more adept in articulating the complexity of AI concepts to organizational entities while gaining support and endorsement for AI initiatives.

Moreover, their extroverted personalities promote agile participation which is essential for grouping skill-diverse individuals for AI development. Essentially, the extraversion trait equips AI leaders to forge a vibrant ecosystem that advances AI-based technology while successfully pursuing social and corporate objectives. In brief, extraversion, a sociable and strong personality trait (Li et al., 2024), will allow extraverted managers to create an environment that meets the psychological needs relevant to autonomy, competence, and relatedness aspects of SDT. Their innate proclivity to interact with others, creates a collaborative and engaged workforce culture (Andrapuri et al., 2023), which is critical for successful AI endeavors. Thus, we anticipate the impact of extraversion to be positive on the development of AI leadership capabilities.

H3. Managers with higher levels of extraversion trait will demonstrate greater AI leadership capabilities.

2.4.4 Agreeableness and AI Leadership Capability

A previous study suggests that individuals with this personality trait are cooperative, warm, and kind, thus they are successful in having satisfying and pleasant relationships with others (Khan et al., 2021). Moreover, they tend to drive people to produce positive organizational and employee outcomes (Ayub et al., 2019). Similarly, agreeable individuals develop stronger social ties with organizational bodies while also positively impacting the intuitive and reliant decision-making styles (Othman et al., 2020). Concerning leadership perspective, one stream of literature considers the agreeableness trait rather irrelevant to leadership capability, and thus the role of this trait is still unclear concerning business transformation (Diller et al., 2020). In contrast, a school of thought acknowledges the positive role of agreeableness to be observed when systems are designed in a way that compliments collaboration with others rather than pursuing individual agendas (Park & Woo, 2022). Taking into account the limited information about the relationship between the agreeableness trait and leadership, this personality trait can contribute to leadership development as leaders with the agreeableness trait are skilled at creating inclusive and productive work environments, to maintain relationships and confront disagreements that might hinder the success of organizational goals.

About the Big Five Model, the agreeableness trait will contribute to the development of AI leadership capability as AI leaders high in agreeableness thrive in developing and maintaining relationships with stakeholders, essential for the execution of transformative initiatives. Moreover,

this trait will assist in promoting and acceptance of perspectives about AI-based technology while prioritizing ethical considerations to ensure the alignment between AI initiatives and organizational values. Ultimately, AI leaders will navigate the complexities of AI-based technology by fostering positive relationships, sustainable innovation, and a participative work environment, all essential for overall organizational success. Agreeableness, defined as cooperation and empathy (Blake et al., 2022), addresses the requirements outlined in SDT by fostering an empowering and collaborative culture. This trait contributes to meeting the relatedness requirement of SDT by establishing team collaboration, which is critical for AI initiatives. To demonstrate greater AI leadership capabilities, it is necessary to strike a balance between agreeability and decisiveness. Therefore, we propose a positive impact of the agreeableness trait on the development of AI leadership capability.

H4. Managers with higher levels of agreeableness trait will demonstrate greater AI leadership capabilities.

2.4.5 Conscientiousness and AI Leadership Capability

Previous studies suggest that individuals with the conscientiousness trait have a propensity for precision and organization and are more capable of assessing the advantages and disadvantages of a particular situation (Babalola et al., 2019). Similarly, they analyze innovation in a systematic, knowledgeable, and effective manner (Evans et al., 2021). Likewise, they base their decisions on reliable and accurate information. In other words, individuals with high conscientiousness traits plan and organize their duties actively, acting with responsibility and tenacity (Guay et al., 2019). Concerning the leadership literature, leaders frequently reflect on the degree to which their actions are morally appropriate, which stems from their capacity to pay careful attention to detail, make deliberate rather than chaotic decisions, have a profound awareness of moral obligation, and act on their conscience (Babalola et al., 2019). Similarly, leaders with higher levels of this personality trait are most likely to engage in positive coping actions such as problem-focused planning and action (Kumari et al., 2022). In brief, conscientious leaders aim to achieve corporate goals with precision, dependability, and accountability while sustaining organizational operational excellence.

Regarding the Big Five model, the present study suggests that the conscientiousness trait will contribute to the development of AI leadership capability as AI leaders with such personality traits

will exhibit meticulous planning, and precise execution, and ensure rigorous adherence to quality standards throughout AI initiatives. Existing literature acknowledges that individuals who possess high conscientiousness have an intense desire for accomplishment (Maran et al., 2022) and are thus, more likely to develop capabilities that support AI adoption if they believe it to be competent and efficient. Within the SDT framework, the conscientiousness trait contributes to effectively achieving objectives, paying attention to detail, and mitigating risks that support the competence need (Jia & Hou, 2024). Managers need to create a working environment that supports autonomy, competence, and relatedness while striking a balance between their methodical character and the flexibility required by AI transformation (Quaquebeke & Gerpott, 2023). Simply put, this trait supports the organization's AI initiatives, instills a culture of precision, and upholds ethical principles, driving responsible and successful AI leadership. Therefore, we foresee that conscientiousness will play a favorable and important role in developing AI leadership capability.

H5. Managers with higher levels of conscientiousness trait will demonstrate greater AI leadership capabilities.

2.4.6 AI Leadership Capability and AI Transformation

Prior research has linked AI-focused culture to process innovation, which catalyzes subsequent breakthroughs, necessitating leaders with a capacity and drive for learning, accepting change, and propelling progress - all with a feeling of urgency. These leaders are critical in building an organizational culture of constant development and flexibility. Similarly, one body of literature acknowledges the importance of individual managers and company leadership in ushering in a wave of digital culture in companies, which will likely encourage the adoption of technology-driven transformation (Chatterjee et al., 2022). Empirical research suggests that organizations should leverage digital leadership capability to ensure the successful implementation of digital transformation. Digital leadership is crucial to an organization's and its business ecosystem's strategic success in digitalization. In conformity with this, it can be concluded that AI leadership will play a significant role in fostering successful AI transformation would necessitate a company's effort to concentrate on both crafting technology-related capabilities (adaptable infrastructures, real-time automated processes, and AI-savvy employee talent) and supplementary soft capabilities including effective leadership and AI mindset (Zulu & Khosrowshahi, 2021).

Likewise, the capacity to steer an organization toward AI transformation while striving to become more agile in ever-evolving social and AI ecosystems is closely associated with AI leadership capability. In other words, AI leaders should facilitate organizations in successfully executing transformative initiatives (Sagbas & Erdogan, 2022), and it must ensure that all employees are boarding the AI transformational journey (Tuschner et al., 2022). In context to the present study, AI leadership capability is critical for AI transformation because AI leaders will inspire teams, integrate AI efforts with organizational goals, and manage the difficulties of AI implementation, expediting effective and responsible AI transformation. In the context of SDT, AI leadership capabilities can further accelerate AI transformation by fostering relatedness by enhancing teamwork, and autonomy by allowing managers to concentrate on strategic tasks, and competence through data-driven choices while managing ethical issues is necessary to uphold confidence and meet psychological demands (Ryan & Deci, 2020). Subsequently, we propose that the AI leadership capability will impact the AI transformation.

H6. There is a positive effect of AI leadership capability on AI transformation.

2.4.7 AI Leadership as a Mediator

In line with prior studies, for successful digital transformation, the role of leadership capability is crucial in overcoming resistive forces (e.g. threat perception, job insecurity, learning inability). AI transformation requires enterprises to act at a faster pace to explore new opportunities afforded by enhanced digitalization. Moreover, organizations must prioritize the generation of creative ideas that add value (Mugge et al., 2020), the rapid development of AI-enabled services employing modern technology, and the development of organizational capabilities to offer such services to satisfy business expectations (Antonopoulou et al., 2020). This needs a leader who can influence the actions of others to achieve the desired and effective performance (Kane et al., 2019). Considering the AI transformation of the workplace is a novel phenomenon, leaders must be able to make legitimate assessments even when presented with ambiguous information (Chowdhury et al., 2023). As a result, AI leadership capability is thought to have an impact on the association between personality traits and AI transformation. The technological revolution in an organization has an impact on every aspect of the organization as a whole (Goralski & Tan, 2020), including organizational capital, human resources, managerial techniques, product creation, operations, process engineering, and management decisions (Ellström et al., 2022). The goal of AI

transformation is to strengthen and expand organizational capacities for value creation by acquiring technology and consuming AI knowledge (He et al., 2023). To consider employees' and organizations' capabilities (Haefner et al., 2021), it is crucial to analyze successful Al transformation programs, while closely investigating the association of personality traits in developing AI leadership to facilitate the AI initiative.

Accordingly, AI leadership capability will mediate the relationship between personality traits (openness, conscientiousness, agreeableness, extraversion, and neuroticism) and AI transformation as AI leaders will adeptly leverage these traits to foster an environment where AI transformation complexities can be navigated. Extraversion-driven AI leaders, for instance, will encourage collaboration, speeding up interdisciplinary AI initiatives while developing a dynamic AI ecosystem; agreeableness-driven AI leaders will nurture ethical AI development, establishing stakeholder trust as they oversee AI transformation; and low neuroticism-driven AI leaders will face AI challenges resiliently, directing the organization through AI transformation with solidity. Agreeableness-driven AI leaders will also drive innovation, maneuver rapid AI adoption, and pursue revolutionary AI technologies. In light of SDT, AI leadership capabilities will act as a mediator between personality traits and AI transformation by impacting how managers meet the psychological requirements of both individuals and teams, including relatedness, competence, and autonomy. Personality-driven AI leadership capabilities will help managers to use AI tools to improve decision-making (competence), automate repetitive operations (autonomy), and promote relatedness (relatedness). Thus, the following hypotheses have been developed:

H7-H11. AI leadership capability mediates the relationship between Big Five Personality traits (openness, conscientiousness, agreeableness, extraversion, and neuroticism) and AI transformation.

2.5 Research Framework



Figure 2.1 Research Framework

2.6 Chapter Summary

Extraversion, agreeableness, conscientiousness, neuroticism, and openness are all personality qualities that might influence job behavior and success. Understanding and addressing these attributes can help organizations improve employee performance and impact change initiatives. Leadership in AI-driven digital processes is critical, requiring vision, commitment, and a learning culture. Integrating AI with human capabilities promotes organizational growth, competitiveness, and business optimization. AI leaders play a critical role in promoting change by combining the ability of leaders with digital technologies. Machine learning and big data analytics, for example, have transformed company operations by increasing efficiency, productivity, and cost-effectiveness. AI transformation is becoming increasingly important for businesses to remain competitive and manage risks as processing speed and communication bandwidth rise. The Big

Five model, which includes extrovert, agreeableness, openness, conscientiousness, and neuroticism, is used to research personality traits.

CHAPTER 3

METHODOLOGY

3.1 Introduction

This section acts as a beacon illuminating the approaches essential to the execution of this study as it navigates the varied terrain of this research endeavor. The emphasis points are the determination of sample size, the meticulous data collection methodologies used, and the creation of an instrument carved from the bedrock of existing literature. In this tale, we briefly discuss the ethical concerns that must be addressed while compiling and interpreting survey results. The intention to use a descriptive research strategy, peeling back the layers of the research onion (Saunders et al., 2019), as illustrated in Figure 3.1, serves as the fulcrum for this dissertation's objectives. This tour takes you across the areas of research philosophy, approach, strategy, participants, and procedures. The sampling strategy is crucial to the process, as it deliberates on both size and target, ensuring a solid foundation for our inquiries. The description of the boundaries of the data collection processes and the measures behind the inquiry into personality traits, AI leadership aptitude, and the resulting influence on AI transformation with scrupulous consideration. A consistent commitment to ethical considerations underpins these techniques, realizing the responsibility inherent in acquiring and analyzing this essential data.



Figure 3.1 The Research Onion

3.2 Research Design

For the present explanatory study, we have employed a quantitative research design as we examine the relationships present in the conceptual framework. According to Saunders et al. (2019), explanatory research is defined as research that demonstrates causal linkages between variables where the focus is on analyzing a scenario or issue to explain the correlations between variables. In a similar vein, quantitative studies concentrate on the correlations between variables that are quantified and examined through a variety of statistical and graphical methods (Saunders et al., 2019). This type of inquiry is predicated on the same presumptions as qualitative research, such as the ability to test ideas deductively, incorporate bias prevention measures, adjust for competing explanations, and generalize and replicate the results (Creswel, 2014). A conceptual framework is linked with the concepts, empirical research, and important theories used in promoting and systemizing the knowledge espoused by the researcher (Peshkin, 1993). It is the researcher's explanation of how the research problem would be explored (Liehr & Smith, 1999). According to Peshkin (1993), a conceptual framework is associated with the theories, concepts, and empirical studies that assist in systematizing and advancing the knowledge that the researcher advocates.

3.2.1 Research Philosophy and Approach

According to the current study's ontological and epistemological assumptions, there is a single reality that governs the exposition, and knowledge can be defined and retrieved from the senses (Brown & Duenas, 2023). Thus, this study aims to employ a positivistic approach in which deductive reasoning is considered during the formulation and testing of research hypotheses. Saunders et al. (2019) state that quantitative research is typically linked to positivism and a deductive approach, where the emphasis is on using data to evaluate the theory. This is particularly true when using preset and highly structured data collection methodologies (Saunders et al., 2019). The philosophical position of natural scientists is associated with positivism. In doing so, one must work with observable social reality, and the result may be generalizations that resemble laws, much like those found in the physical and scientific sciences (Saunders et al., 2019). Besides, Robson (2002) outlines how cross-sectional studies often consider a positivistic approach and the significance of literature in hypothesis formulation. Cross-sectional studies, according to Saunders et al. (2019), entail examining a specific phenomenon at a specific time because most research projects completed for academic courses are inherently time-constrained.

3.2.2 Research Strategy

For this quantitative study, we will be using a survey strategy that includes questionnaires as a means of data collection (Karim & Nadeem, 2019). According to Saunders et al. (2019), it is a popular strategy in business and management research and is most frequently used to answer 'what', 'who', 'where', 'how much', and 'how many' type questions. Questionnaire-based survey strategies are preferred because they make it affordable to collect uniform data from a substantial number of respondents, allowing for easy comparison (Saunders et al., 2019). In addition, people generally regard them as authoritative, and they are relatively straightforward to communicate and understand (Saunders et al., 2019). For this study, self-completed questionnaires were designed that were distributed to the research respondents through the Internet and physically delivered and collected. In context to Saunders et al. (2019), online surveys sent via a hyperlink in an email provide more control since most individuals read and reply to their own emails, which increases data reliability.

3.3 Research Participants and Procedures

3.3.1 Sampling Technique

A sample technique is often important for acquiring data from an extensive sample (Kumar et al., 2013; Sekaran, 2003). For the execution of this cross-sectional study, purposive sampling under non-probability sampling was used for data collection. A previous study claims that the likelihood of getting chosen is unknown when a non-probability sampling technique is employed (Memon et al., 2017). Accordingly, purposeful selection, chance, or professional judgment may be taken into account when determining inclusion (Burns et al., 2008). As Bryman and Bell (2015) have shown, non-probability sampling is more commonly used and probably appropriate in field research. In particular, random samples are less common in research involving individuals (Polit & Beck, 2010). Against this backdrop, this kind of sampling technique gives the researcher the freedom to utilize judgment in selecting the respondents who will best enable them to answer the research questions. Saunders et al. (2019) also acknowledge the importance of selecting cases for purposive sampling to be dependent on the research questions and objectives. For this research, we approached managers working in the IT industry of Pakistan and those who were using AI tools or technologies to achieve their work-related tasks. Moreover, this study was AI leadership focused so managers who are also the change champions were approached. Based on this inclusion criteria, purposive sampling supported are personality-driven AI leadership-focused study.

3.3.2 Sample Size

For the present study, the intended sample size was 200-300 respondents. The sample size refers to the portion of the population needed to guarantee that there is enough data to make inferences (Sekaran & Bougie, 2013). According to Saunders et al. (2019), issues about sample size when employing non-probability sampling are ambiguous and not subject to any rules. The sample size is solely dependent on the research questions and objectives of the study under investigation (Saunders et al., 2019). Memon et al. (2020) suggested that for the application of statistical tests, the sample size should be between 160 and 300 valid observations as this range is neither small nor large and is, therefore, less inclined to have an impact on the findings of the research (e.g., Type I and Type II errors). Similarly, simple regression analysis requires a minimum of 50 samples and, in general, 100 samples for the majority of research, as stated by Hair et al. (2018). Accordingly, analysis was ran over 184 samples out of a total of 261 samples.

3.3.3 Unit of Analysis

The unit of analysis of this study was managers who used AI-based technology within the IT sector of Pakistan. The empirical study informs that the sample size is also influenced by the unit of analysis (Memon et al., 2020). Similarly, Memon et al. (2020) also highlighted that research conducted at the organizational level, for instance, with senior executives such as CEOs, CFOs, Managers, etc. as respondents, could have a more limited sample than a study conducted at the individual level with workers, clients, etc. In organizations, managerial-level employees have total involvement in the company's transformational activities and the fact that they are in a decisionmaking position, therefore being responsible for the strategies that the organization sets (Sow & Aborbie, 2018). Therefore, managers working in the IT industry of Pakistan were approached to generate the findings of this study.

3.3.4 Data Collection Procedures

3.3.4.1 Research Instrument

As part of this study's focus, all 24 items were adopted and adapted while required to respond on a five-point Likert-type scale: (1) strongly disagree to 5 (strongly agree). A 15-item scale of *Big Five personality traits* was adopted from Gerliz & Schupp (2005) to measure openness, conscientiousness, agreeableness, extraversion, and neuroticism. A 6-item scale of AI leadership capability and 3-item scale for AI transformation was adapted from the existing scale of digital

leadership and digital transformation scales respectively. The questionnaire was divided into two segments: The first section entailed questions regarding demographics & work-related characteristics and the second section encompassed questions about personality traits, AI leadership capability, and AI transformation. Besides, a cover letter was also attached to the questionnaire so that the participants could gain an overview of the research project along with credentials. Furthermore, the language employed in the questionnaire's design was explicit, intelligible, and directed towards the intended audience.

3.3.4.2 Identification of Target Companies

To identify companies in Pakistan's IT sector, company information was first acquired from the Chambers of Commerce and Industry's member directory, which is available on their website. Furthermore, extensive searches were carried out on legitimate web venues such as TechBehemoths and The Manifest. The company profiles were then collected into an Excel file for methodical arrangement. Next, each company's websites and LinkedIn pages were thoroughly investigated to acquire further information. Companies were aggressively contacted via email, LinkedIn, personal contacts, and referrals to learn about whether those companies were using AI tools. While the majority of organizations stated that they used AI technology, a minority acknowledged that they did not, which helped to maintain data quality. Following the shortlisting of IT companies, professional contacts, and personal connections were used to promote survey participation. Efforts were undertaken to contact individuals through various channels, providing an overview of the study and its significance. After acknowledging their participation, the questionnaire was distributed to them for completion.

3.3.4.3 Pretesting

To guarantee the quality of data collected via questionnaires, researchers need to craft research items that are consistently and readily understood by respondents in the manner in which the researchers intend (Collins, 2003; Fowler, 1995). The underlying premise of this reasoning is that, in comparison to research items that are difficult to understand or answer for other factors, those that are simple to comprehend and cause few other cognitive issues for participant's present smaller measurement errors (Groves et al., 2004). The pre-evaluation of new research instruments or items is now widely accepted as a necessary step before their distribution for data collection (Neuert & Lenzner, 2015). In short, pretesting is done to make sure the participant can

and will respond to the questions, and that the questions accurately represent the information the investigator seeks (Grimm, 2010). So before data collection, the questionnaire was pretested to address all the related possible issues. For the pre-testing, a total of four managers working in different IT companies who used AI tools were approached through personal referral and LinkedIn connection. Once they acknowledged their participation, survey link was mailed and direct messaged. Upon their feedback, it was concluded that the research items were clear, easy to comprehend, and aligned with the relevance of the study. Accordingly, the research instrument was distributed for the data collection as no major issues emerged during the pretesting session.

3.3.4.4 Online Data Collection

Online data collecting was critical in obtaining perspectives from a wide spectrum of IT managers during this research. Tiersma et al. (2022) emphasize utilizing online or electronic data collection as it highly contributes to reaching a wider audience, data collection efficiency, is technologydriven so considered user-friendly and will allow immediate data analysis if required. So we managed to efficiently acquire quantitative data in the IT industry of Pakistan by administering digital surveys via platforms such as Google Forms. Hsu and Wang (2017) acknowledges the use of Google Forms both in data collection and analysis procedure. Also, the use of social networking platforms such as LinkedIn and WhatsApp aided in the widespread transmission of survey invites, ensuring broad participation from diverse parts of the IT sector. Personalization of emails and reminders, combined with promises of confidentiality and anonymity, increased the involvement of participants and responses.

3.3.4.5 Physical Data Collection

Participants received hard copies of the survey as part of the data-gathering process. This entailed physically handing the copies of the printed questionnaire to the target audience. We hoped to get tangible answers and insights by distributing printed copies. Furthermore, delivering tangible copies allowed for face-to-face engagement, which may have resulted in greater response rates and easier clarification of any survey ambiguity.

3.3.4.6 Engagement with Personal Contacts

Similarly, Personal contacts were used to collect the survey data. Using our network of acquaintances, peers, and business connections, we timely contacted individuals relevant to the research findings. These personal ties provided a sense of trust and familiarity, which can lead to

increased response rates. Using personal contacts allowed us to adapt our outreach efforts to target groups, resulting in a more focused and efficient data collection approach.

3.3.4.7 Utilization of LinkedIn Connection

To collect data for this study, a varied pool of relevant participants was contacted using LinkedIn connections. Survey invites were distributed through existing contacts to ensure extensive distribution of the questionnaire. Concurrently, the network increased by connecting with new professionals who were relevant to the study. This strategy made it easier to gather an array of data by fusing proactive networking with already-established connections, which enhanced the dataset.

3.3.4.8 Data Analysis

After receiving the responses, the raw data of 264 samples was accumulated with the help of Microsoft Excel (MS Excel). Once the data was arranged, it was further analyzed through Statistical Package for Social Sciences (SPSS) software. It helped in generating valid observations and eliminating any outliers present in the data. Subsequently, 184 samples were scrutinized to generate the research findings. The descriptive statistics were run to achieve demographic analysis and simultaneously prepare the data for measurement and structural analysis. Partial least squares structural equation modeling (PLS-SEM) was used to study the causal relationship between the variables, validity, and reliability of the research items as well. This will be further explained in Chapter 4 of the thesis. Microsoft Word (MS Word) was used to compile the entire thesis while MS PowerPoint was used to present the research to the respective thesis defense panel members and examiners.

3.4 Measures

The research items were validated through the implementation of tests such as internal consistency reliability and convergent validity. The test demonstrated high level of the measurements' internal consistency and achieved satisfactory AVE. These tests are further explained in Chapter 4 of the thesis.

3.4.1 Personality Traits

A 15-item scale of *Big Five personality traits* was adopted from Gerlitz and Schupp (2005) to measure openness, conscientiousness, agreeableness, extraversion, and neuroticism.

3.4.1.1 Openness

Openness was characterized by the Big Five Personality theory's founders as a trait involving intellectual curiosity, valuing innovation, and flexibility (Costa & McCrae, 1992). A sample item includes, 'I see myself as someone who is original, comes up with new ideas'. Gerlitz and Schupp (2005) reported the composite reliability (CR) of the constructs as 0.74.

3.4.1.2 Agreeableness

Agreeableness was characterized by the Big-Five Personality theory's founders as a trait indicating individuals 'level of cooperation, affection, and civility (Costa & McCrae, 1992). A sample item includes 'I see myself as someone who is sometimes somewhat rude to others'. Gerlitz and Schupp (2005) reported the composite reliability (CR) of the constructs as 0.62.

3.4.1.3 Conscientiousness

Conscientiousness was characterized by the Big-Five Personality theory's founders as a trait comprising attention to detail, self-inspection, and effective organization (Costa & McCrae, 1992). A sample item includes, 'I see myself as someone who does things effectively and efficiently'. Gerlitz and Schupp (2005) reported the composite reliability (CR) of the constructs as 0.72.

3.4.1.4 Extraversion

Extraversion was characterized by the Big-Five Personality theory's founders as individuals encompassing outgoing and gregarious personalities, the ability to hold conversations naturally, and unparalleled sensitivity to positive emotions (Costa & McCrae, 1992). A sample item includes, 'I see myself as someone who is communicative, talkative'. Gerlitz and Schupp (2005) reported the composite reliability (CR) of the constructs as 0.53.

3.4.1.5 Neuroticism

Neuroticism was characterized by the Big-Five Personality theory's founders as negative emotions including anxiety, insecurity, and dismay as well as emotional instability (Costa & McCrae, 1992). A sample item includes, 'I see myself as someone who is relaxed, handles stress well'. Gerlitz and Schupp (2005) reported the composite reliability (CR) of the constructs as 0.57.

Even though the conventional reliability is 0.80 (John et al., 1999), these values of the coefficients do not necessarily report the unreliability of the shorter version. As Mueller and Plug (2006) and Heineck and Anger (2010) mention the alpha reliability coefficients increase with the number of

items. The ratios found are satisfactory because each personality trait in the measure has three items (Dehne & Schupp, 2007).

3.4.2 AI Leadership Capability

The current research defines this construct by adapting to the operationalization of digital leadership, "Digital leadership has been defined as individuals who add value to the organizations by combining the abilities of the leaders with digital technologies" (Erhan et al., 2022, p. 1527). The current study operationalizes this construct as individuals' ability to strategically combine AI tools with their leadership capabilities to add value to their organization. A 6-item scale of AI leadership capability was adapted from an existing digital leadership instrument (Zhu et al., 2022). A sample item includes 'I have a clear idea of the structures and processes that are needed for the AI transformation'. The reliability value of AI leadership capability has been reported as 0.85 (Zhu et al., 2022).

3.4.3 AI Transformation

For the current research, the definition of digital transformation was adapted to operationalize AI transformation. Digital transformation is defined as, "The use of digital technologies to create new or modify existing business models and processes or to support the transformation of organizational structures, resources, or relationships with internal and external actors" (Zomer et al., 2020, p. 1098). AI transformation is considered the fundamental constituent of digital transformation (Okunlaya et al., 2022; Saurabh et al., 2022), so this study defines AI transformation as the application of AI technologies to develop new and modify existing business models and processes, structures, or relationships with internal and external agents to achieve work-related outcomes. A 3-item scale of AI transformation was adapted from the existing digital transformation scale (Fachrunnisa et al., 2020). A sample item includes, 'In my organization, business operations are shifting toward making use of AI-based technologies'. The reliability value of AI leadership capability has been reported as 0.77 (Fachrunnisa et al., 2020).

Construct	Author	Items	Reliability
Openness		3	0.74
Consciousness		3	0.72
Extraversion	Gerlitz and Schupp (2005)	3	0.53
Agreeableness		3	0.62
Neuroticism		3	0.57
AI-Leadership Capability	Zhu et al. (2022)	6	0.85
AI Transformation	Fachrunnisa et al. (2020)	3	0.77

 Table 3.1 Research Items

3.5 Ethical Consideration

Ethics in the context of research refers to the moral principles that govern your behavior regarding the rights of people who are either the subjects of your study or have an impact on it (Saunders et al., 2019).

3.5.1 Voluntary Participation

Participants were notified that their participation was fully voluntary and that they could withdraw at any moment without consequence. Before participating, individuals provided informed consent, confirming that they understood the research's aims, objectives, and participant rights. This technique adhered to ethical principles, respecting individuals' freedom of choice through the data collection process.

3.5.2 Participant Withdrawal

Participants are guaranteed that they have the choice to resign from completing the questionnaire at any time during the data collection process, without being forced to continue. Moreover, participants were not be pressured into disclosing their reasons for withdrawing from data collection.

3.5.3 Informed Consent

In accordance with ethical guidelines, participants were given a consent form before the study began. This form included detailed information on the research topic, presented honestly and transparently. Participants were told about the objectives of the study, the projected time required to complete the questionnaire, and the credentials of the research supervisor and institution. Importantly, participants had the option to withdraw their information from the research project at any point by approaching the research supervisor. This approach guaranteed that participants receive accurate information and have authority over their participation in the study.

3.5.4 Confidentiality and Anonymity

In this investigation, maintaining a sufficient level of confidentiality and anonymity is crucial. To protect the confidentiality of respondents, the names of responders and organizations were not requested on the surveys. Also, access to the obtained data was limited to only the researcher and the research supervisor. In addition, to improve privacy protection, Google Questionnaire was used, guaranteeing participants' responses are secured.

3.5.5 Appropriate Questionnaire Language

It is critical to establish a courteous and inclusive environment throughout this research. As a result, any offensive, discriminating, or undesirable language was prevented in the development of questionnaires. This made sure respondents felt respected and comfortable when submitting their responses, resulting in a positive research experience for everyone involved.

3.5.6 Research Integrity

When compiling research findings, it is critical to maintain ethical standards by preventing plagiarism and research misconduct. All efforts were taken to guarantee that the analytic process was carried out with integrity and transparency while respecting stakeholders' intellectual property rights and following research ethics rules.

3.5.7 Recognition of Contributors

Following ethical norms, proper recognition of the effort and contributions of others shall be acknowledged when it is due. This includes recognizing any associations or partnerships that have helped the study process in any way.

3.6 Chapter Summary

This section of the thesis recapitulates the research methodology exercised for the conduction of research analysis. Prior researchers' item-scale has been consulted for the formation of the research instrument. To achieve the objectives of this quantitative study, we aim to employ an explanatory research design to investigate the impact of personality-driven AI leadership on AI transformation. Additionally, the target sample included managerial and above-level employees working in the IT industry of Pakistan. For data collection, the study used a questionnaire-based survey technique,

which improves reliability and control over respondents. All the variables were required to be rated on a 5 point Likert scale ranging from strongly disagree to strongly agree. The results were collected from 184 samples. Lastly, it also illustrated the tools such as MS Office, SPSS, and PLS-SEM that were required for the compilation of the research findings and the ethical concerns that needed to be addressed while carrying out the research.

CHAPTER 4

RESULTS

4.1 Introduction

This section serves as the apex of my research, presenting the foundation of the findings, precisely created from hypotheses obtained from the research objectives. This chapter digs into the outcomes of reliabilities and statistical tests, unfurling a tapestry of insights embedded in the research methodology by leveraging the power of PLS-SEM. Throughout this revealing, the demographics of the respondents—gender, age, and working tenure—paint a contextual backdrop that enriches the comprehension of the research landscape. Beyond the numbers and figures, this research goes into a thorough assessment of these findings, hoping to glean important insights that will enhance understanding and strengthen the research analysis. Furthermore, the investigation goes beyond basic findings to reveal the extent to which the research paradigm reveals itself inside organizational settings. This journey is anchored by key studies that include demographic insights, data analysis approaches, the measurement model's integrity, reliability and validity issues, and structural model investigation.

4.2 Demographic Analysis

The demographic composition of the sample in terms of gender, age, qualification, and experience, utilizing AI-based technology and current placement was as follows: A majority of the respondents were males (88.6%), which is not surprising given that the IT or Telecom industry is largely male-dominated (Ayaz, 2023). All of the respondents (100%) used AI-based technology in the IT or Telecom industry. The respondents had a bachelor's degree as their minimum qualification. Moreover, a majority of the respondents (78.8%) belonged to the age group 25 to 40 years, followed by 18 to 25 years (14.7%) and 41 to 60 years (6%). Respondents had different levels of experience, ranging from 1 to 4 years to 5 to 8 years, as shown in Table 4.1 below.

4.3 Data Analysis

To assess the research hypotheses, partial least squares structural equation modeling (PLS-SEM) was employed. PLS-SEM is considered a widely applied analytical technique due to its dependability (Penga & Lai, 2012). This software assisted in investigating the predictability of dependent variables (Roldán & Sánchez-Franco, 2012), and also to study the indirect effect of the research variable (Hair et al., 2014; Nitzl et al., 2016; Richter et al., 2016).

A two-stage analytical technique was used, as proposed by Andersen and Gerbing (1988). The first stage entails testing the measurement model that includes internal consistency reliability, convergent validity (CV), and discriminant validity (DV), while the second stage encompasses the assessment of the structural model (hypotheses testing).

Variable	Category	Frequency	Percent
	Male	163	88.6%
Gender	Female	21	11.4%
	Prefer not to say	0	0.0%
	18 to 25 years	27	14.7%
A go	25 to 40 years	145	78.8%
Age	41 to 60 years	11	6.0%
	Above 60 years	1	0.5%
	High school diploma/Equivalent	0	0.0%
	Associate degree	4	2.2%
Qualification	Bachelor's degree	111	60.3%
	Master's degree	69	37.5%
	Other	0	0.0%
	Less than 1 year	0	0.0%
Experience	1 to 4 years	131	71.2%
Experience	5 to 8 years	34	18.5%
	9 years or above	19	10.3%
Litilizing AI Pased Technology	Yes	184	100.0%
Unizing Al-Based Technology	No	0	0.0%
Working in IT/Telecom	Yes	184	100.0%
Company	No	0	0.0%

Table 4.1 Demographic Information (*n* = 184)

4.3.1 Measurement Model

4.3.1.1 Internal Consistency Reliability

Internal consistency reliability assesses how well the items measure the latent constructs (Hair et al., 2014; Ramayah et al., 2016). As a gauge of internal consistency, composite reliability was assessed (Hair et al., 2017). For each construct, composite reliability above the conventional standard value of 0.7, is deemed satisfactory (Nunnally, 1978; Nunnally & Bernstein, 1994; Richter et al., 2016). The results depicted that composite reliability for all the variables surpasses the cut-off value of 0.7 – agreeableness (0.871), conscientiousness (0.851), extraversion (0.877), neuroticism (0.806), openness (0.837), AI transformation (0.818) and AI leadership capability (0.897) – thereby demonstrating the high level of the measurements' internal consistency.

4.3.1.2 Convergent Validity

CV is defined as "the extent to which a measure correlates positively with alternative measures of the same construct" (Hair et al., 2017, p. 102). By examining the item's outer loading and calculating the average variance extracted (AVE), CV was evaluated. In general, an AVE score of 0.5 is regarded as satisfactory, and outer loadings should paint a value of 0.708 or higher (Avkiran, 2017). Likewise, the acceptance of items having outer loading of 0.6 is also a possibility (Chin et al., 1997). According to Hair et al. (2017), indicators with weaker factor loadings should be detained if other indicators with higher loadings can account for at least 50 percent of the variance (AVE=0.50). All of the constructs, including agreeableness (0.575), conscientiousness (0.740), extraversion (0.781), neuroticism (0.592), openness (0.634), AI transformation (0.600), and AI leadership capabilities (0.744), achieved satisfactory AVE. This confirmed the CV of the constructs. Table 4.2 illustrates the results of the internal consistency reliability and CV.

4.3.1.3 Discriminant Validity

DV measures how different a construct is from other constructs within the model (Hair et al., 2014). For the assessment of DV, Heterotrait-Monotrait Ratio (HTMT) criterion was used (Henseler et al., 2015). It is defined as the "ratio of the between-trait correlations to the withintrait correlation" (Hairet al., 2017, p. 118). The HTMT criteria results were established at HTMT_{0.85}, showing that the current study did not deviate from the DV considerations (Clark and Watson, 1995; Kline, 2011), as shown in Table 4.3. The trait ratio of AI leadership capability with other constructs is as follow: AI transformation (0.604), Agreeableness (0.329), Conscientiousness (0.359) Extraversion, (0.184) Neuroticism, (0.354) and Openness (0.355). The trait ratio of AI transformation with other constructs is as follow: Agreeableness (0.171), Conscientiousness (0.182) Extraversion, (0.117) Neuroticism, (0.234) and Openness (0.244). The trait ratio of Agreeableness with other constructs is as follow: Conscientiousness (0.274) Extraversion, (0.152)Neuroticism, (0.272) and Openness (0.297). The trait ratio of Conscientiousness with other constructs is as follow: Extraversion, (0.189) Neuroticism, (0.425) and Openness (0.505). The trait ratio of Extraversion with other constructs is as follow: Neuroticism, (0.305) and Openness (0.360). The trait ratio of Neuroticism with other construct is as follow: Openness (0.540). It can be observed that all the constructs successfully passed the HTMT criteria: HTMT_{0.85} (Clark and Watson, 1995) and HTMT_{0.90} (Kline, 2011). Recapitulating the measurement model results, adequate internal consistency reliability, CV, and DV were achieved.

Construct	Items	Loadings	AVE	CR
	01	0.821		
Openness	O2	0.876	0.634	0.837
	03	0.679		
	N1_R	0.522		
Neuroticism	N2	0.928	0.592	0.806
	N3	0.802		
	E1	0.947		
Extraversion	E2	0.815	0.781	0.877
	E3_R	Item deleted ^a		
	A1	0.744		
Agreeableness	A2	0.801	0.575	0.871
	A3_R	0.777		
	C1	0.819		
Conscientiousness	C2	0.900	0.740	0.851
	C3_R	Item deleted ^b		
	AIL2	0.744		
	AIL3	0.776		
AI leadership capability	AIL4	0.816	0.744	0.897
	AIL5	0.683		
	AIL6	0.766		
	AIT1	0.870		
AI transformation	AIT2	0.910	0.600	0.818
	AIT3	0.804		

Table 4.2 Assessment of Internal Consistency Reliability and Convergent Validity

Notes: CR, composite reliability, AVE, variance extracted. ^aE3_R and ^bC3_R were deleted due to low loading.

Reflective construct	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
1. AI leadership capability							
2. AI transformation	0.604						
3. Agreeableness	0.329	0.171					
4. Conscientiousness	0.359	0.182	0.274				
5. Extraversion	0.184	0.117	0.152	0.189			
6. Neuroticism	0.354	0.234	0.272	0.425	0.305		
7. Openness	0.355	0.244	0.297	0.505	0.360	0.540	
Notes: DV is established at HTMT.85 (Kline, 2011)							

Table 4.3 Assessment of Discriminant Validity

4.3.1.4 Multicollinearity

Besides carrying out reliability and validity, the variance inflation factor (VIF) must be calculated, before the analysis of the structural model. Multicollinearity is indicated by a VIF of more than

10.0 by Hair et al. (2014), in contrast, advocate a cut-off value of 5.0 for multicollinearity. The VIF value for the constructs as follow: Agreeableness (1.069), Conscientiousness (1.188) Extraversion, (1.102) Neuroticism, (1.202) and Openness (1.298). Table 4.4 shows that the VIF scores for each construct were less than 5.0, indicating that collinearity issues within the constructs were absent in this research.

Construct	VIF			
Agreeableness	1.069			
Conscientiousness	1.188			
Extraversion	1.102			
Neuroticism	1.202			
Openness	1.298			
Notes: VIF = variance inflation factor				

Table 4.4 Assessment of Higher Order Construct

4.4 Structural Model

The causal linkages between the constructs are tested through the structural model analysis (Sang et al., 2010). Hair et al. (2017) recommend that, in addition to reporting the significance of the relationships, researchers include the coefficient of determination (\mathbb{R}^2) and effect size (f^2). The value of \mathbb{R}^2 is defined as the explanatory power of the independent variable(s) about the associated dependent variable(s) (Hair et al., 2014). Figure 4.1 illustrates the structural model findings of the research framework.

The value of \mathbb{R}^2 in Table 4.5 shows that Big Five personality traits (openness, conscientiousness, agreeableness, extraversion, and neuroticism) explain 1.7 percent of AI leadership capability ($\mathbb{R}^2 = 0.172$). Likewise, AI leadership capability exhibits 2.4 percent of AI transformation. Following, f^2 represents the effect size or the proportion of an independent variable's contribution to the dependent variable's \mathbb{R}^2 . Cohen (1988) suggested the cut-off values for determining the effect size: $f^2 = 0.02$, 0.15, and 0.35, indicative of small, medium, and large effect sizes, respectively. The results of f^2 indicate that openness ($f^2 = 0.013$), conscientiousness ($f^2 = 0.019$), and extraversion ($f^2 = 0.002$) have a small impact on AI leadership capability. In contrast, agreeableness ($f^2 = 0.034$) and neuroticism ($f^2 = 0.329$) have a medium impact on AI leadership capability. Subsequently, AI leadership capability ($f^2 = 0.329$) has a medium effect on AI transformation as shown in Table 4.6.

Predictor construct	Target construct	R^2	Predictive accuracy
Openness, Neuroticism, Extraversion, Agreeableness, Conscientiousness	AI leadership capability	0.172	Moderate
AI leadership capability	AI transformation	0.248	Moderate

 Table 4.5 R² of Endogenous Constructs

To determine the statistical significance of the proposed mode, the bootstrapping technique with resampling (5,000 resamples) was used (Hair et al., 2017). As presented in Table 4.7, the results indicated that Big Five personality traits including neuroticism (H2, $\beta = -0.179$, t = 2.435, p = 0.007), agreeableness (H4, $\beta = 0.175$, t = 2.584 p = 0.005) and conscientiousness (H5, $\beta = 0.138$, t = 2.163, p = 0.015), has a significant positive association with AI leadership capability. In contrast, openness (H1, $\beta = 0.116$, t = 1.368, p = 0.086) and extraversion (H3, $\beta = 0.040$, t = 0.547, p = 0.292) have an insignificant association with AI leadership capability. The result of the direct effect portrayed that AI leadership capability positively impacted AI transformation (H6, $\beta = 0.498$, t = 8.569, p = 0.000). Therefore H2, H4, H5, and H6 were supported while H1 and H3 were rejected.

	,		
Predictor construct	Target construct	f^2	Effect size
Openness	AI leadership capability	0.013	Small
Neuroticism	AI leadership capability	0.032	Medium
Extraversion	AI leadership capability	0.002	Small
Agreeableness	AI leadership capability	0.034	Medium
Conscientiousness	AI leadership capability	0.019	Small
AI leadership capability	AI transformation	0.329	Medium

Table 4.6 f^2 Values of the Path Model

Construct	Beta	STDEV	t value	<i>p</i> -value	LL (5%)	UL (95%)	Decision
H1: $OP \rightarrow AIL$	0.116	0.085	1.368	0.086	-0.029	0.249	Not supported
H2: NT \rightarrow AIL	-0.179	0.074	2.435	0.007	-0.289	-0.047	Supported
H3: $EV \rightarrow AIL$	0.040	0.073	0.547	0.292	-0.103	0.146	Not supported
H4: $AA \rightarrow AIL$	0.175	0.068	2.584	0.005	0.06	0.281	Supported
H5: $CT \rightarrow AIL$	0.138	0.064	2.163	0.015	0.034	0.244	Supported
H6: AIL \rightarrow AIT	0.498	0.058	8.569	0.000	0.390	0.584	Supported

Notes: LL, lower level; UL, Upper Level; STDEV, Standard Deviation; OP, Openness; AIL, AI Leadership Capability; NT, Neuroticism; EV, Extraversion; AA, Agreeableness; CT, Conscientiousness; AIT, AI Transformation
Mediation analysis was conducted to test H7, H8, H9, H10, and H11, which hypothesized the mediating effect of AI leadership capability in the relationship between Big Five personality traits (openness, conscientiousness, agreeableness, extraversion, and neuroticism) and AI transformation. We have employed an indirect effect approach to assess the mediating effect between the constructs (Preacher & Hayes 2008). The accepted results of indirect effect are as follows: neuroticism (β = -0.089, *t* = 2.230, *p* = 0.026, confidence interval (CI): lower level (LL) = -0.166, upper level (UL) = -0.013), agreeableness (β = 0.087, *t* = 2.496, *p* = 0.013,CI: LL = 0.020, UL = 0.155) and conscientiousness (β = 0.069, *t* = 2.105, *p* = 0.035,CI: LL = 0.005, UL = 0.133) (Table 4.8).

On the contrary, AI leadership capability did not mediate the relationship between openness and AI transformation (H7, $\beta = 0.058$, t = 1.310, p = 0.190) and extraversion and AI transformation (H9, $\beta = 0.020$, t = 0.538, p = 0.591). In summary, seven hypotheses (H2, H4, H5, H6, H8, H10, H11) were accepted and four hypotheses were rejected (H1, H3, H7, H9).

Hypothesis	Beta	STDEV	t	р-	LL	UL	Decision
			value	value	(5%)	(95%)	
H7:OP→AIL→AIT	0.058	0.044	1.310	0.190	-0.027	0.143	Not supported
H8:NT→AIL→AIT	-0.089	0.040	2.230	0.026	-0.166	-0.013	Supported
H9:EV→AIL→AIT	0.020	0.037	0.538	0.591	-0.070	0.086	Not supported
H10:AA→AIL→AIT	0.087	0.035	2.496	0.013	0.020	0.155	Supported
H11:CT→AIL→AIT	0.069	0.033	2.105	0.035	0.005	0.133	Supported
Notes: LL, lower level; UL, Upper Level; STDEV, Standard Deviation; OP, Openness; AIL, AI							
Leadership Capability; NT, Neuroticism; EV, Extraversion; AA, Agreeableness; CT,							
Conscientiousness; AIT, AI transformation							

 Table 4.8 Mediating Effect Analysis

4.5 Chapter Summary

This section aided in the development of the research findings of the eleven research hypotheses. It was observed that all variables' reliabilities were above the conventional standard, thus, all were accepted. The study reveals that openness, conscientiousness, and extraversion have small impacts on AI leadership capability, while agreeableness and neuroticism have medium impacts, indicating a medium effect on AI transformation. Through a correlation analysis test, varying levels of positive correlation among the variables that detected.



Figure 4.1 Structural Model

The study assessed constructs agreeableness, conscientiousness, extraversion, neuroticism, openness, AI transformation, and AI leadership capabilities using AVE and HTMT, confirming their CV and validity. The study found that Big Five personality traits, including neuroticism, agreeableness, and conscientiousness, significantly positively influence AI leadership capability, thereby positively impacting AI transformation. Besides, regression analysis test results aided in the acceptance of seven hypotheses (H2, H4, H5, H6, H8, H10, H11) and rejection of rest (H1, H3, H7, H9).

CHAPTER 5

5.1 DISCUSSION

5.1 Introduction

According to the findings, both openness and neuroticism have a detrimental impact on AI leadership skills, with openness impeding strategic thinking and implementation and neuroticism impeding adaptability to the dynamic AI ecosystem. According to the third hypothesis, extraversion has a beneficial impact on AI leadership, although extrovert AI leaders may struggle with team dynamics. According to the fourth hypothesis, agreeableness has a good impact on AI leadership by encouraging collaboration and decision-making. Conscientiousness improves AI leadership capacities by encouraging morality, decision-making, and AI acceptance. This characteristic improves productivity, security, and accessibility, allowing AI transformation and managing challenges in a digitally driven environment. The study finds that AI leadership capability and neuroticism can stymie successful AI transformation in Pakistan, emphasizing the importance of a thorough grasp of AI-based technology. Despite potential negative views, AI leadership competence mediates the extraversion-agreeableness relationship, improving decisionmaking, adaptability, and communication, and boosting cooperative relationships and teamwork in AI transformation. According to the eleventh hypothesis, conscientiousness-driven AI leadership can accelerate AI transformation by motivating leaders to use AI, and boosting proactive planning, creativity, and problem-solving, all of which are necessary for successful AI deployment.

5.2 Discussion

5.2.1 Openness and AI Leadership Capability

The first hypothesis (H1) was, "*Managers with higher levels of openness trait will demonstrate greater AI leadership capabilities*". Contrary to our expectations, H1 which proposed that managers with a greater level of openness trait will demonstrate greater AI leadership was rejected. This contradicted the existing study, which acknowledged the role of this personality trait in the development of leadership capability as openness-driven leaders are required to confront the status quo innovatively (Zhang et al., 2019) by remodeling existing and introducing new methods and processes which will eventually facilitate the technological experiences, transformation, and stakeholder relationships within the organizational setting (Diller et al., 2020).

An organization that embraces digitalization and has a manager with this personality trait-driven capability can proactively react to the dynamic global network of cultures and foster a culture of perpetual change, preparing staff members for new experiences at work every day (Litvinenko, 2020). Managers as change champions must be adaptable to new technological developments and capable of evaluating from a variety of creative perspectives to satisfy the demands of all stakeholders (Erhan et al., 2022). Yet, they might experience suffocation or be burdened when achieving their needs concerning novelty and a variety of perspectives (Maran et al., 2022).

Furthermore, in situations where environments are changing quickly, managers with high degrees of openness may find it challenging to stay focused on long-term strategic objectives due to the abundance of options and ideas (Dulebohn et al., 2012). This could result in instability or ineffective plan execution in digital environments where adaptability is essential (Carsten et al., 2019). These findings highlight how crucial it is for effective leadership in AI-focused environments to strike a balance between openness and strategic thinking as well as focused implementation. Simply put, this personality trait which provides managers with the ability to be risk-takers and confront environmental uncertainties through the exaggerating exploration of novelty within the AI landscape can shadow the associating ethical concerns.

According to the National Artificial Intelligence policy provided by the Ministry of IT & Telecom of Pakistan, the risks voiced by stakeholders about AI adoption included: invasion of privacy, data pollution, and data model theft. Likewise, prioritizing the search for novel solutions and mechanisms while ignoring their practical application for external and internal organizational bodies can hinder the successful application of AI initiatives. Managers with openness traits might develop AI leadership capability that values consistent learning and adapts to the ever-evolving AI dynamic while ignoring the organizational capability towards the change and might fail to align the AI initiatives with the organization's overall strategic direction. To summarize, managers might realize that the openness trait does not greatly result in the development of AI leadership capabilities. This is because AI executives under their leadership may struggle to strike a balance between encouraging the development of novel concepts and complying with practical implications.

5.2.2 Neuroticism & AI Leadership Capability

The second hypothesis (H2) was, "Managers with lower levels of neuroticism trait will demonstrate greater AI leadership capabilities". As expected, H2 results report that managers with low levels of neurotic traits will demonstrate greater AI leadership capabilities. Consistent with the prior findings, low neurotic leaders are less prone to being anxious about upholding safety as they view novel initiatives more favorably and experience less stress when confronting challenging settings (Bandera & Passerini, 2020). In contrast, highly neurotic leaders carry low self-esteem and exhibit higher levels of anxiety which will hinder the implementation of transformational initiatives (Diller et al., 2020). Moreover, it will result in irregularities while applying digital technologies as well as when processing, interpreting, and, ultimately, determining the worth of its implementation (Lacam & Salvetat, 2023).

Managers will behave in this way because their highly neurotic personality often appears resistive to (new) technical innovations, especially AI-focused ones (Sindermann et al., 2022). This is because their unstable mindset will create erratic involvement and support patterns that impede the successful implementation of big data technology within the company (Holden et al., 2016). Also, neurotic leaders exhibit difficulty navigating uncertainty and a greater intolerance for it (Bajcar & Babiak, 2020). They will therefore use defensive strategies to deal with circumstances that they believe to be unknown or unfavorable (Schiuma et al., 2022). Similarly, they will be more inclined to withdraw and limit their behaviors when confronted with stimuli as they appear to be more resistant and less responsive to new developments (Barnett et al., 2015). They are concerned about emerging forms of technology-mediated interaction (Stein et al., 2019), and individuals with high neuroticism, who are sensitive to risks and nervous about novel situations, may have more unfavorable attitudes regarding AI than those with lower neuroticism (Park & Woo, 2022). In simple terms, managers with lower levels of neurotic traits appear motivated to persevere, seek alternate solutions, and cope well with critique and unexpected setbacks (Bandera & Passerini, 2020).

Furthermore, their lack of self-confidence in overcoming unidentified challenges translates to the challenge of employing digital gadgets and technologies in novel ways (Guenzi and Nijssen, 2021). They might decline to develop or adopt unique solutions or even seek to prevent the organization from accomplishing so due to the absence of compliance (Pletzer et al., 2019). This

divergence, on the other hand, is comprehensible (Maran et al., 2022). Employees may be stressed throughout the execution of a digital transformation, particularly if they are unsure about the utility of the novel tools (Zoltners et al., 2021).

In context to above empirical insights, low levels of neurotic traits, defined as emotional instability (Gruda et al., 2023), tend to empower managers to embrace leadership roles and responsibilities. This emotional stability will allow them to make informed rather impulsive decisions when exposed to challenges and drawbacks. Likewise, low neurotic managers would be able to strive in a dynamic AI ecosystem as such individuals will successfully manage anxiety or stress levels. In addition, managers as change agents are required to handle disagreements between external and internal stakeholders to maintain relationships and proceed towards successful AI implementation which is likely to be executed by low neurotic managers. Accordingly, lower levels of neurotic traits will demonstrate greater association to AI leadership capabilities in managers as they will be successful in keeping up with the dynamics of AI and respond optimistically towards the changing work demographic.

5.2.3 Extraversion and AI Leadership Capability

The third hypothesis (H3) was, "*Managers with higher levels of extraversion trait will demonstrate greater AI leadership capabilities*". Unexpectedly, H3, which proposed a positive impact of extraversion on AI leadership capability was rejected. Regarding the existing literature, the trait of extraversion appears to be frequently studied across a variety of leadership standards, as the ideal leadership persona includes a forthcoming and relationship-based leader who is extraverted, has strong social skills, is change-oriented, and exhibits little anxiety (Dan et al., 2021). Likewise, this personality attribute also has a positive impact on social engagement-promoting technologies (Maran et al., 2022).

In contrast, the role of extraversion is defined by both dominance and positive emotionality, which implies that an increased focus on dominance may lead extraverted leaders to pay less importance to others and make meaningful relationships (Deinert et al., 2015). It can be perceived that the dominant aspect of extraversion might overshadow the empathy of such managers as it will not only impact team dynamics but will significantly ignore the human aspect that is important for successful technological transformation (e.g. AI). It is also observed that what increases extraverts'

positive affect, in general, may be lacking in the particular setting of utilizing and engaging with AI (Barnett et al., 2015).

It appears that the individualized nature of technological transformations, which hinders social connection, may explain the detrimental consequences (Barnett et al., 2015). So managers with higher levels of extraversion trait have a negative attitude toward the functionality component while not in the sociality component (Park & Woo, 2022). Interpersonal interaction and incentive motivation are two fundamental elements of extraversion, although extraversion's sociability fails to account for good emotional experiences (Lucas et al., 2008). The reward sensitivity aspect of extraversion, rather than the 'active social engagement' nature, may explain extraversi' adverse emotions and poor judgment of AI's usefulness (Park & Woo, 2022). Extraversion characteristics could encourage managers to perceive technological innovations as an avenue for social engagement and status, rather than as a replacement for human interaction (Correa et al., 2010), and these perspectives are unlikely to drive adverse reactions concerning the sociality factor of AI (Park & Woo, 2022). However, the functionality component of AI, which has the potential to outperform human performance and contradicts the current incentive system, may increase managers' negative attitudes about the dimension (Park & Woo, 2022).

Simply put, extrovert managers will fail to strike a balance between social interactions and the complexities of AI-based technology. Another aspect that might hinder the development of AI leadership capability would be, managing team dynamics where periodically individual-focused work is prioritized. Thus, it might clash with the dynamics of managers who value social interaction while handling all affairs. Similarly, they are required to be optimistic and informed while making decisions to achieve the AI initiatives which in the case of their extroverted personality might fall short as they are quick in asserting their perspectives. While extroverted managers often excel in social situations and thrive on human interactions, AI-focused critical tasks, such as technical analysis and strategic planning, can be challenging. Regardless of their communication and relationship-building capabilities, extroverted managers may consider the cognitive requirements and analytical nature of AI implementation challenging or exhausting.

5.2.4 Agreeableness and AI Leadership Capability

The fourth hypothesis (H4) was, "Managers with higher levels of agreeableness trait will demonstrate greater AI leadership capabilities". The result for H4 indicated that managers with higher agreeableness traits demonstrated greater AI leadership capability. The findings are consistent with the existing literature that acknowledges the positive association between this personality trait and leaders' attitudes toward change (Diller et al., 2020). Similarly, this trait is important within the system where the focus is on pursuing collaborative work agendas (Park & Woo, 2022). Managers with such traits will be more capable of making meaningful judgments through their usage of big data, since it will help to unite all of the resources surrounding the procedure, while sustaining excellent relationships with the individuals that gather and analyze the data (Lacam & Salvetat, 2023). This leadership personality feature appears to be consistent with the open system of AI technology (Lacam & Salvetat, 2023), which drives a company into much more collaborative interactions with its environment (Chen et al., 2012). Manager's inclination to employ new and collaborative technologies is positively impacted by agreeableness since it promotes communication, cooperation, and information sharing (Duan & Deng, 2023). Similarly, it allows managers to operate into a positive work environment, allowing for the successful implementation of technological transformations (Pradana & Mayasari, 2023).

Against this backdrop, it may be deduced that this personality trait will assist in building a collaborative environment, encouraging teamwork, and effective communication among varied experts (Park & Woo, 2022), thus increasing the likelihood of successful AI adoption. Moreover, managers with such traits fosters positive connections and cooperation, as well as plays an important role in encouraging people to task performance and promoting knowledge sharing and the exchange of tacit information in organizational settings, which is critical for transformational initiatives (Ayub et al., 2019). Given this scenario, it is possible to conclude that the agreeableness attribute in managers promotes information sharing, which is critical for successfully demonstrating AI leadership capability, dependent on cultivating positive relationships and constructive teamwork. Concurrently, agreeableness influences both intuitive and pragmatic decision-making approaches (Dan et al., 2021). So agreeableness driven managers will demonstrate greater AI leadership capability because it makes intuitive decision-making easier and ensures more dependable and inclusive strategies—which are crucial for successfully traversing complicated AI environments.

Correspondingly, the agreeableness trait plays a significant role in determining a person's likelihood of being accepted by social groups and their capacity to uphold the kind of social and professional connections that are essential to the success of innovative or technological initiatives (Ali et al., 2018). In this view, agreeableness plays a critical role in demonstrating AI leadership capability because it builds strong social connections and helps managers retain the relationships that are essential to creativity and the success of technological endeavors. Simply put, managers with the agreeableness trait are better able to build inclusive and productive work environments, maintain relationships, and deal with conflicts that could threaten the achievement of organizational goals. This personality trait equips them with the capabilities to create a participative environment while facilitating the external and internal stakeholders throughout the transition, critical to AI initiatives.

5.2.5 Conscientiousness and AI Leadership Capability

The fifth hypothesis (H5) was, "*Managers with higher levels of* conscientiousness *trait will demonstrate greater AI leadership capabilities*". As conjectured, H5 reported that managers with higher levels of conscientiousness trait indeed demonstrate greater AI leadership capabilities. Drawing on the leadership literature, effective leaders regularly evaluate how morally appropriate their actions are. This is accomplished by paying close attention to detail, making deliberate rather than impulsive decisions, feeling strongly about their moral obligations, and acting according to their conscience (Kumari et al., 2022). Likewise, this goes for managers who exhibit higher levels of this personality trait as they are more likely to take proactive steps to deal with problems, like problem-focused planning and action (Babalola et al., 2019).

Similarly, managers that possess the conscientiousness trait will be better able to codify and structure their data management in a way that will benefit the progress of their company (Lacam & Salvetat, 2023). Also, this trait aligns with the qualities needed for digital work, such as being self-driven, self-disciplined, and structured (Xiaoxia, 2023). Thus, the conscientiousness trait will support managers in developing capabilities to drive organized approaches, overseeing intricate projects, and making sure that every aspect is carefully considered when navigating the complexities of AI initiatives. Comparably, it is observed that conscientiousness focused managers promote the need for success and predicts that individuals would accept AI if they believed it to be competent and effective (Miyoung, 2020). Given this, it can be concluded that this trait

encourages managers to succeed in adopting AI which would result in proactive AI integration and optimization within leadership strategies, improving total technological capabilities.

Accordingly, Individuals who possess this trait also have a propensity to impart a lot of information because they see knowledge distribution as one of their responsibilities (Ayub et al., 2019). From this perspective, managers high in this trait will demonstrate greater AI leadership capabilities that will include integrating information, encouraging creativity, and enhancing problem-solving—all of which are essential for successful AI integration. Also, conscientiousness—which is defined as purposefulness, perseverance, and obligation—embodies a methodical, orderly, and conscientious attitude along with a robust work ethic (Maran et al., 2022). Also, conscientiousness is linked to motivation to learn because managers who possess this trait set clear objectives and demonstrate success-oriented behaviors, which aligns with a focus on learning goals suggestive of prioritizing skill and knowledge development (Dan et al., 2021).

Moreover, conscientiousness is linked to the implementation of intentions about technology adoption, indicating that people with high conscientiousness first carefully consider if technology can improve their efficacy at work before implementing it (Barnett et al., 2014). By encouraging a thorough technological analysis and enabling informed decision-making that aligns technology adoption with transformational initiatives, conscientiousness enhances leadership capability. Simply put, conscientiousness plays a significant role in the development of AI leadership capability. Managers are required to carry out reliable analysis, scrutinize information for robust and effective strategic decisions, and meticulously eye the alignment between AI initiatives and ethical considerations while redesigning the systems to minimize the AI-focused risks voiced by the stakeholders. This can be successfully achieved with the presence of the conscientiousness trait as it equips managers with the capability to achieve AI initiatives successfully.

5.2.6 AI leadership Capability and AI transformation

The sixth hypothesis was, "*There is a positive effect of AI leadership capability on AI transformation*". Unsurprisingly, results for H6 stated a positive association between AI leadership capability and AI transformation. It is indeed consistent with the existing literature that acknowledges the role of leadership capabilities in facilitating successful AI transformation (Zulu & Khosrowshahi, 2021). In essence, managers must ensure that all staff members are embarking

on the transformational journey (Tuschner et al., 2022) and assist enterprises in successfully implementing transformative initiatives (Sagbaş & Erdogan, 2022). It has been observed that transformational energy from leadership enables businesses to become digital and, consequently, effective with AI transformation (Brock, 2019). It is imperative that managers comprehend the current state of AI technologies and how they might contribute to organizational transformation by enhancing productivity, security, and accessibility to business services (Chen et al., 2019). In light of this, it would seem that leadership capabilities have a significant impact on organizational procedures and can help AI-based organizational transformation initiatives generate value (Taguimdje et al., 2020).

Additionally, these capabilities help managers succeed by promoting a digital mindset, keeping an eye on new technological developments, formulating investment plans, skillfully leading teams through quick and accurate changes, building cooperative networks, and gaining digital competencies that are essential for smooth transformational endeavors (Nuaimi et al., 2022). From this perspective, to successfully navigate adaptive challenges through experimentation and difficult adjustments for sustainable growth and success, managers need the mindset and capabilities to wisely embrace the prospects and difficulties provided by new technologies, especially AI transformation (Goralski & Tan, 2020).

Put differently, the success of such transformations within businesses depends on technological investments and leadership capabilities, while managers play a critical role in building a datadriven culture (Heavin & Power, 2018). This is because the ability to visualize, interpret, and compare data are capabilities critical for fostering data-based decision-making (Wiljer & Hakim, 2019). It can be inferred that it will assist in complex dataset analysis, the derivation of significant patterns, and the making of informed decisions, all of which are necessary for effectively employing AI transformation within the organization. Similarly, transformation depends more on the manager's perception within the organization's digitally driven and evolving environments and acting strategically instead of focusing only on introducing AI tools, data management, or any other digital technology in the organization (Jones et al., 2021).

Simply put, AI leadership capability is significant for managers to effectively and efficiently integrate AI-based technologies within organizational settings. Naturally, AI transformation like

other phenomena requires the execution of AI-focused strategies, models, and technologies that facilitate organizational efficiency, innovation, and strategic direction. Here, managers with AI leadership capability are the guiding force to ensure successful AI transformation within the organization. In its totality, AI leadership capability is essential for managers in coordinating AI transformation with organizational objectives, fostering cultural change, efficiently allocating resources, and ensuring that AI-based technologies provide the firm with substantial value.

5.2.7 AI Leadership Capability Mediator: Openness and AI Transformation

The seventh hypothesis (H7) was, "*AI leadership capability mediates the relationship between openness and AI transformation*". The result of this mediation analysis painted a different image as AI leadership capability failed to mediate the relationship between openness and AI transformation. Leaders with high degrees of openness may find it difficult to maintain focus on long-term strategic objectives in environments that are constantly shifting because there are so many options and ideas available to them (Dulebohn et al., 2012). According to this viewpoint, a strong propensity for experimentation and novelty may introduce needless risks or distractions, creating obstacles to the strategic and methodical approach of managers, required for successful AI transformation. Also, the role of managers with such personality-driven leadership capability in contributing to greater levels of instability or ineffective plan execution in digital environments where adaptability is essential (Carsten et al., 2019). Although this trait allows managers to fosters leadership capability that psychologically secures work environment (Ozbag, 2016), their neverending search for new ideas and experiences resulting in frequent adjustments to tactics or technologies, which creates instability and confusion within the team and ultimately lower the likelihood of a successful AI transformation.

Simply put, this personality trait indeed holds a tendency to equip managers to generate novel ideas, however, it might not necessarily mean that it will assist in the practical execution of AI transformation. Likewise, being open and embracing the new phenomena does not mean that managers would not show resistance to particular change initiatives that might hinder their ability to effectively implement AI transformation. Pakistan is still in the initial phases of marking its footprint in the AI revolution. Expectedly, managers are and will require a comprehensive understanding of the dynamic complexities of using AI-based technologies. Thus, it can be

concluded that openness to other personality traits is lacking in building technical expertise to navigate the AI transformation.

5.2.8 AI Leadership Capability Mediator: Neuroticism and AI Transformation

The eighth hypothesis (H8) was, "AI leadership capability mediates the relationship between neuroticism and AI transformation". The research findings for H8 declared that indeed managers with lower neurotic traits will demonstrate greater AI leadership capabilities that will prove to be catalysts of AI transformation within the organization. The picture of neuroticism is fairly clear. It goes without saying that managers who are anxious frequently have a fear of change and novelty. This suggests that even more disgruntled managers would try to stop digitization and hinder the growth of their companies. Furthermore, because they are never drawn to or inspired by an unsure leader, staff members may grow annoyed or frustrated with them. Neuroticism seems to be a clear barrier to digitization (Diller et al., 2020).

Anxiety, which is implied by neuroticism, should clearly impede change, adaptability, and corporate advancement (Pradana & Mayasari, 2023). It follows that a neurotic manager's fear could make them reluctant to adopt AI, which would impede the critical decision-making needed for its effective application. This is because high neurotic managers might perceive technological evolution or transformation as a risky and challenging endeavor (Iqbal et al., 2021). Moreover, they not only fail to prevent people from developing an aversion to change, but they also persistently erode trust in the ability to interact with digital technologies (Maran et al., 2022). Also, it is challenging for neurotic managers to participate in knowledge-creation activities because they often feel negative emotions and find it difficult to share information, especially implicit knowledge (Ayub et al., 2019). From this perspective, such leadership appears to be ineffective due to experiencing psychological ailments (Chandrakumara et al., 2020), as a result hindering AI transformation through ineffectiveness and observing psychological challenges that will impact crucial decision-making.

Simply put, AI transformation requires vigorous adaptation to new models, technologies, and processes. However, it is a pure nightmare for managers with high levels of neuroticism as it would be challenging to adapt to such ambiguity and change which is ruling the AI ecosystem. This is given that neurotic leaders tend to be prudent and anxious, which makes them appear less proactive

(Andolšek & Salkić, 2023). In contrast, for low neurotic managers, it is a different story as they appear to be less resistant to change initiatives and are prepared to tackle technological uncertainties.

5.2.9 AI Leadership Capability Mediator: Extraversion and AI Transformation

The ninth hypothesis (H9) was, "AI leadership capability mediates the relationship between extraversion and AI transformation". Unexpectedly, H9 which proposed a mediation analysis was rejected. Extraversion is defined by both dominance and positive emotionality, which implies that an increased focus on dominance may lead extraverted leaders to pay less importance to others and make meaningful relationships (Deinert, 2015). It can be perceived that the dominant aspect of extraversion might overshadow the empathy of such managers as it will not only impact team dynamics but will significantly ignore the human aspect that is important for successful AI.

Also, what might increase extraverts' positive affect, in general, may be lacking in the particular setting of utilizing and engaging with AI (Barnett et al., 2015). Researchers believe that the individualized nature of technological transformations, which hinders social connection, may explain the detrimental consequences (Barnett et al., 2015). Extraverted traits may lead managers to view technology as a means of achieving social status and engagement rather than as a substitute for interpersonal communication (Correa et al., 2010). These viewpoints are unlikely to elicit negative responses regarding the sociality factor of artificial intelligence (Park & Woo, 2022). However, extroverted managers' negative perceptions of the dimension may grow due to the functionality component of AI, which has the ability to surpass human performance and defies the current incentive structure (Park & Woo, 2022).

Simply put, managers, who enjoy thriving in social settings, tend to prioritize social connections and communication above all the other aspects, crucial for developing effective leadership. As they are closely connected to the social aspect, they might not have in-depth knowledge of AI leadership perspectives that aim to foster AI transformation. Similarly, AI leadership requires indepth examination, analytical thinking, and problem-solving, necessary for effective AI leadership. In this scenario, clashes of perspectives might arise as extraverted managers will promote extraverted behavior when introverted behavior (e.g. attention to detail) is necessary for AI transformation.

5.2.10 AI Leadership Capability Mediator: Agreeableness and AI Transformation

The tenth hypothesis (H10) was, "AI leadership capability mediates the relationship between agreeableness and AI transformation". The result for H10 indicates that AI leadership capability mediates the proposed relationship. This aligns with the empirical research that recognizes this personality trait's significance in bolstering intuitive and reliant decision-making approaches. (Dan et al., 2021). These approaches will improve adaptability and efficient communication, assisting in the success of organizational transformation projects. Also, agreeable driven managers are more capable of making meaningful judgments through big data usage as it will help in unifying resources surrounding the procedure while sustaining relationships with entities responsible for gathering and analyzing the data (Lacam & Salvetat, 2023).

In brief, this manager's personality-driven AI leadership capability contributes to addressing the differing perspectives of the stakeholders and fostering a culture of collaboration and effective communication which is crucial for driving AI transformation. Moreover, such managers are compatible with the open system of AI technology (Lacam & Salvetat, 2023), which encourages a business to engage in far more cooperative interactions with its surroundings (Chen et al., 2012). Comparably, this trait supports managers'' function to shift into one that is supportive of employees, which makes it possible for technology changes to be implemented successfully (Pradana & Mayasari, 2023). Given this context, it can be inferred that this feature will help foster a cooperative atmosphere, promote teamwork, and facilitate efficient communication among diverse experts (Park & Woo, 2022). This will raise the possibility that AI transformation will be successful.

Simply put, managers known for being cooperative and relationship-focused, are essential for creating a positive team environment and facilitating efficient communication—two critical components of AI endeavors. This is consistent with the knowledge that cooperative efforts and transparent channels of communication are essential to the success of the AI transformation. Thus, the attribute of agreeableness forms the basis for developing leadership skills suited to AI problems. Managers, who place a strong emphasis on developing relationships and interpersonal skills, are in a good position to successfully negotiate the complexities of the AI transformation.

5.2.11 AI Leadership Capability Mediator: Conscientiousness and AI Transformation

The eleventh hypothesis (H11) was, "AI leadership capability mediates the relationship between conscientiousness and AI transformation". The result of H11 was in favor of the proposed research assumption. As per Miyoung's (2020) empirical study, managers are more likely to accept AI if they perceive it to be competent and effective. This suggests that managers with conscientiousness-driven leadership capability support the need for success. Given, it can be said that this may motivate successful managers to use AI, which would most likely lead to proactive AI transformation and optimization within leadership tactics, enhancing overall technological capabilities. They are more likely to take proactive steps to deal with problems, like problem-focused planning and action (Babalola et al., 2019), critical to successful AI transformation.

Similarly, managers will be perceived by their peers as more motivating and stimulating which will contribute to guiding their company and employees toward a new, digitized business (Diller et al., 2020). In other words, this leadership capability supports company initiatives toward successful technological transformation (Hamamoto et al., 2023). Likewise, managers possessing this trait also have a propensity to impart a lot of information because they see knowledge distribution as one of their responsibilities (Ayub et al., 2019). From this perspective, this trait will demonstrate AI leadership capabilities through integrating information, encouraging creativity, and enhancing problem-solving - all of which are essential for successful AI transformation.

Simply put, this conscientiousness-driven AI leadership capability will assist managers in conducting reliable analysis, scrutinizing information for sound and effective strategic decisions, and meticulously monitoring the alignment of AI initiatives and ethical considerations while redesigning systems to mitigate the AI-related risks raised by stakeholders. This is possible with the presence of the conscientiousness trait, which provides managers with such AI leadership capability to successfully implement AI initiatives.

5.3 Theoretical Implications

The main aim of this study is to examine the causal relationship between personality traits (openness, agreeableness, conscientiousness, extraversion & neuroticism), AI leadership capability and AI transformation. In doing so, the current research bridges gaps and makes several

contributions to the AI literature in the context of organizational-focused outcomes. To date, no research has been conducted about all the relationships proposed in the research framework.

5.3.1 Operationalization of Constructs

This study introduces the operationalization of two new constructs: AI leadership capability and AI transformation. To define these constructs, the existing operationalization of digital leadership and digital transformation was considered. Ultimately, this study will make meaningful contributions to the domain of AI by opening avenues toward the integration of leadership studies with machine learning.

5.3.2 AI leadership Capability as Mediator

The current study introduces AI leadership capability as a potential mediator when studying the concept of AI through the lens of psychological studies. This provides theoretical confirmation of AI leadership capability being dependent on the potential of personality traits to foster successful AI transformation within IT organizations. It means that, while specific personality traits may incline managers to be more receptive in embracing AI, the AI leadership capability ultimately decides the effective application and integration of AI transformation within an organization. Therefore, AI leadership capability is a crucial component in converting managers' personality traits into successful organizational change. Managers with such capabilities are able to take advantage of their conscientiousness and agreeable personality traits to create an atmosphere that is favorable to AI transformation. In order to drive innovation and preserve a competitive edge in the digital age (Wamba et al., 2024), this mediating role suggests that AI leadership capability is not just a supporting catalyst but rather a crucial element that is capable of navigating the complexities of AI transformation. Thus, theoretical models could be improved to incorporate AI leadership capability as a crucial component for forecasting successful execution of AI transformation.

In brief, introduction of this mediator raises, firstly, both the awareness of re-conceptualizing leadership capability in the digital era (Fatima & Maqsood, 2024) and examining the possible antecedents (personality traits) that will demonstrate greater AI leadership capabilities critical to AI transformation. Secondly, this will encourage cross-disciplinary research opportunities by combining and considering the insights generated from psychology, management, organizational,

information technology and human-computer behavioral studies (Taguimdje et al., 2020). Lastly, this provides a novel perspective of how the variations in personality traits of managers can impact AI transformation through the existence of trait-developed AI leadership capability, ultimately shaping the current and future research perspectives.

5.3.3 Personality Traits and AI Leadership Capability

The present study highlights the importance of psychological makeup or personality traits in the development of AI-focused leadership which can foster AI initiatives in line with organizational values. This increases the importance of studying personality traits to confront the complexities and uncertainties when dealing with AI-based technologies. This fusion of personality traits with AI will allow researchers, scholars, and theorists to delve deeper to understand this connection as combining technical expertise with abilities tailored through these traits will guide AI transformation to success while observing the ethical and societal implications. Ultimately, informing us about the personality traits crucial for effective AI leadership and increasing awareness regarding the development of personality models that will foster AI leadership.

5.3.3.1 Agreeableness, Conscientiousness and Neuroticism

In context to research findings, it was found that managers with higher levels of agreeableness, conscientiousness and lower levels of neurotic traits will demonstrate greater AI leadership capabilities. Agreeableness, which includes attributes like cooperativeness, affection, and compassion, can help managers communicate, collaborate, and resolve conflicts more effectively (He et al., 2023). This, in turn, will result in a more unified and engaged workforce that is open to AI-driven transformation. Furthermore, agreeable managers are efficient in building a positive company culture that encourages creativity and continual learning (Cramarenco et al., 2023) which are critical to successful AI transformation. Similarly, conscientiousness, defined as diligence, precision, and a strong sense of duty, leads to more methodical and comprehensive integration of AI transformation (Jia & Hou 2024). This will lead to improved strategic planning, risk control (Dwivedi et al., 2021) and consistent implementation of AI endeavors. Also, conscientious managers will proactively upskill their employees, to ensure that the change initiatives prior to AI transformation are met by minimal resistance. Lastly, lower neuroticism, which is related to greater emotional stability, may allow managers to approach AI transformation more carefully and strategically. This feature promotes good stress management, rational decision-making, and the

preservation of a positive work setting (Rice et al., 2022), all of which are necessary for driving AI transformation. In principle, psychologically sound managers will establish an environment that encourages creativity and continual learning that leads to more successful AI transformation.

5.3.3.2 Openness and Extraversion

The relationship of openness trait and AI leadership capabilities imply that managers with a higher level of openness do not demonstrate greater AI leadership capabilities. While openness is often linked with creativity and adaptability (Raya et al., 2023), both of which are beneficial for AI leadership capability—other traits may play a more important role in this context. It indicates that abilities including technical expertise and strategic vision demonstrated by specific personality traits (Cui et al., 2022) are more important in determining AI leadership capabilities. This could call into question the widely held belief that openness alone is adequate for developing leadership capabilities in AI focused culture, leading to a more comprehensive knowledge of the other personality traits required for AI transformation within the IT industry.

The relationship of extraversion trait and AI leadership capabilities imply that managers with a higher level of extraversion trait do not demonstrate greater AI leadership capabilities. It implies that the traditional concept of extraversion as an indicator of leadership capability may not apply in the context of AI focused leadership capabilities. The emerging perspective questions the existing premises that extraversion is systematically favorable to leadership in an array of settings. It could also imply that the complexities of AI leadership necessitate a unique set of interpersonal capabilities that cannot be covered solely by extraversion. This viewpoint is consistent with research indicating that, while extraversion can provide some benefits in traditional leadership situations, its influence may differ depending on the job role and nature of the work involved (Landis et al., 2022).

5.3.4 AI Leadership Capability and AI Transformation

This study examined the positive association between the two constructs, indicating the importance of AI leadership capability in driving successful AI transformation within organizational settings. The relationship between AI leadership capability and AI transformation makes an important contribution to the realm of organizational management. This relationship highlights the critical role of AI-savvy managers in driving transformative processes to remodel traditional business models through the efficient and effective integration of AI (Fleming, 2020). It further places the importance of these capabilities in effective decision making, operational efficiency and fostering innovation (Heukamp, 2020). As a result, this relationship provides a comprehensive understanding about leveraging AI leadership capabilities in achieving AI transformation throughout the business processes.

5.3.5 Methodological Advantage

For the execution of this research, purposive sampling was considered for data collection. In context to the inclusive criteria, data was collected only from employees in managerial roles or above and were using AI-based technology. For which filter questions were incorporated in the research instrument and before the data collection, respondents were asked about the usage of any AI tools. As AI is an umbrella term and includes various tools and technologies for this research we did not specify the level or type of usage. Accordingly, this opens an opportunity for future research involving specific levels of usage or types of AI-based technology to perhaps overcome the limitation of data collection.

5.4 Managerial Implications

Although AI is consistently shaping the work dynamics and providing limitless opportunities to businesses across a global footprint. Yet such technologies may appear intimidating if you lack awareness concerning their implementation or if there is an absence of experts who can smoothly employ such technological innovations in the organizational bodies. Therefore, this study aims to provide a few implications for practitioners to successfully execute AI transformation within their companies.

5.4.1 Personality traits and AI leadership Capability

Research findings focus on the importance of personality traits in the development of AI leadership capability. Our findings suggested that managers with higher levels of agreeableness and conscientiousness traits will demonstrate greater AI leadership capability. Also, the findings proposed that managers with lower levels of neurotic trait will demonstrate greater AI leadership capabilities within the IT sector Pakistan. In contrast, the findings suggested that managers with higher levels of openness and extraversion trait will not demonstrate greater AI leadership capabilities.

5.4.1.1 Agreeableness and AI Leadership Capability

The IT organizations should aim towards introducing new and improving the current personality assessment tests when hiring manager-level employees. Looking for applicants who demonstrate characteristics including empathy, cooperation, and teamwork, are critical to the development of AI leadership capabilities that will help in achieving AI initiatives. Moreover, they should focus on fostering a participative, collaborative and mutually respective culture within the IT companies. This will empower the employees in taking accountability and work towards experimenting with novel ideas, critical to AI-focused strategy and implementation. Similarly, the organizations can invest in conflict resolution training as it will equip the managers with skill, tools and capabilities to not only manage disagreements related to AI integration but also enforce positive relationship among all the stakeholders, ultimately minimizing the resistance against AI. Also, such managers should be encourage in leveraging their capabilities as it will allow them to manage team dynamics which will prove to be crucial for the AI adoption.

It appears as no surprise that the role of Pakistan's government in introducing and sponsoring the AI landscape within the business processes of the IT industry is imperative. Firstly, the government can invest in developing and executing policies that will support institutions and educational programs aiming towards the enhancement of future IT leaders' both social skills and agreeableness. Secondly, the government should prioritize the concept of incentivizing personality driven capabilities to achieve organizational goals. So, the governing body can invest in Government-sponsored training or educational programs that will emphasize the development of personality-driven capabilities, including conflict resolution, communication, and empathy. These abilities are essential for managers to handle challenging team dynamics in AI initiatives. One impactful endeavor initiated by a visible governing body has the potential to propagate swiftly, instilling comparable behaviors and strengthening the vision and implementation of that endeavor. Consequently, the public body should acknowledge and incentivize the IT companies who are prioritizing AI leadership capabilities supported by agreeable work cultures to embrace the phenomena of AI.

5.4.1.2 Conscientiousness and AI Leadership Capability

The IT companies can work on redesigning their performance metrics by employing performance measures that incentivize diligent and detail-oriented conduct, which are critical for overseeing

intricate AI systems. Moreover, the training and development department of IT companies should invest in providing managers with leadership development opportunities that foster conscientiousness, equipping them with AI leadership capabilities, critical to AI transformation. Similarly, IT businesses should prioritize quality control processes and regulatory compliance throughout the AI research lifecycle. Managers with a high level of conscientiousness are inclined to prioritize these issues, lowering the possibility of AI system faults or ethical breaches. Also, employing robust project management methods, such as thorough preparation, risk assessment, and observing, can help AI initiatives succeed. Conscientious managers tend to embrace and uphold these methods within their teams, creating pathway towards successful AI adoption.

The government should develop regulatory structures to enable responsible AI implementation, with a focus on ethical considerations and implications for the future. Also, allocate resources for study on the effect of conscientiousness on both the development of managers' AI leadership capabilities and supporting transformational initiatives while increasing the understanding and promotion of the best practices to manage the complexities of AI systems. In short, government can also impose regulations and standards governing data confidentiality, privacy, and ethical AI practices. Managers with high levels of conscientiousness trait are more likely to follow these standards strictly, lowering the likelihood of unethical AI implementations. So, setting priorities for building infrastructure, particularly in the areas of technology and cybersecurity, can help responsible managers ensure the integrity and stability of AI systems employed by IT businesses.

5.4.1.3 Neuroticism and AI Leadership Capability

IT companies should invest in managers' emotional intelligence training, highlighting the value of self-awareness, self-control, and empathy. Managers with lower levels of neurotic trait are more likely to demonstrate greater emotional regulation, which is critical for overcoming the obstacles of AI transformation. Simultaneously, they should consider the implementation of stress management initiatives such as employee wellness programs, relaxation strategies and offering flexible working arrangements which will help in maintaining the mental and physical well-being while managing the complex tapestry of AI transformation. Ultimately, improving the decision-making processes, enjoying innovation, and overall leadership capability. Also, establishing a company culture which prioritizes resiliency and stability will help in attracting or developing managers with lower neuroticism, which are consistent with the ideal AI leadership

capabilities. For which IT companies should work on the introduction and implementation of policies that fosters open communication, provides feedback platforms, and also promotes work promote work-life balance.

The government should recognize the significance of psychological well-being in leadership, the government can enact regulations that promote wellness initiatives at the workplace. This includes programs like counseling sessions, yoga session, leisure activities, stress management training, and equip with resources to deal work stress. Moreover, they should provide funding to the research and development centers so that the future theorists can further investigate the relationship of managers' personality traits in demonstrating AI leadership capabilities while furthering the validation and refinement of these findings. The government can also introduce stress management curriculum in the existing education policies that will assist in developing managers who will be the future AI champions. Consequently, AI leaders of tomorrow would be selected and developed.

5.4.1.4 Openness and AI Leadership Capability

The findings suggest that openness trait does not contribute to the development of AI leadership capabilities. IT companies can concentrate on forming multidisciplinary teams consisting of individuals with a variety of personality types, particularly those with higher levels of openness and complementary features. This will balance the possible constraints of managers who are less open to driving AI efforts, resulting in a more comprehensive approach to problem resolution and development. Similarly, establishing an innovative culture within the firm that promotes experimentation, continual learning, and information sharing can help mitigate for low levels of Openness in leadership. Companies can build venues for idea generating, innovation labs, and incentive schemes to foster an innovative culture at all levels of the firm.

The government should invest in leadership development programs that emphasize strategic thinking, agility, and creativity. These programs ought to strive in improving the leadership capabilities for those with low openness trait, allowing them to successfully manage AI transformation in spite of their shortcomings in innovation and risk-taking. Moreover, policies and endeavors to encourage variety of beliefs and perspective inside companies might help compensate for lower levels of openness in leadership capabilities. By creating an environment in which diverse perspectives are recognized and promoted, the government can help managers make

informed decisions and effectively drive AI transformation. Lastly, the public body can provide funding for future studies on the examining the relationship of personality traits and AI system to identify the best traits that can strive in AI ecosystem.

5.4.1.5 Extraversion and AI Leadership Capability

The communication preference and approaches of managers with lower extroversion trait can be catered to by IT organizations through the implementation of communication techniques. This could entail offering training in efficient virtual communication techniques, utilizing technology for online interaction, and creating opportunities for written communication. Also, systematic networking opportunities, coaching programs, and career growth initiatives can assist managers with lower extraverted characteristics in establishing and maintaining contacts within this IT industry. Companies should make it easier for employees to attend professional gatherings, forums, and conferences in order to expand their networks and gain access to important resources and opportunities of AI transformation.

The government can invest in developing collaborative decision-making methods which provide for input from a variety of stakeholders can help to overcome the potential disadvantages of demonstrating low extraversion traits in leadership capabilities. Thus, government can encourage collaboration in decision-making procedures, advisory boards, and feedback channels to bring in various perspectives to ensure successful integration of AI transformation. Similarly, government can establish guidelines that support the growth of various skills and traits within the IT workforce while acknowledging that not all characteristics are equally important for AI leadership. Simultaneously, raising awareness of the significance of aligning traits to job responsibilities in order to facilitate the installation and administration of AI more successfully.

5.4.2 AI Leadership Capability and AI Transformation

The findings highlight the positive impact of AI leadership capability on AI transformation. It tends to enhance our awareness regarding the important role of AI leadership in driving AI transformation within the company. IT companies should invest in creating a culture that fosters creativity, diversity, and cooperation is critical for capitalizing on personality-driven AI leadership capabilities. IT firms should foster an inclusive workplace culture in which employees feel free to share concepts, experiment with AI technologies, and welcome change. Aligning company values

with the desirable traits of managers will help in fostering culture that is favorable to AI transformation initiatives. Moreover, IT companies can introduce performance metrics to measure the effectiveness of AI leadership on the transformational goals of the company. IT firms ought to prioritize recruiting and training of managers whose personality traits are compatible in demonstrating AI leadership capabilities. This includes integrating personality tests into the hiring procedure, as well as giving training and mentoring to improve AI focused AI leadership capabilities. It can be more beneficial and thorough to use personality tests in conjunction with other performance indicators and evaluation instruments (Shahzad, 2020).

The government can launch leadership evaluation programs to find managers with the personality traits required to drive AI change. These personality assessments will aid in the selection and development of leaders who possess vital traits such as innovation, adaptability, and strategic vision. Investing in leadership training courses designed to improve the personality traits related to demonstrating greater AI leadership capabilities can result in a pool of skilled managers ready to drive AI transformation initiatives across IT industry. Also, government should invest in public-private partnerships to boost AI transformation initiatives. The government need to work with IT companies to develop collaborative strategies, pool resources, and harness expertise to speed up AI adoption and innovation. These collaborations may also include academics, research institutes, and global organizational bodies to leverage diverse perspectives and capabilities, crucial for AI transformation.

5.4.3 AI Leadership Capability as Mediator

In context to the research findings, AI leadership capability mediates the relationship between personality traits and AI transformation. IT businesses should place a high priority on funding leadership development and training initiatives that enhance AI leadership potential. This entails giving leaders the chance to improve their capabilities in fields like team management, communication, and strategic thinking. IT businesses can enable managers to effectively traverse the intricacies of AI transformation, despite their unique personality traits, by building a culture of continual learning and career advancement. IT organizations should foster a culture in which managers are able to capitalize on the team members' capabilities to spur innovation and change, and where all opinions are valued and heard. Within the company, inclusive leadership practices

can be promoted by putting initiatives like diversity training, collaborative learning forums, and mentoring programs into action.

The government can prepare funding for initiatives aimed towards the development of AI leadership capabilities such as leadership developmental programs. Regardless of their unique personality traits, these programs should provide managers with the abilities and information required to effectively coordinate AI transformation initiatives. Through training in areas - change management, strategic planning, and stakeholder engagement, government bodies may enable managers to leverage their strengths and optimize their capabilities to manager AI transformation complexities. It is also important for government to make policies or SOPs to support leadership developmental programs and effectively handle talent management initiatives that will foster AI leadership capabilities within the IT industry of Pakistan. This could entail offering monetary rewards to firms' practicing leadership development and training programs, as well as encouraging cooperation between business, academic, and governmental organizations so best practices, policies and resources can be communicated.

5.5 Limitations and Future Recommendations

Although this is the first study to examine the BFM with AI leadership capability and AI transformation, as well as pioneering the proposed relationships in the conceptual framework, it has some limitations, as does all research. Firstly, the data were cross-sectional so the constraint timeline bounded us with limited time to invest in data collection. Thus, when conducting this research again, a large sample should be considered and sufficient time should be allotted to data collection and research analysis. Several limitations must be considered when interpreting the results presented in this article. Secondly, as the methodology for this research is quantitative, it is static (Lacam & Salvetat, 2023). A qualitative investigation aimed at delineating the mechanisms and preconditions underlying personality's impact on AI transformation and leadership growth would be intriguing. Third, our research is intended to be original, thus it is still in progression phase, as it presently just demonstrates the theoretical and empirical link between personality-driven AI leadership and AI transformation in the IT sector. As such, not every facet of the phenomenon is covered by our approach. For instance, only the effects of BFM components are covered by the conceptual framework. Potential avenues for future investigation include exploring the connection between several facets of AI transformation (such employee resistance,

organizational and technological challenges, self-esteem, narcissism, and core self-evaluation) and other characteristics of personality. Last but not least, due to a dearth of prior research in this field, we had certain difficulties in developing our layout for this study. Future researchers can further explore the relationship between personality traits and AI leadership in other sectors that are in the initial phase of transition.

5.6 Conclusion

The primary objective of this research was to investigate the impact of the Big Five model on AI leadership capability and the impact of AI leadership capability on AI transformation. This study was successful in pioneering the concept of AI leadership capability and AI transformation. Moreover, this study examined the mediating effect of AI leadership capability on the relationship between Big Five personality traits and AI transformation. The findings of this research revealed that managers with higher levels of traits like agreeableness and conscientiousness while lower levels of neurotics result in demonstrating greater AI leadership capabilities. This is because managers with low levels of neurotic traits will be able to strive in a dynamic AI ecosystem as such individuals lack the ability to manage anxiety or stress levels. In addition, Managers as change agents are required to handle disagreements between external and internal stakeholders to maintain relationships and proceed towards successful AI implementation which is unlikely to be executed by highly neurotic leaders.

In contrast, despite the paucity of research on the subject, leaders with the agreeableness trait are better able to build inclusive and productive work environments, maintain relationships, and deal with conflicts that could threaten the achievement of organizational goals. In other words, managers with this trait will have capabilities that will facilitate them in leading AI initiatives. Similarly, conscientiousness traits equip managers in carrying out reliable analysis, scrutinize information for robust and effective strategic decisions, and meticulously eye the alignment between AI initiatives and ethical considerations while redesigning the systems to minimize the AI-focused risks voiced by the stakeholders, all aimed towards successful AI transformation.

Conversely, openness and extraversion did not exhibit a positive association within the proposed relationship. Openness-driven managers may value consistent learning and adapt to the everevolving AI dynamic while ignoring the organizational capability towards the change and might fail to align the AI initiatives with the organization's overall strategic direction. In the case of extraversion, managers are required to be optimistic and informed while making decisions to achieve the AI initiatives which in the case of extroverts might fall short as they are quick in asserting their perspectives. Although extroverted managers prosper in social situations, the dynamic roles of AI leaders, such as technical analysis and strategic planning, may be too exhausting for such leaders. Moreover, the findings reported the indirect effect of AI leadership capabilities on AI transformation. The agreeableness trait contributes to addressing the differing perspectives of the stakeholders and fostering a culture of collaboration and effective communication which is crucial for driving AI transformation. Likewise, conscientiousness traits help AI leaders be meticulous and well-organized. Similarly, AI transformation requires vigorous adaptation to new models, technologies, and processes.

Consequently, these research findings contributed to formulating research implications. This study makes meaningful contributions to the domain of AI by opening avenues toward the integration of leadership studies with machine learning. Also, it introduces AI leadership capability as a potential mediator when studying the concept of AI through the lens of psychological studies. Practitioners should invest in designing leadership development or training workshops to enhance the impact of personality traits and equip leaders with abilities to manage AI transformation. Conclusively, even though this study has provided insightful information, it is important to recognize its limitations. These limitations provide opportunities for future studies to fill in knowledge gaps, improve methods, and investigate novel perspectives. Accepting these obstacles can advance the field by encouraging ongoing development and increased understanding in the pursuit of knowledge.

References

- Abbate, T., Codini, A., Aquilani, B., & Vrontis, D. (2022). From Knowledge Ecosystems to Capabilities Ecosystems: When Open Innovation Digital Platforms Lead to Value Cocreation. *Journal of the Knowledge Economy*, 13(1), 290–304. https://doi.org/10.1007/s13132-021-00720-1
- Abu Raya, M., Ogunyemi A.O., Broder J., Carstensen V.R., Illanes-Manrique M., & Rankin K.P. (2023). The neurobiology of openness as a personality trait. *Frontiers in Neurology*, 14, Article 1235345. https://doi.org/10.3389/fneur.2023.1235345
- Aguinis, H., Beltran, J. R., & Cope, A. (2024). How to use generative AI as a human resource management assistant. *Organizational Dynamics*, Advance online publication. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.orgdyn.2024.101029
- Ahmad, S. F., Han, H., Alam, M. M., Rehmat, M. K., Irshad, M., Arraño-Muñoz, M., & Ariza-Montes, A. (2023). Impact of artificial intelligence on human loss in decision making, laziness and safety in education. *Humanities and Social Sciences Communications*, 10(1), 1–14. https://doi.org/10.1057/s41599-023-01787-8
- Ahn, M. J., & Chen, Y. C. (2022). Digital transformation toward AI-augmented public administration: The perception of government employees and the willingness to use AI in government. *Government Information Quarterly*, 39(2), Article 101664. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.giq.2021.101664
- Ajami, R. A., & Karimi, H. A. (2023). Artificial intelligence: Opportunities and challenges. *Journal of Asia-pacific Business*, 24(2), 73–75. https://doi.org/10.1080/10599231.2023.2210239
- Alam, A. (2023). 10 urgent policy priorities for Pakistan towards AI-readiness. *Brecorder*. https://www.brecorder.com/news/40251832
- Aleezay. (2023, July 23). The future of AI and machine learning in Pakistan. *Discovering Our Pakistan*. https://ourpakistan.pk/ai-and-machine-learning/
- Ali, Z. A., Zain, M., Pathan, M. S., & Mooney, P. (2023). Contributions of artificial intelligence for circular economy transition leading toward sustainability: An explorative study in agriculture and food industries of Pakistan. *Environment, Development and Sustainability* Advance online publication. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10668-023-03458-9

- Allioui, H., & Mourdi, Y. (2023). Unleashing the Potential of AI: Investigating Cutting-Edge Technologies That Are Transforming Businesses. *International Journal of Computer Engineering and Data Science*, 3(2), 2737–8543.
- Amin, T. (2023). Ministry drafts 'National Artificial Intelligence Policy' Brecorder. https://www.brecorder.com/news/40242327
- Ammer, M. A., Ahmed, Z. A. T., Alsubari, S. N., Aldhyani, T. H. H., & Almaaytah, S. A. (2023). Application of Artificial Intelligence for Better Investment in Human Capital. *Mathematics*, 11(3), 1–17. https://doi.org/10.3390/math11030612
- Anagnostou, M., Karvounidou, O., Katritzidaki, C., Kechagia, C., & Melidou, K. (2022).
 Characteristics and challenges in the industries towards responsible AI: A systematic literature review. *Ethics and Information Technology*, 24(3), 1–18. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10676-022-09634-1
- Andersen, J.C. and Gerbing, D.W. (1988). Structural equation modelling in practice. A review and recommended two-step approach. *Psychological Bulletin*, *103*(3), 411-423.
- Andersson, E., & Torkar, R. (2022). Empirical AI Transformation Research: A systematic mapping study and future agenda. *E-Informatics Software Engineering Journal*, 16(1), 1–35. https://doi.org/10.37190/e-Inf220108
- Andolšek, J., & Salkić, A. (2023). Embracing the Digital Age: The Impact of Proactivity and Big Five Personality Traits on Employee Development. *Dynamic Relationships Management Journal*, 12(1), 53–71. https://doi.org/10.17708/DRMJ.2023.v12n01a04
- Andrapuri, S. M., Karyatun, S., & Digdowiseiso, K. (2023). Influence of personality type, teamwork and communication on employee performance at PT. Periodica. *Polytechnica Social and Management Sciences*, 18(2), 61–74. https://doi.org/10.3311/pp.so.2010-2.02
- Andrzejak, E. G. (2023). AI-powered digital transformation: Tools, benefits and challenges for marketers-case study of LPP. *Procedia Computer Science*, 219, 397–404. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.procs.2023.01.305
- Angelini, G. (2023). Big five model personality traits and job burnout: A systematic literature review. *BMC Psychology*, *11*(1). https://doi.org/10.1186/s40359-023-01056-y
- Antonopoulou, H., Halkiopoulos, C., Barlou, O., & Beligiannis, G. N. (2020). Leadership types and digital leadership in higher education: Behavioural data analysis from University of

Patras in Greece. *International Journal of Learning, Teaching and Educational Research*, 19(4), 110–129. https://doi.org/10.26803/ijlter.19.4.8

- Asim, M., Arif, M., Rafiq, M., & Ahmad, R. (2023). Investigating applications of Artificial Intelligence in university libraries of Pakistan: An empirical study. *Journal of Academic Librarianship*, 49(6), 102803. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.acalib.2023.102803
- Avkiran, N.K. (2017). An in-depth discussion and illustration of partial least squares structural equation modeling in health care. *Health Care Management Science*, pp. 1-8. https:/ 10.1007/s10729-017-9393-7.
- Ayaz, M. H. (2023). Bridging the gender gap in Pakistan's tech sector. *ProPakistani*. https://propakistani.pk/2023/04/27/bridging-the-gender-gap-inpakistans-tech-sector/#google_vignette
- Aydogmus, C., Camgoz, S. M., Ergeneli, A., & Ekmekci, O. T. (2018). Perceptions of transformational leadership and job satisfaction: The roles of personality traits and psychological empowerment. *Journal of Management & Organization*, 24(1), 81-107.
- Ayub, U., Kanwal, F., & Rashid Kausar, A. (2019). Developing knowledge creation capability: The role of big-five personality traits and transformational leadership. *Pakistan Journal of Commerce and Social Science*, 13(1), 30–61.
- Babalola, M. T., Bligh, M. C., Ogunfowora, B., Guo, L., & Garba, O. A. (2019). The mind is willing, but the situation constrains: Why and when leader conscientiousness relates to ethical leadership. *Journal of Business Ethics*, 155, 75-89.
- Baloch, Y. A. (2023). Pakistan and Artificial Intelligence (AI). *The Nation*. Retrieved from https://www.nation.com.pk/06-Sep-2023/pakistan-and-artificial-intelligence-ai
- Bandera, C., & Passerini, K. (2020). Personality traits and the digital entrepreneur: Much of the same thing or a new breed? *Journal of the International Council for Small Business*, 1(2), 81–105. https://doi.org/10.1080/26437015.2020.1724838
- Barrick M.R., Mount, M.K. (1991). The big five personality dimensions and job performance: A meta-analysis. *Personnel Psychology*, 44(1):1–2
- Barrick, M. R., Mount, M. K., and Strauss, J. P. (1993). Conscientiousness and performance of sales representatives: Test of the mediating effects of goal setting. *Journal of Applied Psychology*. 78(5), 715–722. https://doi.org/10.1037/0021-9010.78.5.715

- Barrick, M. R., Stewart, G. L., and Piotrowski, M. (2002). Personality and job performance: Test of the mediating effects of motivation among sales representatives. *Journal of Applied Psychology*. 87(1), 43–51. https://doi.org/0021-9010.87.1.43
- Baruth, O., & Cohen, A. (2023). Personality and satisfaction with online courses: The relation between the Big Five personality traits and satisfaction with online learning activities. *Education and Information Technologies*, 28(1), 879–904. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10639-022-11199-x
- Basu, S., Majumdar, B., Mukherjee, K., Munjal, S., & Palaksha, C. (2023). Artificial Intelligence–
 HRM Interactions and Outcomes: A Systematic Review and Causal Configurational
 Explanation. *Human Resource Management Review*, 33(1), Article 100893.
 https://doi.org/10.1016/j.hrmr.2022.100893
- Baumann, O., & Wu, B. (2023). Managerial hierarchy in AI-driven organizations. *Journal of Organization Design*, *12*(1–2), 1–5. https://doi.org/10.1007/s41469-023-00147-9
- Bawack, R. E., Wamba, S. F., & Carillo, K. D. A. (2021). Exploring the role of personality, trust, and privacy in customer experience performance during voice shopping: Evidence from SEM and fuzzy set qualitative comparative analysis. *International Journal of Information Management*, 58(December 2020). https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijinfomgt.2021.102309
- Becker, F. S. R., Escoz Barragan, K., Huge sive Huwe, D., Ernst, B. S., & Strina, G. (2023). The interplay of entrepreneurial personality and startup innovativeness – the mediation effect of technology adoption. *European Journal of Innovation Management*. Advance online publication. https://doi.org/10.1108/EJIM-02-2023-0111
- Becker, T. E. (1998). Integrity in organizations: Beyond honesty and conscientiousness. *Academy* of Management Review. 23, 154–161. https://doi.org/10.5465/amr.1998.192969
- Benitez, J., Arenas, A., Castillo, A., & Esteves, J. (2022). Impact of digital leadership capability on innovation performance: The role of platform digitization capability. *Information and Management*, 59(2), Article 103590. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.im.2022.103590
- Bergdahl, J., Latikka, R., Celuch, M., Savolainen, I., Mantere, E., Savela, N., & Oksanen, A. (2023). Self-determination and attitudes toward artificial intelligence: Cross-national and longitudinal perspectives. *Telematics and Informatics*, 82, Article 102013. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tele.2023.102013

- Bharadiya, J., & Bharadiya, J. P. (2023). Machine Learning and AI in Business Intelligence: Trends and Opportunities. *International Journal of Computer (IJC)*, 48(1), 123–134. Retrieved from https://www.researchgate.net/publication/371902170
- Bingley, W. J., Haslam, S. A., Steffens, N. K., Gillespie, N., Worthy, P., Curtis, C., Lockey, S., Bialkowski, A., Ko, R. K. L., & Wiles, J. (2023). Enlarging the model of the human at the heart of human-centered AI: A social self-determination model of AI system impact. *New Ideas in Psychology*, 70, Article 101025. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.newideapsych.2023.101025
- Blake, A. B., Luu, V. H., Petrenko, O. V., Gardner, W. L., Moergen, K. J. N., & Ezerins, M. E. (2022). Let's agree about nice leaders: A literature review and meta-analysis of agreeableness and its relationship with leadership outcomes. *The Leadership Quarterly*, 33(1), Article 101593. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.leaqua.2021.101593
- Blundo, D., González-Sánchez, R., Medina-Salgado, M., & Muiña, F. E. G. (2021). Flexibility and resilience in Corporate decision making: A new Sustainability-Based Risk Management System in uncertain times. *Global Journal of Flexible Systems Management*, 22(S2), 107– 132. https://doi.org/10.1007/s40171-021-00277-7
- Bryman, A., & Bell, E. (2015). Business research methods (4th ed.). United Kingdom: OUP Oxford.
- Budhwar, P., Malik, A., De Silva, M. T. T., & Thevisuthan, P. (2022). Artificial intelligence challenges and opportunities for international HRM: A review and research agenda. *International Journal of Human Resource Management*, 33(6), 1065–1097. https://doi.org/10.1080/09585192.2022.2035161
- Burhan, S. A., Minhas, D. S., Tariq, D. A., & Nabeel Hassan, M. (2020). Comparative Study of Deep Learning Algorithms for Disease and Pest Detection in Rice Crops. In *Proceedings* of the 12th International Conference on Electronics, Computers and Artificial Intelligence, ECAI 2020, c. https://doi.org/10.1109/ECAI50035.2020.9223239
- Burkhardt, R., Hohn, N., & Wigley, C. (2019, May 2). Leading your organization to responsible AI. McKinsey & Company. https://www.mckinsey.com/capabilities/quantumblack/ourinsights/leading-your-organization-to-responsible-ai

- Butrus, N., & Witenberg, R. T. (2013). Some personality predictors of tolerance to human diversity: The roles of openness, agreeableness, and empathy. *Australian Psychologist*, 48(4), 290-298.
- Caci, B., Miceli, S., Scrima, F., & Cardaci, M. (2020). Neuroticism and fear of COVID-19: The interplay between boredom, fantasy engagement, and perceived control over time. *Frontiers in Psychology*, 11. https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyg.2020.574393
- Cegarra, J. G., Javier, F., & Ruiz, A. (2020). Digital technologies and firm performance : The role of digital organisational culture. *Technological Forecasting and Social Change*. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.techfore.2020.119962
- Chae, H., Park, J., and Choi, J. N. (2019). Two facets of conscientiousness and the knowledge sharing dilemmas in the workplace: Contrasting moderating functions of supervisor support and coworker support. *Journal of Organizational Behavior*. 40, 387–399. https://doi.org/10.1002/job.2337
- Chandrakumara, A., Wickramasuriya, R., & McCarthy, G. (2020). Collective personality of top listed firms in Australia and its impact on financial and market performance. *Corporate Ownership and Control*, 18(1), 438–449. https://doi.org/10.22495/cocv18i1siart16
- Chatterjee, S., Chaudhuri, R., Vrontis, D., & Basile, G. (2022). Digital transformation and entrepreneurship process in SMEs of India: A moderating role of adoption of AI-CRM capability and strategic planning. *Journal of Strategy and Management*, 15(3), 416–433. https://doi.org/10.1108/JSMA-02-2021-0049
- Chatterjee, S., Chaudhuri, R., Vrontis, D., & Giovando, G. (2023). Digital workplace and organization performance: Moderating role of digital leadership capability. *Journal of Innovation & Knowledge*, 8(1), Article 100334. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jik.2023.100334
- Chatterjee, S., Chaudhuri, R., Vrontis, D., & Jabeen, F. (2022). Digital transformation of organization using AI-CRM: From microfoundational perspective with leadership support. *Journal of Business Research*, 153(August), 46–58. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jbusres.2022.08.019
- Chaudhry, U. B., & Chaudhry, M. A. (2023). Harnessing big data for business innovation and effective business decision making. In *Advanced Sciences and Technologies for Security Applications* (pp. 47–60). https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-031-20160-8_4

- Chen, Y. N. (2023). The relationship between personality traits, emotional stability and mental health in art vocational and technical college students during epidemic prevention and control. *Psychology Research and Behavior Management*, 16, 2857–2867. https://doi.org/10.2147/PRBM.S417243
- Chiaburu, D. S., Oh, I., Berry, C. M., Li, N., & Gardner, R. G. (2011). The five-factor model of personality traits and organizational citizenship behaviors: A meta-analysis. *Journal of Applied Psychology*, 96(6), 1140–1166. https://doi.org/10.1037/a0024004
- Chin, W.W., Gopal, A. and Salisbury, W.D. (1997). Advancing the theory of adaptive structuration: The development of a scale to measure faithfulness of appropriation. *Information Systems Research*, 8, 342-367.
- Chopik, W. J., O'Brien, E., & Konrath, S. H. (2017). Differences in empathic concern and perspective taking across 63 countries. *Journal of Cross-Cultural Psychology*, 48(1), 23-38.
- Choung, H., David, P., & Ross, A. (2022). Trust in AI and its role in the acceptance of AI Technologies. *Journal of Strategic Information System*, 31, Article 101958. https://doi.org/10.1080/10447318.2022.2050543
- Chowdhury, S., Dey, P., Joel-Edgar, S., Bhattacharya, S., Rodriguez-Espindola, O., Abadie, A., & Truong, L. (2023). Unlocking the value of artificial intelligence in human resource management through AI capability framework. *Human Resource Management Review*, 33(1), 100899. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.hrmr.2022.100899
- Clark, L.A. and Watson, D. (1995). Constructing validity: Basic issues in objective scale development. *Psychological Assessment*, 7(3), 309-319.
- Cohen, J. (1988). Statistical power analysis for the behavioral sciences (2nd ed.). Lawrence Erlbaum Associates
- Coleman, C. E., Lenz, J. G., & Osborn, D. S. (2023). The relationships among the big 5 personality factors and negative career thoughts. *Career Development Quarterly*, 71(1), 30–40. https://doi.org/10.1002/cdq.12313
- Collins, D. (2003). Pretesting survey instruments: An overview of cognitive methods. *Quality & Quantity*, 37(4), 1-15. https://doi.org/10.1023/A:1025020203107
- Costa, P. T., & McCrae, R. R. (1992). Four ways five factors are basic. *Personality and Individual Differences, 13*(6), 653–665. https://doi.org/10. 1016/0191-8869(92)90236-I

- Costa, P. T., Jr, McCrae, R. R., & Dye, D. A. (1991). Facet scales for agreeableness and conscientiousness: A revision of the NEO Personality Inventory. *Personality and Individual Differences*, 12(9), 887–898. https://doi.org/10.1016/0191-8869(91)90177-D
- Costa, P.T., Jr & McCrae R.R, & Kay, G.G. (1995). Persons, places, and personality: Career Assessment using the Revised NEO-Personality Inventory. *Journal of Career Assessment*, 3, 123-139.
- Crawford, J., Cowling, M., & Allen, K. A. (2023). Leadership is needed for ethical ChatGPT: Character, assessment, and learning using artificial intelligence (AI). *Journal of University Teaching and Learning Practice*, 20(3). https://doi.org/10.53761/1.20.3.02
- Creswell, J. W. (2014). The Selection of a Research Approach. Research Design, 3–23. https://doi.org/45593:01
- Cui, G., Wang, F., & Zhang, Y. (2022). Buffer or boost? The role of openness to experience and knowledge sharing in the relationship between team cognitive diversity and members' innovative work behavior. *Current Psychology*, 42(29), 25233–25245. https://doi.org/10.1007/s12144-022-03633-7
- D'Almeida, A. L., Bergiante, N. C. R., de Souza Ferreira, G., Leta, F. R., de Campos Lima, C. B., & Lima, G. B. A. (2022). Digital transformation: A review on artificial intelligence techniques in drilling and production applications. *International Journal of Advanced Manufacturing Technology*, *119*(9–10), 5553–5582. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00170-021-08631-w
- Dan, Y., Ahmed, A. A. A., Chupradit, S., Chupradit, P. W., Nassani, A. A., & Haffar, M. (2021). The Nexus Between the Big Five Personality Traits Model of the Digital Economy and Blockchain Technology Influencing Organization Psychology. *Frontiers in Psychology*, 12(November), 1–12. https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyg.2021.780527
- De Vreede, T., Raghavan, M., & De Vreede, G. (2021). Design Foundations for AI Assisted Decision Making: A Self Determination Theory approach. Proceedings of the Annual Hawaii International Conference on System Sciences. https://doi.org/10.24251/hicss.2021.019
- Deci E. L. and R. M. Ryan (1985). *Intrinsic motivation and self-determination in human behavior*. New York: Plenum Press.
- Deci, E. L., J. P. Connell and R. M. Ryan (1989). Self-determination in a work organization. Journal of Applied Psychology, 74 (4), 580–590.
- Deci, E. L., R. J. Vallerand, L. G. Pelletier and R. M. Ryan (1991). Motivation and education: The self-determination perspective. *Educational Psychologist*, *26*(3-4), 325-346.
- Dehne, M., & Schupp, J. (2007). Persoenlichkeitsmerkmale im Sozio-Oekonomischen Panel (SOEP) Konzept, Umsetzung und empirische Eigenschaften. Research Notes No. 26, DIW Berlin.
- Demirciftci, T., Bilgihan, A., Erdem, M., & Baloglu, S. (2023). Examining the role of personality traits in guestroom technologies. *Journal of Hospitality and Tourism Insights*. https://doi.org/10.1108/JHTI-11-2022-0529
- Diller, M., Asen, M., & Späth, T. (2020). The effects of personality traits on digital transformation: Evidence from German tax consulting. *International Journal of Accounting Information Systems*, 37. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.accinf.2020.100455
- Duan, S. X., & Deng, H. (2023). Job performance in digital work: Do personality traits matter? *Journal of Computer Information Systems*, 00(00), 1–13. https://doi.org/10.1080/08874417.2023.2255551
- Dwivedi, Y. K., Hughes, L., Ismagilova, E., Aarts, G., Coombs, C., Crick, T., & Williams, M. D. (2021). Artificial Intelligence (AI): Multidisciplinary perspectives on emerging challenges, opportunities, and agenda for research, practice and policy. *International Journal of Information Management*, 57, 101994.
- Ellström, D., Holtström, J., Berg, E., & Josefsson, C. (2022). Dynamic capabilities for digital transformation. *Journal of Strategy and Management*, 15(2), 272–286. https://doi.org/10.1108/JSMA-04-2021-0089
- Elnadi, M., & Gheith, M. H. (2023). The role of individual characteristics in shaping digital entrepreneurial intention among university students: Evidence from Saudi Arabia. *Thinking Skills and Creativity*, 47(January), 101236. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tsc.2023.101236
- Erhan, T., Uzunbacak, H. H., & Aydın, E. (2022). From conventional to digital leadership: Exploring digitalization of leadership and innovative work behavior. *Management Research Review*, 45(11), 1524–1543. https://doi.org/10.1108/mrr-05-2021-0338

- Evans, W. R., Davis, W. D., & Neely, A. (2021). The role of organizational cynicism and conscientiousness in the relationship between ethical leadership and deviance. *Journal of Managerial Issues*, 33(1).
- Fachrunnisa, O., Adhiatma, A., Lukman, N., & Majid, M. N. A. (2020). Towards SMEs' digital transformation: The role of agile leadership and strategic flexibility. *Journal of Small Business Strategy*, 30(3), 65–85.
- Fan, J., Sun, T., Liu, J., Zhao, T., Zhang, B., Chen, Z., Glorioso, M., & Hack, E. (2023). How well can an AI chatbot infer personality? Examining psychometric properties of machineinferred personality scores. *Journal of Applied Psychology, January*. https://doi.org/10.1037/apl0001082
- Farooq, H., Janjua, U. I., Madni, T. M., Waheed, A., Zareei, M., & Alanazi, F. (2022). Identification and analysis of factors influencing turnover intention of Pakistan IT professionals : An empirical study. *IEEE Access*, 10, 64234–64256. https://doi.org/10.1109/ACCESS.2022.3181753
- Fatima, T. and Masood, A. (2024). Impact of digital leadership on open innovation: A moderating serial mediation model. *Journal of Knowledge Management*, 28(1), 161-180. https://doi.org/10.1108/JKM-11-2022-0872
- Feng, J., Ji, Z., & Zhang, D. (2024). Ostracism of a highly neurotic target by individuals with different levels of agreeableness: The roles of empathy and personal cost. *Personality and Individual Differences*, 220, 112527.
- Fleming, M. (2020). AI is changing work and leaders need to adapt. *Harvard Business Review*. https://hbr.org/2020/03/ai-is-changing-work-and-leaders-need-to-adapt
- Fowler, F. J. (1995). Improving survey questions. Thousand Oaks: Sage.
- Fullan, M., Azorin, C., Harris, A., & Jones, M. (2023). Artificial intelligence and school leadership: Challenges, opportunities and implications. *School Leadership and Management*, 1–8. https://doi.org/10.1080/13632434.2023.2246856
- Gerlitz, J.-Y., & Schupp, J. (2005). Zur Erhebung der Big-Five-basierten persoenlichkeitsmerkmale im SOEP. *Research Notes No. 4, DIW Berlin.*
- Gokoglan, E., & Bekar, E. Ö. (2021). The relationship between nurse managers' personality traits and their conflict management strategy preferences. *Journal of Nursing Management*, 29(5), 1239–1245. https://doi.org/10.1111/jonm.13262

- Goldberg, L. R. (1990). An alternative "description of personality": The big-five factor structure. Journal of Personality and Social Psychology, 59(6), 1216–1229. https://doi.org/10.1037//0022-3514.59.6.1216
- Goralski, M. A., & Tan, T. K. (2020). Artificial intelligence and sustainable development. *International Journal of Management Education*, 18(1). https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijme.2019.100330
- Graziano, W. G., Habashi, M. M., Sheese, B. E., & Tobin, R. M. (2007). Agreeableness, empathy, and helping: A person×situation perspective. *Journal of Personality and Social Psychology*, 93(4), 583.
- Grimm, P. (2010). Pretesting a Questionnaire. *Wiley International Encyclopedia of Marketing*, 2010. https://doi.org/10.1002/9781444316568.wiem02051
- Groves, R. M., Fowler, F. J., Jr., Couper, M. P., Lepkowski, J. M., Singer, E., & Tourangeau, R. (2004). *Survey methodology*. Hoboken, NJ: Wiley.
- Gruetzemacher, R., & Whittlestone, J. (2022). The transformative potential of artificial intelligence. *Futures*, 135(November 2021), 102884. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.futures.2021.102884
- Guay, R. P., Kim, Y. J., Oh, I. S., & Vogel, R. M. (2019). The interaction effects of leader and follower conscientiousness on person-supervisor fit perceptions and follower outcomes: A cross-level moderated indirect effects model. *Human Performance*, 32(3–4), 181–199. https://doi.org/10.1080/08959285.2019.1649677
- Gupta, D. G., & Jain, V. (2023). Use of artificial intelligence with ethics and privacy for personalized customer services. In J. N. Sheth, V. Jain, E. Mogaji, & A. Ambika (Eds.), *Artificial intelligence in customer service*, (231-251). Palgrave Macmillan, Cham.
- Guzmán, V. E., Muschard, B., Gerolamo, M., Kohl, H., & Rozenfeld, H. (2020). Characteristics and skills of leadership in the context of industry 4.0. *Procedia Manufacturing*, 43, 543– 550. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.promfg.2020.02.167
- Haefner, N., Wincent, J., Parida, V., & Gassmann, O. (2021). Artificial intelligence and innovation management: A review, framework, and research agenda. *Technological Forecasting and Social Change*, *162*(October 2020), 120392. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.techfore.2020.120392

- Hair, J. F., Black, W. C., Babin, B. J., & Anderson, R. E. (2018). *Multivariate Data Analysis* (8th ed.). United Kingdom: Cengage Learning.
- Hair, J.F., Hult, G.T.M., Ringle, C.M. and Sarstedt, M. (2014), *A Primer on Partial Least Squares Structural Equation Modeling (PLS-SEM)*. Sage, Los Angeles, CA.
- Hair, J.F., Hult, G.T.M., Ringle, C.M. and Sarstedt, M. (2017), *A Primer on Partial Least Squares Structural Equation Modeling (PLS-SEM)*, (2nd ed.). Sage, Thousand Oaks, CA.
- Haleem, A., Javaid, M., Asim Qadri, M., Pratap Singh, R., & Suman, R. (2022). Artificial intelligence (AI) applications for marketing: A literature-based study. *International Journal* of Intelligent Networks, 3(September), 119–132. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijin.2022.08.005
- Hamamoto, Y., Honda, A., Miura, N., Tanabe-Ishibashi, A., Oba, K., Ishibashi, R., & Sugiura, M. (2023). Five major outcomes of digitalization: Relevance of a survival personality type during COVID-19 pandemic. *Frontiers in Psychology*, 14(August), 1–13. https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyg.2023.1230192
- Taherdoost, H. (2022). An overview of trends in information systems: Emerging technologies that transform the information technology industry. *Cloud Computing and Data Science*, 4(1), 1–16. https://doi.org/10.37256/ccds.4120231653
- Hamza, M. A. (2021). What is artificial intelligence & its impact on Pakistan economy. https://www.researchgate.net/publication/352315741
- Harirchian, M., Amin, F., Rouhani, S., Aligholipour, A., & Lord, V. A. (2022). AI-enabled exploration of Instagram profiles predicts soft skills and personality traits to empower hiring decisions. 1–26. Retrieved from https://arxiv.org/abs/2212.07069
- Hassan, A., Hussain, S., Shujaat, S., & Hwang, Y. (2022). To adopt or not to adopt? The determinants of cloud computing adoption in information technology sector. *Decision Analytics Journal*, 5(October), 100138. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.dajour.2022.100138
- He, G., Liu, P., Zheng, X., Zheng, L., Hewlin, P. F., & Li, Y. (2023). Being proactive in the age of AI: Exploring the effectiveness of leaders' AI symbolization in stimulating employee job crafting. *Management Decision*, 61(10), 2896–2919. https://doi.org/10.1108/md-10-2022-1390
- He, G., Zheng, X., Li, W. et al. (2024). The mixed blessing of leaders' artificial intelligence (AI)oriented change behavior: Implications for employee job performance and unethical

behavior. *Applied Research Quality Life* 19, 469–497. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11482-023-10250-4

- He, Z., Huang, H., Choi, H., & Bilgihan, A. (2023). Building organizational resilience with digital transformation. *Journal of Service Management*, 34(1), 147–171. https://doi.org/10.1108/JOSM-06-2021-0216
- Heavin, C., & Power, D. J. (2018). Challenges for digital transformation-towards a conceptual decision support guide for managers. *Journal of Decision Systems*, 27(May), 38–45. https://doi.org/10.1080/12460125.2018.1468697
- Heineck, G., & Anger, S. (2010). The returns to cognitive abilities and personality traits in Germany. *Labour Economics*, 17, 535–546.
- Henseler, J., Ringle, C.M. and Sarstedt, M. (2015). A new criterion for assessing discriminant validity in variance-based structural equation modeling. *Journal of the Academy of Marketing Science*, 43(1), 115-135.
- Heukamp, F. (2020). AI and the leadership development of the future. In J. Canals & F. Heukamp (Eds.), *The future of management in an AI world* (IESE Business Collection, Chapter 7).
 Palgrave Macmillan. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-20680-2 7
- Holmström, J. (2022). From AI to digital transformation: The AI readiness framework. *Business Horizons*, 65(3), 329–339. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.bushor.2021.03.006
- Hong, J. C., Cao, W., Liu, X., Tai, K. H., & Zhao, L. (2023). Personality traits predict the effects of Internet and academic self-efficacy on practical performance anxiety in online learning under the COVID-19 lockdown. *Journal of Research on Technology in Education*, 55(3), 426–440. https://doi.org/10.1080/15391523.2021.1967818
- Hsu, H., & Wang, S. (2017). Integrating technology: Using Google Forms to collect and analyze data. *Science Scope*, 040(08). https://doi.org/10.2505/4/ss17_040_08_64
- Iftikhar, S., Bhatti, S., Memon, M. A., & Bhatti, Z. A. (2020). Groundwater arsenic and health risk prediction model using machine learning for T.M Khan Sindh, Pakistan. *International Journal of Information Technology and Computer Science*, 12(2), 24–31. https://doi.org/10.5815/ijitcs.2020.02.03
- Imran, N., & Haider, I. (2023). Digitalization and artificial intelligence: Is it the future of mental
healthcareinPakistan?ResearchGate.https://www.researchgate.net/publication/372235612

- Jarrahi, M. H., Kenyon, S., Brown, A., & Donahue, C. (2022). Artificial Intelligence: A strategy to harness its power through organizational learning. *Journal of Business Strategy*. https://doi.org/10.1108/JBS-11-2021-0182
- Jia, X., & Hou, Y. (2024). Architecting the future: Exploring the synergy of AI-driven sustainable HRM, conscientiousness, and employee engagement. *Discover Sustainability*, 5(1). https://doi.org/10.1007/s43621-024-00214-5
- Jirjahn, U., & Ottenbacher, M. (2023). Big Five personality traits and sex. *Journal of Population Economics*, *36*(2), 549-580.
- John, O. P., & Srivastava, S. (1999). The Big Five Trait taxonomy: History, measurement, and theoretical perspectives. In L. A. Pervin & O. P. John (Eds.), *Handbook of personality: Theory and research* (2nd ed., pp. 102–138). Guilford Press.
- Jones, M. D., Hutcheson, S., & Camba, J. D. (2021). Past, present, and future barriers to digital transformation in manufacturing: A review. *Journal of Manufacturing Systems*, 60(November 2020), 936–948. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jmsy.2021.03.006
- Kane, G. C., Phillips, A. N., Copulsky, J., & Andrus, G. (2019). How digital leadership is(n't) different. *MIT Sloan Management Review*, 60(3), 34–39.
- Kareem, I., & Awan, S. I. (2019). Pakistani Media Fake News Classification using Machine Learning Classifiers. https://doi.org/10.1109/icic48496.2019.8966734
- Khan, M. K. (2023). AI-enabled transformations in telecommunications industry. *Telecommunication Systems*, 82(1), 1–2. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11235-022-00989-w
- Khan, N., Shahid, S., Shahid, S., Ahmed, K., Shiru, M. S., & Ahmed, K. (2020). Prediction of droughts over Pakistan using machine learning algorithms. *Advances in Water Resources*, 139, 103562. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.advwatres.2020.103562
- Khan, S. N., Mubushar, M., Khan, I. U., Rehman, H. M., & Khan, S. U. (2021). The influence of personality traits on sustainability-oriented entrepreneurial intentions: The moderating role of servant leadership. *Environment, Development and Sustainability*, 23(9), 13707–13730. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10668-021-01235-0
- Kim, H. D., & Cruz, A. B. (2022). Transformational leadership and psychological well-being of service-oriented staff: Hybrid data synthesis technique. *International Journal of Environmental Research and Public Health*, 19(13). https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph19138189

- King, M. R. (2023). The future of AI in medicine: A perspective from a Chatbot. *Annals of Biomedical Engineering*, *51*(2), 291–295. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10439-022-03121-w
- Kline, R.B. (2011). *Principles and Practice of Structural Equation Modeling*. Guilford Pres, New York, NY.
- Knaps, A. (2015). Creativity and conflict resolution. Alternative pathways to peace. *Defence Studies*, *15*(4), 385 386. https://doi.org/10.1080/14702436.2015.1093379
- Kollmann, T., Kollmann, K., & Kollmann, N. (2023). Artificial Leadership: Digital transformation as a leadership task between the chief digital officer and artificial intelligence. *International Journal of Business Science and Applied Management*, 18(1), 76–95.
- Konopik, J., Jahn, C., Schuster, T., Hoßbach, N., & Pflaum, A. (2022). Mastering the digital transformation through organizational capabilities: A conceptual framework. *Digital Business*, 2(2). https://doi.org/10.1016/j.digbus.2021.100019
- Krzeminska, I., & Rzeznik, J. (2021). Personality-Based Lexical Differences in Services Adaptation Process. *March*, 1–13.
- Kumar, M., Talib, S. A., & Ramayah, T. (2013). Business Research Methods. Selangor, Malayisa: Oxford University Press.
- Kumari, K., Ali, S. B., Batool, M., Cioca, L. I., & Abbas, J. (2022). The interplay between leaders' personality traits and mentoring quality and their impact on mentees' job satisfaction and job performance. *Frontiers in Psychology*, 13, 937470.
- Lacam, J. S., & Salvetat, D. (2023). Influence of the CEO's personality traits of SME on the orchestration of big data. *Journal of High Technology Management Research*, 34(1). https://doi.org/10.1016/j.hitech.2023.100451
- Lagemann, J. (2022). A literature review on digital leadership capabilities. *Fh-Wedel.De*, *Summer*, 1–16. Retrieved from https://www.fhwedel.de/fileadmin/Mitarbeiter/Records/Lagemann_2022_-

_A_Literature_Review_on_Digital_Leadership_Capabilities.pdf

Landis, B., Jachimowicz, J. M., Wang, D. J., & Krause, R. W. (2022). Revisiting extraversion and leadership emergence: A social network churn perspective. *Journal of Personality and Social Psychology*, 123(4), 811–829. https://doi.org/10.1037/pspp0000410

- Lee, M. C. M., Scheepers, H., Lui, A. K., & Ngai, E. W. (2023). The implementation of artificial intelligence in organizations: A systematic literature review. *Information & Management*, 60(5), 103816. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.im.2023.103816
- Lee, Y. (2022). Personality traits and organizational leaders' communication practices in the United States: Perspectives of leaders and followers. *Corporate Communications*, 27(3), 595–615. https://doi.org/10.1108/CCIJ-10-2021-0118
- Leger, K. A., Charles, S. T., Turiano, N. A., & Almeida, D. M. (2016). Personality and stressorrelated afect. *Journal of Personality and Social Psychology*, 111(6), 917–928. https://doi.org/10.1037/ pspp0000083
- LePine, J. A., Colquitt, J. A., and Erez, A. (2000). Adaptability to changing task contexts: Effects of general cognitive ability, conscientiousness, and openness to experience. *Personnel Psychology*, 53, 563–593. doi: 10.1111/j.1744-6570.2000.tb00214.x
- Li, M. (2020). To build Less-Biased AI, hire a More-Diverse team. *Harvard Business Review*. https://hbr.org/2020/10/to-build-less-biased-ai-hire-a-more-diverse-team
- Li, W., Li, X., Huang, L., Kong, X., Yang, W., Wei, D., Li, J., Cheng, H., Zhang, Q., & Liu, J. (2014). Brain structure links trait creativity to openness to experience. *Social Cognitive* and Affective Neuroscience, 10(2), 191–198. https://doi.org/10.1093/scan/nsu041
- Li, Z., Lu, F., & He, G. (2024). The double-edged sword of personality in shaping craftsmanship spirit: An investigation of conscientiousness and openness to experience. *Frontiers in Psychology*, 15, 1332257.
- Limna, P. (2022). Artificial Intelligence (AI) in the Hospitality Industry: A Review Article. International Journal of Computing Science Research, May, 1–12. https://doi.org/10.25147/ijcsr.2017.001.1.103
- Lu, X., Wijayaratna, K., Huang, Y., & Qiu, A. (2022). AI-Enabled Opportunities and Transformation Challenges for SMEs in the Post-pandemic Era: A Review and Research Agenda. *Frontiers in Public Health*, 10(April), 1–11. https://doi.org/10.3389/fpubh.2022.885067
- Madan, R., & Ashok, M. (2023). AI adoption and diffusion in public administration: A systematic literature review and future research agenda. *Government Information Quarterly*, 40(1), 101774. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.giq.2022.101774

- Mannuru, N. R., Wang, T., & Ogbadu-oladapo, L. (2023). Artificial intelligence in developing countries: The impact of generative artificial intelligence (AI) technologies for development. *Journal of Developing Societies*, 39(3), 449–460. https://doi.org/10.1177/02666669231200628
- Maran, T. K., Liegl, S., Davila, A., Moder, S., Kraus, S., & Mahto, R. V. (2022). Who fits into the digital workplace? Mapping digital self-efficacy and agility onto psychological traits. *Technological Forecasting and Social Change*, 175. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.techfore.2021.121352
- Mateo, E., Venegas, M. A., Mora-Luis, C., & Pérez-Jorge, D. (2024). The level of conscientiousness trait and technostress: A moderated mediation model. *Humanities and Social Sciences Communications*, 11(1), 1-9.
- McCrae, R. R., & Costa, P. T. (1983). Joint factors in self-reports and ratings: Neuroticism, extraversion and openness to experience. *Personality and Individual Differences*, 4(3), 245–255. https://doi.org/10.1016/0191-8869(83)90146-0
- McCrae, R. R., & John, O. P. (1992). An introduction to the five-factor model and its applications. *Journal of personality*, 60(2), 175-215.
- McCrae, R.R., Costa, P.T., (1987). Validation of the five-factor model of personality across instruments and observers. *Journal of Personality*, 52(1), 81–90. https://doi.org/ 10.1037/0022-3514.52.1.81
- McCrae, R.R.; Costa, P.T., (1985) Jr. Comparison of EPI and psychoticism scales with measures of the five-factor model of personality. *Personality and Individual Differences, 6,* 587–597
- McKendrick, J. (2019, August 23). Needed: More skills to build AI systems, which are supposed to alleviate skills needs. *Forbes*. Retrieved from https://www.forbes.com/sites/joemckendrick/2019/08/23/needed-more-skills-to-build-aisystems-which-are-supposed-to-alleviate-skills-needs/?sh=6822aca515c8
- Memon, A. M., Ting, H., Cheah, J. H., Thurasamy, R., Chuah, F., & Cham, T. H. (2020). Sample size for survey research: Review and recommendations. *Journal of Applied Structural Equation Modeling*, 4(2), 1-20.
- Memon, A. M., Ting, H., Ramayah, T., Chuah, F., & Cheah, J. H. (2017). A review of the methodological misconceptions and guidelines related to the application of structural

equation modeling: A Malaysian scenario. Journal of Applied Structural Equation Modeling, 1(1), i-xiii.

- Meskelis, S., & Whittington, J. L. (2020). Driving employee engagement: How personality trait and leadership style impact the process. *Journal of Business and Industrial Marketing*, 35(10), 1457–1473. https://doi.org/10.1108/JBIM-11-2019-0477
- Miyoung, P. (2020). Mediating effect of psychological empowerment on the causal relationship between high-performance work system and organizational citizenship behavior in social welfare organizations. *International Journal of Advanced Culture Technology*, 8(1), 152– 156. https://doi.org/10.17703/IJACT.2020.8.1.152
- Moore, M. K., Vega, D. M., Wiens, K., & Caporale, N. (2020). Connecting theory to practice: Using Self-Determination Theory to better understand inclusion in STEM. *Journal of Microbiology & Biology Education*, 21(1). https://doi.org/10.1128/jmbe.v21i1.1955
- Mueller, G., & Plug, E. (2006). Estimating the effect of personality on male-female earnings. *Industrial and Labor Relations Review, 60,* 3–22.
- Mugge, P., Abbu, H., Michaelis, T. L., Kwiatkowski, A., & Gudergan, G. (2020). Patterns of digitization: A practical guide to digital transformation. *Research Technology Management*, 63(2), 27–35. https://doi.org/10.1080/08956308.2020.1707003
- Munir, S., Assistant, T., & College, G. (2023). Exploring the Impact of Digital Leadership on Sustainable Performance with Mediating Role of Artificial Intelligence. *Global Journal of Management and Business Research*, 23(3), 213–226.
- Murugesan, U., Subramanian, P., Srivastava, S., & Dwivedi, A. (2023). A study of Artificial Intelligence impacts on human resource digitalization in Industry 4.0. *Decision Analytics Journal*, 7(May), 100249. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.dajour.2023.100249
- Mustafa, G., & Hussain, S. (2023). What are the Factors Making Pakistan 's Exports Stagnant? Insight from Literature Review. *Global Economics and Management Review*, *3*, 449–460.
- Nazir, S. (2023). Unleashing the potential of AI in Pakistan's public sector. *The Diplomat*. https://thediplomat.com/2023/11/unleashing-the-potential-of-ai-in-pakistans-public-sector/
- Nazir, S., & Gul, Y. (2019). Embracing artificial intelligence challenges for public sector organizations in Pakistan. *Journal of Artificial Intelligence Research*, 4(4), 35–53.

- Neuert, C., & Lenzner, T. (2015). Incorporating eye tracking into cognitive interviewing to pretest survey questions. *International Journal of Social Research Methodology*, 19(5), 501–519. https://doi.org/10.1080/13645579.2015.1049448
- Neumann, O., Guirguis, K., & Steiner, R. (2022). Exploring artificial intelligence adoption in public organizations: A comparative case study. *Public Management Review*, 1–28. https://doi.org/10.1080/14719037.2022.2048685
- Newman, J., Mintrom, M., & O'Neill, D. (2022). Digital technologies, artificial intelligence, and bureaucratic transformation. *Futures*, 136(December 2021), 102886. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.futures.2021.102886
- Nieß, C., & Zacher, H. (2015). Openness to experience as a predictor and outcome of upward job changes into managerial and professional positions. *PLOS ONE*, 10(6), e0131115. https://doi.org/10.1371/journal.pone.0131115
- Nitzl, C., Roldan, J.L. and Carrion, G.C. (2016). Mediation analysis in partial least squares path modelling: helping researchers discuss more sophisticated models. *Industrial Management* & Data Systems, 116(9), 1849-1864.
- Nuaimi, B. K., Kumar Singh, S., Ren, S., Budhwar, P., & Vorobyev, D. (2022). Mastering digital transformation: The nexus between leadership, agility, and digital strategy. *Journal of Business Research*, 145(March), 636–648. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jbusres.2022.03.038

Nunnally, J. C. (1978). Psychometric Theory (2nd ed.). New York: McGraw-Hill.

- Nunnally, J.C. and Bernstein, I.H. (1994). *Psychometric Theory* (3rd ed.). New York: McGraw-Hill.
- Nwagwu, U., Niaz, M., Chukwu, M. U., & Saddique, F. (2023). The influence of artificial intelligence to enhancing supply chain performance under the mediating significance of supply chain collaboration in manufacturing and logistics organizations in Pakistan. *Traditional Journal of Multidisciplinary Sciences*, 1(2), 29–40.
- Ocampo, A. C. G., Reyes, M. L., Chen, Y., Restubog, S. L. D., Chih, Y. Y., Chua-Garcia, L., et al. (2020). The role of internship participation and conscientiousness in developing career adaptability: A five-wave growth mixture model analysis. *Journal of Vocational Behavior*, *120*, 103426. https://doi: 10.1016/j.jvb.2020.103426

- Okunlaya, R. O., Syed Abdullah, N., & Alias, R. A. (2022). Artificial intelligence (AI) library services innovative conceptual framework for the digital transformation of university education. *Library Hi Tech*, *40*(6), 1869–1892. https://doi.org/10.1108/LHT-07-2021-0242
- Othman, R., El Othman, R., Hallit, R., Obeid, S., and Hallit, S. (2020). Personality traits, emotional intelligence and decision-making styles in Lebanese universities medical students. *BMC Psychology*, 8, 46. doi: 10.1186/S40359-020-00406-4
- Özbağ, G. K. (2016). The Role of Personality in Leadership: Five factor personality traits and ethical leadership. *Procedia - Social and Behavioral Sciences*, 235(October), 235–242. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.sbspro.2016.11.019
- Park, J., & Woo, S. E. (2022). Who Likes Artificial Intelligence? Personality predictors of attitudes toward artificial intelligence. *Journal of Psychology: Interdisciplinary and Applied*, 156(1), 68–94. https://doi.org/10.1080/00223980.2021.2012109
- Peifer, Y., Jeske, T., & Hille, S. (2022). Artificial Intelligence and its Impact on Leaders and Leadership. *Procedia Computer Science*, 200, 1024–1030. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.procs.2022.01.301
- Penga, D.X. and Lai, F. (2012). Using partial least squares in operations management research: a practical guideline and summary of past research. *Journal of Operations Management*, 30(6), 467-480.
- Pervin, L. A., Cervone, D. & John, O.J. (2005). Personality: Theory and Research (9th ed.). John Wiley & Sons, Inc.
- Peshkin, A. (1993). The goodness of qualitative research. *Educational Researcher*, 22(2), 23–29. https://doi.org/10.3102/0013189x022002023
- Pisanu, E., Arbula, S., & Rumiati, R. I. (2024). Agreeableness modulates mental state decoding: Electrophysiological evidence. *Human Brain Mapping*, 45(2), e26593.
- Polit, D. F., & Beck, C. T. (2010). Generalization in quantitative and qualitative research: Myths and strategies. *International Journal of Nursing Studies*, 47(11), 1451-1458. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ijnurstu.2010.06.004
- Pradana, B. G. V., & Mayasari, A. (2023). Digital Transformation: The role of the big five personality traits. *Journal Pendidikan Ekonomi Dan Bisnis (JPEB)*, 11(01), 66–79. https://doi.org/10.21009/jpeb.011.1.6

- Prather, J., Denny, P., Leinonen, J., Becker, B. A., Albluwi, I., Caspersen, M. E., Craig, M., Keuning, H., Kiesler, N., Kohn, T., Luxton-Reilly, A., MacNeil, S., Petersen, A., Pettit, R., Reeves, B. N., & Savelka, J. (2023). Transformed by transformers: Navigating the AI coding revolution for computing education: An ITiCSE working group conducted by humans. *Annual Conference on Innovation and Technology in Computer Science Education, ITiCSE*, 2, 561–562. https://doi.org/10.1145/3587103.3594206
- Preacher, K.J. and Hayes, A.F. (2008). Asymptotic and resampling strategies for assessing and comparing indirect effects in multiple mediator models. *Behavior Research Methods*, 40(3), 879-891.
- Qadir, U. (2019). Competitiveness in Pakistan: A case study of the ICT industry. Pakistan Institute of Development Economics. September.
- Qing, F., Zhao, Y., Meng, X., Su, X., Qi, T., & Yue, D. (2020). Application of machine learning to debris flow susceptibility mapping along the China–Pakistan Karakoram Highway. *Remote Sensing*, 12(18), 2933. https://doi.org/10.3390/rs12182933
- Quaquebeke, N., & Gerpott, F. H. (2023). The now, new, and next of digital leadership: How artificial intelligence (AI) will take over and change leadership as we know it. *Journal of Leadership* & Organizational Studies, 30(3), 265–275. https://doi.org/10.1177/15480518231181731
- Qureshi, Z., Bano Soomro, A., Bhutto, A., Memon, M., Shah, A. A., & Ismaili, I. A. (2019). Implementation of genetic algorithm for school monitoring system for Matiari District, Sindh, Pakistan. *Indian Journal of Science and Technology*, 12(31), 1–15. https://doi.org/10.17485/ijst/2019/v12i31/146619
- Rabbani, M. R., Lutfi, A., Ashraf, M. A., Nawaz, N., & Ahmad Watto, W. (2023). Role of artificial intelligence in moderating the innovative financial process of the banking sector: A research based on structural equation modeling. *Frontiers in Environmental Science*, 10(January), 1–16. https://doi.org/10.3389/fenvs.2022.978691
- Raisch, S., & Krakowski, S. (2021). Artificial intelligence and management: The automation– augmentation paradox. *Academy of Management Review*, 46(1), 192-210.
- Ramayah, T., Cheah, J., Chuah, F., Ting, H. and Memon, M.A. (2016). Partial Least Squares Structural Equation Modeling (PLS-SEM) using SmartPLS 3.0: An Updated Guide and Practical Guide to Statistical Analysis. Pearson, Kuala Lumpur.

- Rasheed, H. M. W., Chen, Y., Khizar, H. M. U., & Safeer, A. A. (2023). Understanding the factors affecting AI services adoption in hospitality: The role of behavioral reasons and emotional intelligence. *Heliyon*, 9(6), e16968. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.heliyon.2023.e16968
- Regzedmaa, E., Ganbat, M., Sambuunyam, M., Tsogoo, S., Radnaa, O., & Zuunnast, K. (2024). A systematic review and meta-analysis of neuroticism and anxiety during the COVID-19 pandemic. *Frontiers in Psychiatry*, 14, 1281268.
- Richter, N.F., Sinkovics, R.R., Ringle, C.M. and Schlägel, C. (2016). A critical look at the use of SEM in international business research. *International Marketing Review*, 33(3), 376-404.
- Roberts, B. W., Chernyshenko, O. S., Stark, S., and Goldberg, L. R. (2005). The structure of conscientiousness: An empirical investigation based on seven major personality questionnaires. *Personnel Psychology*, 58,103–139. https://doi.org/10.1111/j.1744-6570.2005.00301.x
- Robinson, S. C. (2020). Trust, transparency, and openness: How inclusion of cultural values shapes Nordic national public policy strategies for artificial intelligence (AI). *Technology in Society*, 63(October), 101421. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.techsoc.2020.101421
- Rodrigues, A. R. D., Ferreira, F. A. F., Teixeira, F. J. C. S. N., & Zopounidis, C. (2022). Artificial intelligence, digital transformation and cybersecurity in the banking sector: A multistakeholder cognition-driven framework. *Research in International Business and Finance*, 60(November 2021), 101616. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ribaf.2022.101616
- Roldán, J.L. & Sánchez-Franco, M.J. (2012). Variance-based structural equation modeling: Guidelines for using partial least squares in information systems research. In M. Mora, O. Gelman, A. Steenkamp, & M. S. Raisinghani (Eds.), *Research Methodologies, Innovations and Philosophies in Software Systems Engineering and Information Systems* (pp. 193-221). Information Science Reference. https://doi.org/10.4018/978-1-4666-0179-6
- Rožman, M., Tominc, P., & Milfelner, B. (2023). Maximizing employee engagement through artificial intelligent organizational culture in the context of leadership and training of employees: Testing linear and non-linear relationships. *Cogent Business and Management*, 10(2). https://doi.org/10.1080/23311975.2023.2248732
- Ryan, R. M., & Deci, E. L. (2020). Intrinsic and extrinsic motivation from a self-determination theory perspective: Definitions, theory, practices, and future directions. *Contemporary Educational Psychology*, 61, 101860. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.cedpsych.2020.101860

- Ryan, W. S., & Ryan, R. M. (2019). Toward a social psychology of authenticity: Exploring Within-Person variation in autonomy, congruence, and genuineness using Self-Determination theory. *Review of General Psychology*, 23(1), 99–112. https://doi.org/10.1037/gpr0000162
- Saeed, M. S., Mustafa, M. W., Sheikh, U. U., Jumani, T. A., & Mirjat, N. H. (2019). Ensemble bagged tree based classification for reducing non-technical losses in multan electric power company of Pakistan. *Electronics (Switzerland)*, 8(8). https://doi.org/10.3390/electronics8080860
- Sagbaş, M., & Erdogan, F. A. (2022). Digital Leadership: A Systematic Conceptual Literature Review. *İstanbul Kent Üniversitesi İnsan ve Toplum Bilimleri Dergisi*, *3*(1), 17–36.
- Sang, S., Lee, J.D. and Lee, J. (2010). E-government adoption in Cambodia. A partial least squares approach. *Transforming Government: People, Process and Policy, 4*(2), 138-157.
- Santana, M., & Díaz-Fernández, M. (2022). Competencies for the artificial intelligence age: Visualisation of the state of the art and future perspectives. *Review of Managerial Science*, 17(6), 1971–2004. https://doi.org/10.1007/s11846-022-00613-w
- Sarkar, A. (2023, May 24). Pakistan aims to produce 1M AI-trained IT graduates by 2027. *Cointelegraph*. https://cointelegraph.com/news/pakistan-aims-to-produce-1-million-ai-trained-it-graduates-by-2027
- Satti, S. I. (2024). The potential impact of the AI | Political Economy | thenews.com.pk. *The News International*. https://www.thenews.com.pk/tns/detail/1163636-the-potential-impact-of-the-ai
- Saunders, M., Lewis, P., & Thornhill, A. (2019). *Research methods for business students* (8th ed.). Harlow: Pearson.
- Saurabh, K., Arora, R., Rani, N., Mishra, D., & Ramkumar, M. (2022). AI led ethical digital transformation: framework, research and managerial implications. *Journal of Information, Communication and Ethics in Society*, 20(2), 229–256. https://doi.org/10.1108/JICES-02-2021-0020
- Schepman, A., & Rodway, P. (2023). The General Attitudes towards Artificial Intelligence Scale (GAAIS): Confirmatory Validation and Associations with Personality, Corporate Distrust, and General Trust. *International Journal of Human-Computer Interaction*, 39(13), 2724– 2741. https://doi.org/10.1080/10447318.2022.2085400

- Schiuma, G., Schettini, E., Santarsiero, F., & Carlucci, D. (2022). The transformative leadership compass: Six competencies for digital transformation entrepreneurship. *International Journal of Entrepreneurial Behaviour and Research*, 28(5), 1273–1291. https://doi.org/10.1108/IJEBR-01-2021-0087
- Schneider, J., Abraham, R., Meske, C., Brocke, J. (2023). Artificial Intelligence Governance For Businesses. *Information Systems Management*, 40(3), 229–249. https://doi.org/10.1080/10580530.2022.2085825
- Schwaba, T., Luhmann, M., Denissen, J. J. A., Chung, J. M., & Bleidorn, W. (2018). Openness to experience and culture-openness transactions across the lifespan. *Journal of Personality* and Social Psychology, 115(1), 118–136. https://doi.org/10.1037/pspp0000150
- Sekaran, U. (2003). *Research methods for business: A skill building approach* (4th ed.). United State of America: John Willey and Sons, Inc.
- Sekaran, U. and Bougie, R. (2013) *Research Methods for Business: A Skill-Building Approach* (6th ed.). Chichester: John Wiley.
- Sibtain, M., Li, X., Nabi, G., Azam, M. A., & Bashir, H. (2020). Development of a three-stage hybrid model by utilizing a two-stage signal decomposition methodology and machine learning approach to predict monthly runoff at Swat River Basin, Pakistan. *Discrete Dynamics in Nature and Society*, 2020, 1–19. https://doi.org/10.1155/2020/7345676
- Simic, J., Ristic, M. R., Milosevic, T. K., & Ristic, D. (2022). The Relationship between personality traits and managers' leadership styles. *Humanities Today: Proceedings*, 1(2), 87-95.
- Simoes, R. V., Parreiras, M. V. C., Silva, A. C. C. Da, Barbosa, C. E., Lima, Y. O. De, & Souza, J. M. De. (2022). Artificial Intelligence and Digital Transformation: Analyzing Future Trends. *Conference Proceedings - IEEE International Conference on Systems, Man and Cybernetics*, 2022-Octob, 1462–1467. https://doi.org/10.1109/SMC53654.2022.9945429
- Sjödin, D., Parida, V., Palmié, M., & Wincent, J. (2021). How AI capabilities enable business model innovation: Scaling AI through co-evolutionary processes and feedback loops. *Journal of Business Research*, 134, 574–587. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jbusres.2021.05.009
- Solanki, P., Baldaniya, D., Jogani, D., Chaudhary, B., Shah, M., & Kshirsagar, A. (2022). Artificial intelligence: New age of transformation in petroleum upstream. *Petroleum Research*, 7(1), 106–114. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.ptlrs.2021.07.002

- Sow, M., & Aborbie, S. (2018). Impact of Leadership on Digital Transformation. *Business and Economic Research*, 8(3), 139. https://doi.org/10.5296/ber.v8i3.13368
- Stahl, B. C. (2021). Artificial intelligence for a better future. Springer Cham.
- Strickhouser, J. E., Zell, E., & Krizan, Z. (2017). Does personality predict health and well-being? A metasynthesis. *Health Psychology*, 36(8), 797–810. https://doi.org/10.1037/hea0000475
- Sun, P., & Shang, S. (2019). Personality traits and personal values of servant leaders. *Leadership Organization Development Journal*, 40(2), 177–192.
- Svetlana, N., Anna, N., Svetlana, M., Tatiana, G., & Olga, M. (2022). Artificial intelligence as a driver of business process transformation. *Procedia Computer Science*, 213(C), 276–284. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.procs.2022.11.067
- Taherizadeh, A., &Beaudry, C. (2023). An emergent grounded theory of AI-driven digital transformation: Canadian SMEs' perspectives. *Industry and Innovation*, 30(9), 1244–1273. https://doi.org/10.1080/13662716.2023.2242285
- Tan, C., Lau, X. S., Kung, Y. T., Renu, A., & Kailsan, L. (2016). Openness to experience enhances creativity: The mediating role of intrinsic motivation and the creative process engagement. *The Journal of Creative Behavior*, 53(1), 109–119. https://doi.org/10.1002/jocb.170
- Tao, Y., Cai, Y., Rana, C., & Zhong, Y. (2020). The impact of the Extraversion-Introversion personality traits and emotions in a moral decision-making task. *Personality and Individual Differences*, 158, 109840. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.paid.2020.109840
- Tayyab, M., Ahmad, I., Sun, N., Zhou, J., & Dong, X. (2018). Application of integrated artificial neural networks based on decomposition methods to predict streamflow at Upper Indus Basin, Pakistan. *Atmosphere*, 9(12), 494. https://doi.org/10.3390/atmos9120494
- Tiersma, K. M., Reichman, M., Popok, P. J., Nelson, Z., Mj, B., Elwy, A. R., Flores, E. J., Irwin, K., & Vranceanu, A. (2022). The Strategies for Quantitative and Qualitative remote Data Collection: Lessons from the COVID-19 Pandemic. *JMIR Formative Research*, 6(4), e30055. https://doi.org/10.2196/30055
- Toseef, M. U., & Khan, M. D. (2018). An intelligent mobile application for diagnosis of crop diseases in Pakistan using fuzzy inference system. *Computers and Electronics in Agriculture*, 153, 1–11. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.compag.2018.07.034
- Tribune. (2022). Artificial intelligence in Pakistan. *The Express Tribune*. https://tribune.com.pk/story/2366462/artificial-intelligence-in-pakistan

- Tuschner, C., Krath, J., Bings, J., Schwenkmezger, M., Etzkorn, M., & von Korflesch, H. (2022). Leading in the Digital Age: A Systematic Review on Leader Traits in the Context of e-Leadership. *Thirtieth European Conference on Information Systems (ECIS 2022)*.
- Tzouganatou, A. (2021). Openness and privacy in born-digital archives: reflecting the role of AI development. AI & SOCIETY, 37(3), 991–999. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00146-021-01361-3
- Ughulu, J. (2022). Article title: The role of Artificial intelligence (AI) in Starting, automating and scaling businesses for Entrepreneurs. *ScienceOpen Preprints, August*, 0–1. https://doi.org/10.14293/S2199-1006.1.SOR-.PP5ZKWJ.v1
- Umer, L., Khan, M. H., & Ayaz, Y. (2023). Transforming Healthcare with Artificial Intelligence in Pakistan : A Comprehensive Overview. *Pakistan Armed Force Medical Journal*, 73(4), 955–963.
- Varchetta, M., González-Sala, F., Mari, E., Quaglieri, A., Fraschetti, A., Cricenti, C., Giannini, A. M., & Martí-Vilar, M. (2023). Psychosocial risk factors of technological addictions in a sample of Spanish University students: The influence of Emotional (Dys) Regulation, personality traits and Fear of Missing Out on internet addiction. *Psychiatry Research*, 329(September). https://doi.org/10.1016/j.psychres.2023.115518
- Varsha, P. S. (2023). How can we manage biases in artificial intelligence systems A systematic literature review. *International Journal of Information Management Data Insights*, 3(1), 100165. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jjimei.2023.100165
- Venumuddala, V. R., & Kamath, R. (2023). Work Systems in the Indian Information Technology (IT) Industry Delivering Artificial Intelligence (AI) Solutions and the Challenges of Work from Home. *Information Systems Frontiers*, 25(4), 1375–1399. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10796-022-10259-4
- Vial, G., Cameron, A., Giannelia, T., & Jiang, J. (2022). Managing artificial intelligence projects: Key insights from an AI consulting firm. *Information Systems Journal*, 33(3), 669–691. https://doi.org/10.1111/isj.12420
- Vijayakumar, H. (2023). Unlocking Business Value with AI-Driven End User Experience Management (EUEM). ACM International Conference Proceeding Series, 129–135. https://doi.org/10.1145/3603955.3604004

- Vrontis, D., Christofi, M., Pereira, V., Tarba, S., Makrides, A., & Trichina, E. (2022). Artificial intelligence, robotics, advanced technologies and human resource management: A systematic review. *International Journal of Human Resource Management*, 33(6), 1237– 1266. https://doi.org/10.1080/09585192.2020.1871398
- Wamba, S., Queiroz, M.M., Pappas, I.O. et al. (2024). Artificial Intelligence Capability and Firm Performance: A sustainable development perspective by the mediating role of data-driven culture. *Information Systems Frontiers*. https://doi.org/10.1007/s10796-023-10460-z
- Taguimdje, S. L., Fosso Wamba, S., Kala Kamdjoug, J. R., & Tchatchouang Wanko, C. E. (2020). Influence of artificial intelligence (AI) on firm performance: The business value of AIbased transformation projects. *Business Process Management Journal*, 26(7), 1893–1924. https://doi.org/10.1108/BPMJ-10-2019-0411
- Taguimdje, SL., Wamba, S.F., Kamdjoug, J.R.K., Wanko, C.E.T. (2020). Impact of Artificial Intelligence on Firm Performance: Exploring the Mediating Effect of Process-Oriented Dynamic Capabilities. In Agrifoglio, R., Lamboglia, R., Mancini, D., Ricciardi, F. (Eds), *Digital Business Transformation. Lecture Notes in Information Systems and Organisation*, 38. Springer, Cham. https://doi.org/10.1007/978-3-030-47355-6 1
- Widiger, T. A., & Oltmanns, J. R. (2017). Neuroticism is a fundamental domain of personality with enormous public health implications. *World Psychiatry*, 16(2), 144–145. https://doi.org/10.1002/wps.20411/wps.20411
- Wiljer, D., & Hakim, Z. (2019). Developing an Artificial Intelligence–Enabled Health Care Practice: Rewiring Health Care Professions for Better Care. *Journal of Medical Imaging* and Radiation Sciences, 50(4), S8–S14. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jmir.2019.09.010
- Xia, Q., Chiu, T. K. F., Lee, M., Sanusi, I. T., Dai, Y., & Chai, C. S. (2022). A self-determination theory (SDT) design approach for inclusive and diverse artificial intelligence (AI) education. *Computers* & *Education*, 189, 104582. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.compedu.2022.104582
- Yasin, Q., Sohail, G. M., Khalid, P., Baklouti, S., & Du, Q. (2021). Application of machine learning tool to predict the porosity of clastic depositional system, Indus Basin, Pakistan. *Journal of Petroleum Science and Engineering*, 197, 107975. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.petrol.2020.107975

- Yu, X., Xu, S., & Ashton, M. (2023). Antecedents and outcomes of artificial intelligence adoption and application in the workplace: The socio-technical system theory perspective. *Information Technology and People*, 36(1), 454–474. https://doi.org/10.1108/ITP-04-2021-0254
- Zaki, F. M., Chintya, T., & Andini, S. (2024). The relationship between the personality types of neuroticism and agreeableness with the tendency of verbal aggression behavior in high school students IT Al-Halimiyah East Jakarta. *European Journal of Psychological Research*, 11(1).
- Zarifis, A., & Efthymiou, L. (2022). The four business models for AI adoption in education: Giving leaders a destination for the digital transformation journey. *IEEE Global Engineering Education Conference, EDUCON, 2022-March,* 1868–1872. https://doi.org/10.1109/EDUCON52537.2022.9766687
- Zhang, J., & Chen, Z. (2023). Exploring Human Resource Management Digital Transformation in the Digital Age. *Journal of the Knowledge Economy*, 29. https://doi.org/10.1007/s13132-023-01214-y
- Zhang, W., Sun, S. L., Jiang, Y., & Zhang, W. (2019). Openness to experience and team creativity: Effects of knowledge sharing and transformational leadership. *Creativity Research Journal*, 31(1), 62–73. https://doi.org/10.1080/10400419.2019.1577649
- Zhao J., Chapman E., Houghton S. (2022). Key predictive factors in the mental health of Chinese university students at home and abroad. *International Journal of Environment Research Public Health*, 19(23),16103. https://doi.org/10.3390/ijerph192316103
- Zhao, L., Liu, Y., & Su, Y. S. (2023). Personality traits' prediction of the digital skills divide between urban and rural college students: A longitudinal and cross-sectional analysis of online learning during the COVID-19 Pandemic. *Educational Technology and Society*, 26(4), 150–162. https://doi.org/10.30191/ETS.202310_26(4).0011
- Zhu, N., Liu, Y., Zhang, J., Liu, J., Li, J., Wang, S., & Gul, H. (2022). How and why non-balanced reciprocity differently influence employees' compliance behavior: The mediating role of thriving and the moderating roles of perceived cognitive capabilities of artificial intelligence and conscientiousness. *Frontiers in Psychology*, 13(October), 1–12. https://doi.org/10.3389/fpsyg.2022.1029081

- Zhu, Y., & Zhang, B. (2022). AI Film Creation Oriented Transformation in the Era of Artificial Intelligence. Art and Design Review, 10(02), 272–279. https://doi.org/10.4236/adr.2022.102020
- Zomer, T. T., Neely, A., & Martinez, V. (2020). Digital transforming capability and performance: a microfoundational perspective. *International Journal of Operations & Production Management*, 40(7), 1095–1128. https://doi.org/10.1108/ijopm-06-2019-0444
- Zulu, S. L., & Khosrowshahi, F. (2021). A taxonomy of digital leadership in the construction industry. *Construction Management and Economics*, 39(7), 565–578. https://doi.org/10.1080/01446193.2021.1930080

Appendix

Research Instrument

Section A: Demographic Information

1.	What is your gender?	\Box Male \Box Female \Box Prefer not to say
2.	What is your age?	□ less than 25 □ 25 to 40 □ 41 to 60 □ Above 60
3.	How long have you been employed	\Box less than 1 year \Box 1 to 3 years \Box 4 to 6 years
	with your current organization?	\Box 7 to 9 years \Box 10 or above years
4.	Industry/Sector	
	E.g., IT	
5.	Job Position(Please Specify)	
	E.g., manager, IT professional	
6.	Do you work in IT company?	

If you have answered "yes" to the previous question, please proceed with the rest of the questionnaire. If your answer was "no", then you may stop right here. Thank you for showing interest in our study.

Section B: For each statement below please circle the appropriate responses:

1 = Strongly Disagree (SDA), 2 = Disagree (DA), 3 = Neutral (N), 4 = Agree (A),	5 = Strongly Agree
(SA)	

	Openness	SDA	DA	Ν	Α	SA
1.	I see myself as someone who is original, comes up with new ideas.	1	2	3	4	5
2.	I see myself as someone who has an active imagination.	1	2	3	4	5
3.	I see myself as someone who values artistic experiences.	1	2	3	4	5

	Extraversion	SDA	DA	N	A	SA
4.	I see myself as someone who is communicative, talkative.	1	2	3	4	5
5.	I see myself as someone who is outgoing, sociable.	1	2	3	4	5
6.	I see myself as someone who is reserved.	1	2	3	4	5

	Consciousness	SDA	DA	Ν	A	SA
7.	I see myself as someone who does a thorough job.	1	2	3	4	5
8.	I see myself as someone who does things effectively and efficiently.	1	2	3	4	5
9.	I see myself as someone who tends to be lazy.	1	2	3	4	5

	Agreeableness	SDA	DA	N	А	SA
10.	I see myself as someone who has a forgiving nature.	1	2	3	4	5
11.	I see myself as someone who is considerate and kind to others.	1	2	3	4	5
12.	I see myself as someone who is sometimes somewhat rude to others.	1	2	3	4	5

	Neuroticism	SDA	DA	Ν	A	SA
13.	I see myself as someone who is relaxed, handles stress well.	1	2	3	4	5
14.	I see myself as someone who gets nervous easily.	1	2	3	4	5
15.	I see myself as someone who worries a lot.	1	2	3	4	5

	AI leadership capability	SDA	DA	Ν	A	SA
16.	I think using AI tools is fun.	1	2	3	4	5
17	I am an AI expert.	1	2	3	4	5
18.	When it comes to AI knowledge, I am always up to date.	1	2	3	4	5
19.	I am driving the AI transformation forward proactively in my department.	1	2	3	4	5
20.	I can make others enthusiastic about the AI transformation.	1	2	3	4	5
21.	I have a clear idea of the structures and processes that are needed for the AI transformation.	1	2	3	4	5

	AI transformation	SDA	DA	Ν	A	SA
22.	In my organization new business processes are built on AI based technologies.	1	2	3	4	5
23.	In my organization AI based technologies are integrated to drive change.	1	2	3	4	5
24.	In my organization, business operations are shifting toward making use of AI based technologies.	1	2	3	4	5